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Highlights
2013

Successful integration of Truth into Amesbury under a single
management team

Truth overall synergy target increased to US$8 O million
from 2075 with US$5 O miilion now expected to be delivered
in 2014

Truth earmings enhancing in 2013 and generated a return
greater than the Group's cost of capital in the first six months
— both stgnificantly earlier than expected

Good trading performance from Amesbury and Truth against a
backdrop of improving market conditions in the United States

Leverage ratio back within core target range of 1 50x to 2 00x
within six months of transaction completion

Strong performance from Grouphomesafe with good
contributtons from Fab & Fix and ERA

Difficult end markets combined with investment in
manufacturing footprint and management structures
led to a small loss in Schlegel International in 2013

Name change to Tyman plc and move to the Main Market

£2981m £323m £0.8m

Revenue Underlying operating profit'?  Profit/(Loss) before taxation
2012 £228 8m +303% 2012 £230m +409% 2012 £(258im+1031%
13.71p 6.00p 0.63p
Underlying EPS'? Dividend per share Basic earnings/{loss) per share
2012 1031p+330% 2012 450p+333% 2012 (1707)p +103 7%

%
£809m  1.81x 9.0%
Underlying net debt? Leverage Return on average capital
2012 E370m +1189% 2012 122x employed

2012 72% +180bps

All numbers stoted ore from continuing operaticns

1
2

Comparatives for 2012 stated before property provision refease and restoted for TAS 19 {as amended)

“Underlying™ is defined as before amortisation ond accelesated amortisation of intangible assets deferred tax on
amortisation and accelerated amortisation of intangible assets impairment of intangible assets and goodwill
exceptional items unwinding of discount on provisions amartisatien of borrowing costs and the associated tax effect
“Underlying net debt s defined as interest bearing loans and borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents, plus
unamortised borrowing costs added back
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Our business at a glance

Truth Hardware (“Truth”), acquired
by the Group in July 2013, 15 a
manufacturer of hardware products
used in windows, doors and skylights

Truth's core product range 1s focused

on the casement window segment of

the market and Truth has developed
inncvative mechanisms for the operation
of casement windows Its products include
arange of hinges locks, operators, and
window systems used on wood, vinyl,
metal and fibreglass windows, skylights,
and patio doors

The mamn manufacturing facility of Truth
and 1ts headquarters are in Owatonna,
Minnesota (USA) where its engineening
research and development, die casting,
metal stamping, component fabrications
and assembly manufactunng takes place
Truth also has a separate faclity in
Brampton, Toronto (Canada), which serves
as a competency centre for machining
technology

From January 2014, our North American
businesses, compnsing Truth and
Amesbury, will be managed as a single
entity with an integrated management
team Accordingly, Truth has been
incorporated into the Amesbury operating
segment from the start of 2014

To read about the perfarmance of
Truth Hardware go to pages 17 to 18

£42.9m

Revenue 2013
six months

ta 31 December
2012 £407m
+54%

£7.7m

Underlying
operating profit
2013

six months

to 31 December
2012 £60m

+28 3%

Amesbury, one of our North
Amencan Building Products divisions,
offers the complete range of door
and window sealing solutions and
hardware

With manufactunng and distribution
capability throughout the USA and
Canada, Amesbury 1s Amenca’s [eading
manufacturer of door and window seals
with brands such as Foam-Tite®, Schlegel's
Q-LON® and high-quality textile offerings

In addition, Amesbury manufactures
custom thermoplastic extrustons and
multi-durometer profiles as well as block
and tackle and constant force window
balances for single and double-hung
windows, and is a leading door hardware

distnbutor Through its subsidiary Overland,

Amesbury supplies an extensive range cf
stampings for a range of applications,
mainly in the fenestration market

To read about the performance
of Amesbury go to poge 16

£132.4m

Revenue 2013

2012 £1186m
+116%

£14.6m

Underlying
operating profit
2013

2012 £115m?
+26 6%
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The Group has
manufacturing

and distribution
operations across
Europe, the Americas,
Australasia and Asia
Qur products can be
found in homes and
bulldings all aver

the world

Amesbury

Truth Hardware
Grouphomesafe
Schlegel International

Our UK Building Products division Our International Building Products

operates as Grouphomesafe £86.0m division operates as Schlegel £36.8m
Grouphomesafe 1s a leader in the design, Revenue 2013 International Revenue 2013
development, manufacture and 2012 £73 3m Schlegel International operates in a 2012 £36 8m
distribution of innovative solutions to +173% number of countnies worldwide, with 0N%
improve performance and enhance manufacturng sites n Germany, Spain,
protection and security for the residential Belgium and Australia, as well as numerous
burlding and home improvement markets distrbution and sourcing operations
Grouphomesafe provides a wide range of £1 0.5m Cur core brand internationally 1s £(O°£|) m
products and solutions including window Schlegel, whose seals are sold in more
and door locks and hardware, specialist Underlying than 75 countries around the world Also Underlying
uPVC profiles and products, sash window operating profit manufactured are related products suchas ~ ©Perating profit
renovation and weatherseal products 2013 cleaning brushes, static control devices for 2013
Grouphomesafe concewe, design and 2012 £90m' copiers and printers, speciality automotive 2012 £2 5
develop thnovative door and window +170% products SUCh as Sunroof seals and truck (116 0)%
solutions to protect you against weather spray suppressants, tractor seat tnm and
and intruders sway bar bushes

To read about the performance of The power of the Schlegel brand extends

Grouphomesafe go to page 19 across Europe and many terntories in the

rest of the world This gives us a unique
insight into local markets and offers the
potential to sell our extensive product
range internationally

To read about the performance
of Schlegel International go to
pages 2010 21

1 Comparative numbers for 2012 stated before property provision release and restated
for 1AS 19 (as amended}
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Chairman’s statement

Our core businesses have continued to deliver a
solid performance and we have grown our market
shares in both the US and the UK.

Jamie Pike
Non-executive Chairman

We are delighted to report that 2013 has been another year of
significant progress for Tyman plc

During 2013 the Group has made further stndes towards our
strategic aim of becoming the leading supplier of components to
the door and window industry and, following the acquisition of
Truth, we are now the leading player in the North Amencan
residential window and door components market

This progress has been achieved through a combination of organic
growth in our core US and UK businesses of Amesbury and
Grouphomesafe, together with the acquisition of Truth — which has
increased the size of our North Amencan business by approximately
40 per cent As expected, Schlegel International had a more
challenging year, reflecting difficult markets and the necessary
investment made in consolidating its manufactunng footprint and
management structures, however, we are confident that we now
have the right platform for growth

Truth has made a strong contribution to the Group in the first six
manths of our ownership, despite Canadian market activity levels
that were much lower than in recent years giving us confidence for
further improvements over the course of 2014

Tyman has gone through a great deal of change over the course of
the last four years and particularly in the last 12 months The change
of name in February of 2013 heralded the start of a significant
period of corporate activity for the Group invalving the raising of
new debt and equity to finance the acquisition of Truth, the move
from AIM to the Main List of the London Stock Exchange and the
integration of Truth into our North American business Since the year
end we have also completed the acquisition of Vedasil Brasil

Managing that change has been a fundamental part of the good
governance of Tyman and the Board has been closely involved in
ensuring that the Group's decision-making processes take into
account the relevant interests of each of our stakeholders —
shareholders, prowiders of finance, employees, customers as well as
the wider environment

Corporate developments and strategy

Four years ago we set out a clear strategy outhining the actions that
we would seek to take to reshape the Group and rebuild confidence
with each of our stakeholders

A key efement of that strategy was to develop our portfolio of
products in our principal markets In {ine with that strategy, we
announced our intention to acquire Truth, the leading North
American manufacturer of casement hardware, in May 2013 This
transaction greatly extended our product offering, enabling us to
offer a full range of components te our customer base, as well as
aflowing us an operating facility in Canada for the first time
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The acquisition completed on 3 July 2013, and we have been
pleased with the progress made towards the integration of the two
businesses, as a result of the commitment of teams from both
Amesbury and Truth Substantial progress has been made with
regard to the delivery of synergies identified at the time of the
acquisition, such that we now have significantly upgraded these
synergy targets by some 60 per cent We now have asingle
leadership team for our Nerth American business, comprising
individuals drawn from both Truth and Amesbury and a combined
sales and marketing organisation under the leadership of an
external hire

Over the past 12 months we have strengthened the organisational
and management structures in each of our divisions to reflect the
increased size of the Group and to accord with the greater scope
and potential of the enlarged businesses The extent to which we
have deepened and strengthened our management team across
the Group is best illustrated by the fact that nearly half of the
individuals who were awarded LTIP grants in 2013 joined Tyman,
whether through acquisition or through recruitment, since the date
of the last grant in July 2012

Trading performance

Thraughout this transformational peried, our core businesses have
continued to deliver a solid performance and we have grown our
market shares in both the USA and the UK

For 2013 we have reported a 30 3 per cent increase in revenue and
a 409 per cent increase in underlying operating profit Underlying
earnings per share have increased by 33 0 per cent to 13 71 pence
and the Truth acquisition was earnings enhancing in the first six
months of ownership

The Group as a whole has delivered a matenal improvement in its
return on average capital employed of 180 basis pointsto 9 0 per
cent, with Truth making a positive contribution in the first six
months of ownership, much earlier than we expected at the time of
its acquisition

Qur cash flow performance in the year was excellent, with the Group's
leverage of 1 81x at the year end being significantly below the
expected leverage of 2 00x we announced at the time of the
acquisition, and welbwithin our core target range of 1 50x to 2 00x
Operating cash conversion of 1119 per cent (2012 restated 83 6 per
cent) reflects the tight management of the working capital cycle by
the divisions despite the increased investments in capital expenditure
made dunng 2013

Dividend

The Board considers the dividend to be an important component of
shareholder returns and accordingly, 1s recommending a final
dwvidend for 2013 of 4 50 pence per share (2012 3 50 pence per
share) which, together with the interim dwvidend of 1 50 pence per
share, gives a total dividend for the year of 6 00 pence per share
(2012 4 50 pence per share)

This represents an ncrease of 33 3 per cent over the prior year and
a cover of approximately 2 29x in relation to our 2013 underlying
earnings per share —in line with our policy of cover of between

2 00x and 2 50x through the cycle

Looking forward

In conclusion, T would like to thank all Tyman's employees,
especially those who have joined the Group in the past year, for the
substantial efforts they have made to deliver these results, in what
has been a very exciting and challenging year

In 2014, we look faorward to delivering further significant progress
.
Jamie Pike . / fl

Non-executive Charman
11 March 2014
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Market overview

Key factors supporting long-term growth in the
markets we operate in.




Strategy

Our strategy is to create shareholder value
through being a leading international
supplier of components to the door and
window industry worldwide.
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We aim to be the market leader in each of the
segments that we serve.

Our strategy creates value by increasing revenues
through consistent market share gain and pricing
discipline, maximising margins by eliminating cost
and waste from processes, and a focus on capital
allocation and cash generation.

We measure our success through a focus on our
KPIs which are measured, reported on and
challenged at all levels of our business.
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Business model

Our business model is built around our customers,
the products we sell to them and the service we

provide to them.

Where we source or manufacture

Where we sell

In order to provide our customers with the service they need, the
manufacturing decision is key Is the customer best served by
Tyman manufactuning the product ourselves or can the product be
provided more efficiently and effectively through Tyman sourcing
the components the customer needs?

We choose to manufacture products, such as complex balances,
extrusions and seals close to our customer base where flexibality,
variety or complexity are key to the component manufacturing
process and to the customer For products that are less complex,
have a high labour content or more predictable demand levels,
we may choose to source from lower cost and sometimes more
remnote locations, often using third party manufacturers to make
or assemble companents on our behalf Examples of sourced
preducts would include handles and standard locks

As part of the manufacturing decision we aim to ensure that we
have flexibility in how we make or source the product such that
we have built in redundancy This may be geographic in the case
of our own manufacturing plants, or may involve certifying and
approving more than one potential supplier of a sourced product
This flexibility allows us to respond quickly to changes in product
demand levels and to move manufacture around depending on
capacity levels

Substantially all of the components we supply to our customers —
whether manufactured by us in our own plants or sourced
externally — are engmeenng led, value added products made to
our designs, protected where possible and practical by patents
and Intellectual Property, and manufactured on our own
proprietary tooling

We aim to optimise the manufacturing decision such that we can
leverage our scale and geographic footpnnt in order to supply our
customer base, whether it s our largest North American customers
or our smaller local customers, with innovative solutions that are
aligned with our quahty and service standards

In what remains a very fragmented industry tn most markets, we
believe Tyman 15 unique in being able to offer the complete range
of door and window compenents to customers and to have a truly
international offering

Who we sell to

Qur customners nclude OEM manufacturers, fabnicators,
distributors, retailers, bullders’ merchants, architects,
house bullders and ultimately the homeowner
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What we sell

We aim to offer our customers a complete range of components
ranging frem hardware such as handles, locks, keeps and hinges to
seals and extrusions

We believe we are the only manufacturer of scale that can offer
our customer base the full range of door and window companents

Financial discipline

Underptnning our business model 15 a focus on financial disciplines
that encompasses margin targets for each of our products, close
scrutiny of the cost base, optimusation of working capital, and a
ngorous approach to return on caprtal and its allocation, both
internally in the form of capital investment and externaily in the
form of M&A

Quality and service

The manufactuning decision for Tyman comes back to our desire
to differentiate our product offering from that of our competitors
by providing customers with the highest quality product at the
relevant price point, delvered on time and in full This focus on
quality and service leads to deeper customer relations, puts us
front of mind as new designs are contemplated by Onginal
Equipment Manufacturers ("OEMs") and allows us to set the
benchmark for the industry

New praoduct development programmes across all of our divisions
are focused on antraipating future trends within the industry and
delivering customised engineered solutions to our customers
Throughout the downturn we remained committed as a Group

to the development of our product offering and retained our key
teams of designers and engineers at a time when many of our
competitors were cutting back in this area

Service 1s at the heart of what Tyman aims to offer its customers
For our largest customers we deploy our own engineers on ther
factary floors, allowing us early notice of product or service issues,
however small, and giving us an early insight into future new
product development For our distnbution customers we take care
of critical elements of their supply chain, including inventory
management, packaging and shipment to distribution hubs For
key manufacturing customers we have developed our processes
such that we can deliver therr component mventory on a just in
time basis and sequenced in the order that they intend te
consume the product
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Chief Executive Officer’s review

This has been a further year of transformation for
Tyman during which we have made significant
operating, financial and strategic progress across

each of our Divisions.

Louss Eperjesi
Chief Executive Officer

The acquisition of Truth, combined with the swift integration into
Amesbury under a unified management team, provides the Group
with a strong platform for further growth in North America Since
the year end we have completed the acquisition of Vedasit Brasil,
gmving us a seal manufactunng platform in South Amenica for the
first time

The current year has started well and in ine with expectations

across each of the dwisions Continued recovery in our key end

markets, combined with share gains and the delvery of further
synergy benefits in North Amenca underpin our confidence for
the future

2014 Prionties

Our key priorities for 2014 are as follows

1 Completion of the integration of Amesbury and Truth into a
single customer facing organisation along with delivery of our
revised synergy targets

2 Evaluation of our footprint in our developed markets to ensure
that it s appropnate for the medium term needs of the business,
taking into account opportunities for near shoring of those
products best made or sourced close to the point of
consumption

3 Continuing to encourage strong communication, consistency
of approach and standards of excellence across each of the
divisions For our end customer, wherever they are located, this
should mean the availability of a differentiated product offering
at an appropnate price, delivered to specfication, on time and
in full

4 Key financial objectives for each of our divisions in 2014 remain
centred on sustained margin iImprovement and cash generation
along with continued growth in the Group's average return
on capital We expect developed markets will see pricing
opportunities anse as markets and volumes recover

S Continued investment in and improvement of the businesses,
in particular in the areas of new product development, people,
supply chamn and capital projects with a focus on automation
and lean manufacturing to ensure we differentiate ourselves
from our competitors

6 Supplementing cur orgamic and self help initiatives through
our active acquisition programme, priontising European
markets where we currently have a imited hardware range and
emerging markets where market position can best be obtained
through acquisition
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Outlook

The current year has started well and in ine with our expectations
across each of the Divisions Currency movements are expected to
have a greater impact on reported numbers in 2014 than in recent
years however continued recovery in our key end markets, combined
with market share gains and the delivery of further synergy benefits
in North Amenca, underpin our confidence for the future

We expect continued improvement in our North Amenican markets
thus year with new build in the US forecast to increase further,
supported by a continued gradual acceleration in repair and
remodelling expenditure The Canadian market is forecast to be flat
in 2014, which would be a significant improvement compared with
the decline seenin 2013 Delivery of our synergy targets, together
with opportunities for market share gain should lead to further
growth and good momentum in North America this year

The first two months have seen extreme weather conditions in
North America, however despite this our businesses have traded
ahead of the equivalent peniod in 2012, giving us confidence that
once weather conditions improve, the recovery in the overall market
seen in 2013 should continue

Coming into this year, there appears to be greater confidence in
the sustainability of the recovery in the UK and, for the first time

in a number of years, we are forecasting growth for the UK market
In 2014 we will aim to increase Grouphomesafe's market share
through ergame growth and new product introductions, together
with a more structured approach to the distnbution market The
first two months have seen continued good momentum tn our

UK businesses

For Schlegel International, 2014 should see an improved
performance as the investments we have made to date start

to deliver Material prefit improvement however will depend on
significantly increased volumes, which in turn will depend on a
sustained recovery in Eurepean markets, which are not expected

to come through until at least 2015 Trading in the first two months
s marginally ahead of the equivalent penod last year We expect
continued growth in Australasia, South East Asia and Brazil where
the acquisition of Vedasil Brasil gives us a market leading position
and local manufacture for the first time

Louis Eperjes
Chief Executive Officer
11 March 2014
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Key performance indicators

The Group monitors and measures performance against its

KPIs, highlighted below. These KPIs are in line with the
strategic priorities of the Group and provide a means of
evaluating how well the Group is working together to deliver
the long-term strategy.

Financial performance

Purpose

To identify the directional trend in sales revenue and evaluate
the ability of the Group to grow 1ts customer base and improve
its margins

Target
To improve revenue growth

Performance

Revenue has increased by 6 3 per cent in 2013 on a like for like
basis, due inlarge part to the strong top line performance from
Amesbury

+6.3%

Achieved
A Like for like revenue
growth

Purpose

To evaluate the profitability and financial health of the Group A
relative measure of each GBE of revenue remaining after all direct
manufacturing costs have been incurred

Target
To maintain and improve gross margn

Performance

Gross margins from continuing operations improved by 60bps,
reflecting a full year contribution from Fab & Fix and a six month
contribution from Truth, offset by lower margins seen in Schlegel
International as a consequence of lower European trading levels

+60bps

Achieved
A Gross margin

Purpose

To evaluate the profitabiity and financial health of the Group A
relative measure of each GBE of operating profit remaining after all
direct manufacturing and administrative costs have been incurred

Target

To maintain and iImprove operating margins through the
management controf of the Group’s overhead and admsnistrative
costs

Performance

Operating margins from continuing operations improved by
90bps, reflecting a strong perfarmance by Amesbury, a full
year contnibution from Fab & Fix and a six menth contnbution
from Truth, offset by a poor margin perfarmance in Schlegel
International as a consequence of lower European trading
levels

+90bps

Achieved

A Underlying
operating margin
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Financial strength and capital discipline

Purpose
To evaluate the ability of the Group to generate sufficient cash 1 .81 X
flows to cover its contractual debt servicing obligations

Achieved

Target Leverage

To maintain a core leverage ratio of between 1 50x to 2 00x
through the cycle

Performance

The year end leverage was 1 81x The KPI increased in 2013 due
to the drawdown of net borrowings to part fund the acquisition of
Truth Hardware however it was back within our core target range
of 1 50x to 2 0Cx approximately 12 months earher than we had
expected

Purpose
To evaluate how efficiently the bustness’s capital and controllable +1 80bps
capital are being employed to improve profitability - "

Achieved

Target AROCE

To maintain and steadily improve ROCE and ROCCE

Performance

The Group as a whole has delivered a matenal improvernent in

Its return on average capital employed and return on controllable +£|50bps
capital employed, with Truth making a positive cantribution in

the first six months of ownership Achreved

ARQCCE
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Key performance indicators
continued

Financial strength and capital discipline continued

Purpose

Evaluation of the cash flows generated by the business operations 1 1 1 .9%

to pay down debt, return to our shareholders and invest In

acquisitions Achieved
Qperating cash

Target conversion

Core target 15 100 per cent converston of operating profit nto
operational cash flow across a 12 month perniod

Performance

Given the significant investment in capital expenditure made during
the year (1 3x depreciation), cash conversion of 1119 per cent is
considered to be an excellent performance

Purpose
To determine the iImprovement in underlying earnings per share for +33.0%
our shareholders

Target Achieved
To improve underlying EPS performance & Underlying EPS
Performance
The ncrease in the underlying earnings per share before property
prowision releases reflects the improvement in the underlying
operating profit from Amesbury and Grouphomesafe, the
incremental impact of the Truth acquisition, together with early
delivery of synergies the reduction in finance charges, and the
slightly lower effective tax rate for the year, offset by the increase
in the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue
Other strategic financial and non-financial KPIs
Purpose °
Te evaluate the delivery of consistent and balanced returns to
shareholders in the form of dividends +33'3A
Target Achieved
9 A Dividend growth

To grow dividends annually at least in line with underlying earnings

Performance
Dwidends have grown consistently and by 33 3 per cent in 2013
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Purpose

To evaluate the frequency of and directional trend in reported (26_9)%
wyunes and provide an indication of whether health and safety S, A
regulations and policies are being adhered to by Group's operating Improved

units A Lost time injunies
Target

To reduce the number of injunes and lost work time hourly rates

year-on-year ( 2 8.3)%

Performance
Both KPIs show a continual improvement in the Group’s health and Improved
safety performance The Group remains committed to a Alost ime injury rate

programme of operational excellence and continuous iImprovement
in aur health and safety performance

Purpose

To evaluate the manufactunng productmity and how efficient the 1 1 50bps
business is at meeting delivery deadlines ik Stwond nil
Target missed

A On tme delivery
rate

Target

To maintain and steadily improve the on time delivery rate to
achieve an on time in full ("OTIF"} delwery performance to
customer request of over 95 per cent

Performance

The on time delivery rate decreased to 81 5 per cent from 93 0 per cent
in 2012 OTIF performance for the Group was impacted by factory
moves in Europe and North Amernica duning the year Core OTIF
performance across other businesses was consistently greater than

90 per cent

Purpose
To evaluate the efficiency and returns achieved by the Group
and its investments In recent matenal business acquisitions

Target

All acquisitions target an annualhised Return on Acquisition
Investment (“ROAIL") greater than 15 per cent in the first two years
following acquisition

Performance

While Overland has not achieved the required return, it had a much
improved second year under our ownershup, generating a ROAI
close to the target level Fab & Fix has performed very strongly for
the Group since acquisition and has already significantly exceeded
the required return threshold within 18 months of acquisition Truth
has made a strong contnbution in the first six months and looks well
positioned to exceed the reguired return within 12 months of the
date of acquisition
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Operational review

Amesbury

Constant
currency

£ milkon except where stated 2013 2012 Change ke foriike
Revenue 1324 1186 +116% +102%
Underlying operating profit 146 115 +266% +250%
Underlying operating margin =~ 11.0% 7% +130bps

Constant
$ mulion except where stated 2013 2012 Change ”kceufr:r‘:z
Revenue 2071 1830 +102% +102%
Underlying operating profit 228 182 +4250% +250%
Underlying aperating margin = 11 0% 97% +130bps

Markets

The housing market in the USA continued to recover through 2013
with residential housing starts up 18 3 per cent in the year to
923,400 and completions (our most relevant in year indicator) up
17 4 per cent to 762,200 Single family housing starts increased by
approximately 15 4 per cent across the year and completions by

17 6 per cent Repair and remodelling saw the first signs of areturn
to sustaned growth in the second half of the year and overall we
believe the USA market for our products improved by approximately
8 0 per centin 2013

The Canadian market was more difficult in 2013 The first half of
the year saw total housing starts fall by 16 8 per cent and single
farruly starts fall by 9 7 per cent The second half of the year was
stronger than the first with a degree of recovery and, over the year
as a whole total housing starts fell by some 12 5 per cent with single
family starts down 8 1 per cent Overall, we beheve that the
Canadian market for our products contracted by approximately
100 percent in 2013

Performance

Amesbury’s revenues increased by some 10 2 per cent to US$2071
milhon (2012 US$188 0 mullion) with consistent gains across all
product hnes and strong performance from our hardware and
sealing products in particular Underlying operating profit increased
by 25 0 per cent to US$22 8 million (2012 US$18 2 million} and
underlying operating margins improved from 9 7 percent to 110
per cent

We saw particularly strong growth in the year from the mid to large
customner range with those customers who have viny! offerings in
their portfolio demonstrating incremental volume growth compared
with the higher end timber window manufacturers We continued to
grow our commercial presence dunng the year with a number of
new customer wins and made further progress in Canada

Busmness developments

During the year we announced the reorganisation of Amesbury into
a functional structure as a precursor to the integration of Truth We
implernented our new ERP system for the first time at our Foarntite
plant in Amesbury MA and completed the integration of the Unique
balance business into our Statesville plant
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Truth Hardware

Amesbury Hardware
Products Premiere 3000
multi-point lock

Amesbury’s new patented P3000 multi-point
lock (“MPL”} system is a perfect solution for
today’s consumer. The system is oriented with
the thumb-turn above the handle, more similar
to the standard front entry door configurations
today.

In addition, the dead-bolt operates independently from the
other locking points, allowing a user to secure the door when
unfamiliar with MPL technology The misuse device 1s buned
within the gearing mechanism, eliminating protruding buttans
and the damage they can cause on strike plates

This system incarporates a pult and twist latch design and 1s
constructed of corrosion resistant matenals throughout
Standard configurations are available as well as customisable
configurations to best fit your application

Statutory segmental results for the six months under
Tyman ownership

Six months ending

Constant,

currency
£ milhion except where stated Dec 2013 Dec 2012 Change  like for ke
Revenue 429 407  +54% +40%
Underlying operating profit 77 60 +283% +266%
Underlying operating margin 179%  147% +320bps

Six months ending

$ milhon except where stated Dec 2013 Dec 2012 Change  Like for ke
Revenue 671 645 +40% +40%
Underlying operating profit 120 95 +266% +266%

Underlying operating margin 17.9%  147% +320bps

Performance under Tyman ownership

Truth had a strong first six months under Tyman ownership Despite
slower growth in revenues than Amesbury, a function of a greater
proportion of the business being weighted towards Canada, Truth
delivered a significant improvemnent in its operating profit and
margins with no loss of momentum in the business as a result of the
acquisition

In the period since completion, Truth reported revenues of US$671
million (2012 US$64 5 million) and underlying operating profit of
US$12 0 million (2012 US$9 5 million) after allocation of Tyman
central costs of approximately US$11 milllon The reported
performance for Truth in the six months benefitted from US$0 9
miflion of early delivery of synergies, as discussed further in the
integration section below

Segmental results for the year as a whole excluding

central cost allocations
Twelve months ending

$ milhon except where stated Dec2013  Dec2012 Change
Revenue 130.2 1260 +33%
Underlying operating profit 234 186 +256%
Underlying operating margin 180% 148% +320bps

Performance 2013

Across the year as a whole Truth's revenues increased by 3 3 per cent
to US$130 2 mulleon (2012 US$126 O mullion), with 8 2 per cent
growth in US revenues offset in part by revenue dechnes of around

8 8 per cent in Canada where we believe the business performed
better than the market Truth’s underlying operating profit, before
allocation of Tyman central costs, improved by 25 6 per cent to
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Us$23 4 rmullion {2012 US$18 6 million) with underlying operating
margins for the year increasing by over 300bps compared with 2012

Business developments

Truth has continued to invest in the automation of its
manufacturing processes to improve the operational environment
for employees, increase production capacity, reduce costs and

to optimise plant layouts Four automation projects were
commissioned and delivered during 2013 and a further four
projects are scheduled for delivery by the summer of 2014

Integration and structure

In our first six months of ownership, we have made considerable
progress with the integration of Truth into the Amesbury business
On completion we formed an integration steening committee
compnsing the CEQ and CFO of Tyman and the two CEOs of
Amesbury and Truth, to co-ordmate and direct the integration
process We also estabhshed a clear integration plan with allocated
milestones and responsibilities cascaded down the organisations

This level of focus has enabled us to commence the delivery of
synergy benefits earlier than expected, with some US$0 9 millson
of cost synergies delivered in the first six months of ownership In
addition, we have revised our synergy targets and now expect to
deliver US$5 0 million of synergies in 2014 and a total of US$8 O
million of synergies in 2015 — an increase of 60 per cent aver our
onginal 2015 synergy target

Since the acquisition, we have made substantial changes to the
operational footprint of the Truth sites in North Amernica Two
external warehouses in Owatonna have been closed, with one sold
and the other handed back at the end of the lease term In Toronto,
a new lease on a reduced and more appropnate footprint was
entered into from the start of 2014

From January 2014, Amesbury and Truth have been combined as

a single business, with Amesbury as the umbrella brand for all our
North American businesses and Truth designated as our premium
North Amencan hardware brand We now have a single leadership
team for our North American business, comprising tndividuals drawn
from both Truth and Amesbury, and a combined sales and
marketing organisation under the teadership of an external hire

North American outlook

We expect to see further recovery in the USA new build market in
2014, supported by the continued gradual acceleration in reparr and
remodelling The Canadian market 15 expected to be broadly flat in
2014 compared with 2013 Delivery of our synergy targets, together
with opportunities for market share gain, should lead to further
growth and good momentum in North Amenca this year

2014 initiatives include the completion of the integration process
for Amesbury and Truth, further ERP implementations across a
number of sites, the commencement of targeted automation
projects within Amesbury and a structured evaluation of our
mechum term North Amencan manufactuning footprint

High Performance
Casement Hinge

New energy specifications and
requirements for increased window
performance has necessitated the need
for sashes to contain triple pane

or laminated glass.

This, combmed with the move towards larger windows,
has expanded the boundanes on what standard duty
concealed casement windows can handle Truth's High
Performance Casement Hinge 1s capable of supporting
a 140 Ib sash, allowing manufacturers to bulld operable
windows that meet these demanding new
requiremnents

Additional features of the High Performance Casement
Hinge Include

> Innovative patented shoe design with a built-in roller
to reduce friction dunng operation, thereby
providing smoother travel even under maximum
load This “super shoe” 1s able to withstand up to
240 Ibs of pull-out force in open positton and also
acts as a shipping block to help protect the hinge
from damage dunng shipping and handling

> Larger adjustable brass stud to provide more
adjustment and weight carrying capacity Nearly
18th of an inch of adjustabilty of the sash helps to
ensure a consistent reveal and optimum weather
seal while helping to reduce sash drag

»  Available in 300 Seres staintess steel, which offers
corrosion protection
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£ miltien except where stated 2013 2012 Change  Like for ke
Revenue 860 733 4173% +39%
Underlying operating profit 105 90 +170% +01%
Underlying operating margin - 122% 122% Flat

Market

After a slow first quarter, the UK market saw good momentum
across the remainder of the year New build activity in 2013
increased by approximately 23 0 per cent and RMI, which comprises
substantially all of the UK market, increased by an estimated 4 5
per cent Overall, we believe that the market for our products grew
by approximately 5 O per cent in the year, which was significantly
ahead of our expectations coming into 2013

Performance
Grouphomesafe had a strong year with good financial performance
backed up with significant market share gains in hardware

Revenues in the UK increased by 17 3 per cent to £86 O rullion
(2012 £73 3 million} On a like for ke basis, revenues in the UK
increased by 3 9 per cent to £76 2 milhion (2012 £73 4 million)
Lower steel pnicing through the year at our reinfarcer business
impacted our reported revenues somewhat, hawever we saw strong
gains in volumes across all of our UK hardware businesses

Underlying operating profit increased by 170 per cent to £105
million (2012 £9 0 million) reflecting a full year contribution from
Fab & Fix and our continued focus on margin management across
the Grouphemesafe portfolio Reported ke for like profitability is
affected by the fact that overall synergy benefits ansing from the
integration of Fab & Fix into Grouphomesafe have all been captured
in Fab & Fix rather than spread across the whole of
Grouphomesafe’s operations

We reported good growth at ERA, Fab & Fix and Balance —~ with
notable share gains in the door hardware segment where we
benefitted from being able to sell the high quality Fab & Fix product
to a wider customer base

Our routes to market saw sohid performance from the builders
merchants and the signs of recovery from our core OEM fabncator
customers The general distnbution channel was broadly flat in the
year following our exit from fow margin retail distnibution business
in 2012

Ventrolla, our sash window refurbishment business, repurchased one
further frunchise during the year and has an encouraging pipeiine
of projects for 2014

Business developments

Duning the year we completed the integration of Fab & Fix into
Grouphomesafe, with Fab & Fix now positioned as the premium
quality product within our portfelio and with a single sales force

We moved certain legacy hardware products out of individual sites
to consohdate elements of our general hardware offer at our
Wolverhampton distribution site and closed our small distnbution
centre in Falkirk

We have also continued to improve our supply chain, identifying
and pre-quahfying a number of additienal potential manufacturing
partners in the Far East, and have diversified the Fab & Fix supplier
base, which was a key objective identified at the time of acquisition

UK outlook

Coming into this year there appears to be greater confidence in the
sustainability of the recovery in the UK and, for the first tme ina
number of years, we are forecasting growth for the UK market

2014 imtiatives include the development of a full service

e commerce platform for the UK market, the completion of the
integration of Fab & Fix, further rationalisation of obsolete SKUs as
we refine the product offering, a number of new product launches
and further investment in the supply chain We also intend to target
the distnibution sector v a more structured manner in 2014 and we
continue to evaluate our UK footprint
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Schlegel International

All under one roof
Bi-fold door hardware

Building on rapid growth over the past
three years, the market for bi-fold doors
in the UK is forecast to double in value
by 2016.

To capitalise on this trend, Grouphomesafe has worked
In close partnership with leading PVCu and alurmimum
system companies to develop a complete range of
bi-fold door hardware This has called upon every
aspect of Grouphomesafe's expertise and includes
bespoke locking systems, rollers and hinges from ERA,
seals from Schlegel, reinforcement from EWS and
decorative hardware from Fab & Fix

The ability to produce dll of these components under
one roof means that they work in perfect harmony
This, coupled with market leading features and
benefits, has lead to PVCu systern companies extruding
new profiles specifically to take advantage of the
package Typically profile development leads hardware
design, this turnaround 1s testament to the quality of
the system and Grouphomesafe's growing reputation
for mnovation

Constant

currency
E million except where stated 2013 2012 Change like for ke
Revenue 368 368 0ON% {16)%

Underlying operating profit 04 25 (1M60)% (1165%

Underlying operatingmargin (+.1)% 67% (780)bps

Market

European markets were very subdued in 2013 with the key
geographies of Northern and Eastern Europe all showing significant
dechines Adverse weather conditions in Q1, general destocking of
inventories and lack of end user demand meant that the sales
environment was particularly chailenging The market in Australia
saw a strong first half, however eased off somewhat in the second
half to end the year broadly flat The Brazilian market continued to
perforrm strongly in the year and we believe the market improved by
around 15 Q per cent in 2013

Performance

Schlegel’s revenues decreased by some 16 per cent on a constant
currency basis to £36 8 million (2012 £37 4 million), wath difficult
trading in Europe offset in part by stronger performances n Brazil
and Austrafia These difficult trading conditions, combined with the
impact of the factory moves undertaken in the first quarter and the
investment made in the business, meant that Schlegel only broke
even at the operating fevel and made a small loss after the
allocation of central costs
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All our European geographies had a very tough opening quarter,
although as the year progressed trading did improve, with the
exceptions of Belgium and France, both of which saw quarter on
quarter declines throughout the year We had a strong 2013 1n Italy
with good market share gains against a very low base, due to two
campetitors exiting the marketplace and in Poland new dedicated
sales resource on the ground enabled us to win back some lost
customers

Australio had a strong year as a whole, taking market share and
benefitting from continued penetration of new products Brazil had
another strong year, with new product introductions in the second
half of 2012 giving a boost to first half 2013 comparatives and
Singapore had a sold first year as a stand alone entity

Business developments

We made significant changes to the Schlegel International business
in 2013 In the first quarter we closed our Belgian Bullding Products
fachty and moved production to our Newton Aychiffe and Barcelona
plants These moves give the Group clearly defined centres of
excellence for sealing manufacture in Europe We also recruited a
number of new senior managers to the Schlegel tearn with new
hires filing the roles of Sales Director, Development, Director and
Operations Director, together with a number of new recruits and
promotions at individual site locations

This rebalancing of our European footprint, combined with the
strengthening of the Divisional team, positions Schleget well for
growth as and when European markets recover

Australia saw a number of new hires as well as a reconfiguration of
the Sydney facility in order for it to become the Australasian
distributor of Truth products from 2014 From 1 January 2013,
Singapore was constituted as a separate legal entity, and during the
year was moved to a new location reflecting its growing importance
to the division Again, Singapore will becorne our South East Asian
hub for the distnbution of Truth's products

Acquisition of Vedasil Brasil

On 26 February 2014 Schlegel International completed the
acquisition of Vedasi Brasil (*Vedasil"), the market leader in the
manufacture and supply of pile weatherseals in Brazil

Established in 1978, Vedasil has grown to be one of South Amenca’s
leading providers of pile weatherseals In addition, Vedasil
manufactures and supplies polypropylene extruded seals under

the Eco-PDM brand and other seal and screen components to

the Brazillan door and window market In 2013, Vedasil reported
revenues of approximately BR19 3 mullion (£5 7 rmilion} and Tyman's
existing Brazihan business reported revenues of approximately

BR6 6 mullion (£2 0 million)

Vedasi 1s based near Valinhos, 90km from Sao Paulo where Schlegel
Brazil 1s located We intend to integrate the two businesses at the
Valinhos site, under the Schlegel brand, with a management team
drawn from both businesses

We expect that the combination of the two businesses will bring
Schlegel International significantly increased opportunities in Brazil
and across South America, as welt as the advantages of local
manufacturing

Qutlook

2014 should see an improved performance from the division as
the investments we have made to date start to deliver Matenal
profit improvement however will depend on significantly increased
volumes, which in turn will depend on a sustained recovery n
European markets which are not expected te come through until
at least 2015

Across Europe as a whole we expect to see broadly flat markets in
2014 with some pockets of growth We expect to see continued
improvement in Australan markets, where we will benefit from
selling Truth products direct for the first time, and further growth m
Singapore and in Brazil where we will benefit from our increased
share following the acquisition of Vedasil
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Group revenues increased by 30.3 per cent, in large
part due to the consolidation of Truth from the
half year and the strong top line performance from

Amesbury.

lames Brotherton
Chief Financial Officer

Revenue and operating profit

Group revenues increased by 30 3 percent to £298 1 million (2012
£228 8 million), in large part due to the consolidation of Truth from
the half year and the strong top ine performance from Amesbury

On a constant currency, like for like basis, Group revenues increased
by approximately 6 3 per cent year on year

Gross margins improved by 60 basis points to 33 3 per cent (2012
327 per cent), reflecting a full year contribution from Fab & Fix and
a six month contribution from Truth, offset by lower gross margins
seen In Schlegel International as a consequence of lower European
trading levels

Underlying admumistrative expenses increased by 34 6 per cent
to £66 9 millon (2012 £49 8 million), principally reflecting the
overhead acquired as part of the Truth acquisition made and the
levels of iInvestment made in the business

Underlying operating profit increased by 40 9 per cent to £32 3
million (2012 restated £23 0 million), and increased marginally on a
constant currency like for like basis again as a resutt of the greatly
reduced underlying operating profit contnbution from Schlegel
International

Finance costs

Despite the Group’s increased levels of gross indebtedness,
interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts decreased shightly
to £3 5 milkon (2012 £3 6 milhion) This reduction reflects the
Group's improved margin gnid on both of its faciities and strong
cash generation

The reported net finance costs of £3 5 mulion (2012 £4 6 mullion)
benehtted from an exceptional foreign currency gan of £1 2 million
which arose on the conversion of the equity proceeds into dollars to
finance the acquisition of Truth

In 2013 the component of the net finance charge that relates to
the unwinding of discounts on provisions was negligible {2012
£0 3 million)

Interest rates

The Group has entered into interest rate contracts to swap around
41 0 per cent of the Group’s outstanding debt from floating rates
to a weighted average fixed rate of 11 per cent until matunty

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s portfolio of swap contracts at
faur value amounted to a kability of £0 8 mulhon (2012 £0 6 million)
Any changes in fair value until matunty, classified as an effective
hedge, will be recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
with only the meffective portion taken through the income
statement

Taxation

The Group incurred an undertying tax credit on profit before
taxation of £0 2 million (2012 3 7 million) Taxation before deferred
tax rate changes, amortisation and imparrment of acquired
intangibles and exceptional iterns amounted to £7 6 million, which
represents an effective underlying rate of 26 7 per cent (2012
restated 301 per cent) and the Group paid £6 2 million (2012

£4 9 million) of corporate taxes in the year

Several factors impact the Group's taxation charge or credit,

including

> The Group’s operations are international in nature In 2013,
67 2 per cent of the Group’s trading profits before central cost
allocations were generated in the USA, 32 3 per cent generated
in the UK and 05 per cent in Schlegel! International’s overseas
temtories (depressed in 2013 by the trading losses made In
Europe) Each division 1s therefore exposed to different country,
state and local taxation rates and allowances

» The Group has a proactive capital investment programme in
each of its divisions These investments are amortised for tax
purposes in accordance with the laws relating to capital
aliowances in each country, which may not match with the
Group's depreciation policy

*  (Group companies sometines generate losses, in 2013 maost
notably in certain European junsdictions Where these losses can
be relieved or carried forward to be relieved in future periads, the
Group does so in accordance with the relevant laws, however this
treatment 15 broadly dependent on sufficient eligible taxable
profits being generated in the relevant jurisdiction

> Certain losses, most notably those related to the amortisation
and impairment of intangible assets and the wnte off of
goodwill ansing on acquisition cannot be relieved against
taxable profits As the Group has developed through acquisition,
these charges have a matenal impact on the Group's statutory
tax charge as a proportion of pre-tax profits

> Group share options and LTIPs will generate varying levels of tax
relef to the Group dependent on the vesting cutcomes of
awards and the share price as at the date of vesting Given the
share price appreciation over the life of the 2010 and 2011
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awards, LTIP tax relief had a materialimpact on the Group's
overall, tax charge in 2013

> The Group does not make matenal use of special Incentive
arrangements that might impact the tax charge such as research
and development tax credits or patent box structures

The Group conducts its tax affairs in accordance with the law and
arranges 1ts tax affairs in line wath 1its commeraial activities
worldwide As such, it follows the terms of double taxation treaties
and relevant GECD guidelines in dealing with 1ssues such as transfer
pricing repatriation of profits and the establishment of a taxable
presence In countries where it trades The Group seeks to engage
proactively with tax authonties in each of its key jurisdictions n
order to ensure that the Group's tax affars are clearly
communicated As far as practical, the Group aims to keep its legal
and commercial structures straightforward in arder to reduce risk
and minimise compliance costs

The Group's key transfer pricing arrangements compnse commescial
agreements relating to trade between Group entities, intra-group
financing and the recharging of shared-service administrative costs
Where Group entities do trade with each other, transfer pricing
arrangements are appropriate for the terntones involved and are
enacted on a consistent basis

Earnings per share

Underlying earnings per share increased by 19 3 per cent to 13 71
pence (2012 restated 10 31 pence) The ncrease reflects the
improvement In underlying operating profit from Amesbury and
Grouphomesafe, the incremental impact of the Truth acquisition,
together with early delivery of synergies, the reduction in finance
charges, and the shightly lower effective tax rate for the year, offset
by the increase In the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue

Underlying earmings per share for the year were also impacted by
the six week delay between the raising of the equity finance and
the date of completion of the Truth acquisition

Ringfenced underlying earnings per share, excluding the results of
the Truth acquisition and associated financing, were 13 02 pence
per share wmplying that the Truth transaction was earnings
enhancing in the first six months of ownership — again well ahead
of schedule

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations was 0 63 pence
(2012 restated loss per share 1707 pence)

Dwidends

A final dwvidend of 4 50 pence per share (2012 3 50 pence),
equivalent to £7 5 million, will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting In 2013, the Group declared and paid an intenm dividend
of 150 pence per share (2012 100 pence per share)

The total dividend declared for the 2013 financial year i1s therefare
6 00 pence per share (2012 4 50 pence per share), an increase of
33 3 per cent which equates to dwidend cover of 2 29x

In accordance with I[FRS only dividends paid duning the year have
been charged in the 2013 financial statements

Exceptional items

2013 2012

£'000 £ QOO

Transaction costs assoctated with M&A activity 4,515 966

Truth integration costs 1,434 -

Write-off of Truth inventory far value adjustment 2,304 -
Redundancy, restructunng, inventory

obsolescence alignment and warranty costs 2,650 1608

10,903 2574

Exceptional itemns of £10 9 million were incurred durning the year
(2012 £2 6 million} These charges are regarded by the Group as
exceptional as they are significant and non-recurring in nature The
exceptional tems principally concern the acquisition of Truth, the
associated transaction costs — including anti-trust fees — and the
costs associated with the integration

Of the £1 4 million Truth Integration costs, £09 million comprnse
non-cash write downs of discontinued products and product lines

The wnte-of f of Truth inventory fair value adjustment relates to the
IFRS requirement that imshed goods held in inventory must be
revalued to therr market value on acqguisiion As the inventory
acquired at the date of acquisition has been substantially sold in
the subsequent six months, this uplift in the book value has been
written off as exceptional as the cost 1s considered to be of a
one-off nature and 15 of a magnitude that would distort the
underlying trading result of Truth n the penod

Redundancy, restructuring, inventory obsolescence alignment

and warranty costs primarily relate to the restructuring of the
Eurcpean footprint and the changes made to the North Amernican
management team They also include a charge of £0 8 million
relating to changes made to the Group’s provision estimate for
slow-moving inventory held for greater than one year and followed
a review of the Group's overall inventory provisioning methodology
undertaken on acquisitton The Group believes that aligning
Tyman's inventory cbsolescence calculation with that of Truth is
appropriate given the enlarged Group's expernence of slow moving
and obsolete inventory

Materials and input costs

The raw material pricing backdrop was more bemign in 2013 than
we had expected coming into the year We track the pricing of all
raw matenals closely within the divisions in order to ensure we are
procunng at the best pnice for the quantities we consume Within
each major category of purchase we also monitor weekly at a Group
level the direction of pricing of certain specific purchases — UK
galvanised steel, European polypropylene and USA zin¢ Each of
these key raw matenals will also form a significant part of the raw
matenals that go Into the manufacture of those products we source
from third parties
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Steel (pro forma Group 2013 purchases ¢ £31 0 million) is our
largest raw matenal purchase across a number of different types
and grades Within this category, pricing of UK galvarised steel
increased by ¢ 4 O per centin the year Qil derivatives {2013
purchases ¢ £26 0 mulhon), are key to the manufacture of our seal,
extruston and injection moulded products Within this category,
European polypropylene prnicing increased by approximately 10 per
cent Zinc (pro forma 2013 purchases ¢ £8 0 million} has increased
significantly as a raw materiaf and compaonent for the Group since
the acquisition of Truth {n addition, we purchase around £12 0
milion of zinc based hardware from third party suppliers Within this
category, USA zinc pricing decreased by approximately 10 per cent
In the year

In addition, we track closely the pnicing of a representative basket of
those products we source from the Far East into the UK — which will
be influenced by local labour and overhead rates, raw matenial price
changes and the exchange rate Over the course of 2013, the pricing
of the basket decreased slightly — with the strengthering of the
Pound masking significant underlying local inflation

We were broadly successful with our continued policy of full input
cost recovery other than in Europe where overall market conditions
in 2013 were not conducive to price recovery beyond raw material
cost Increases

Acquisitions

The Group acquired Truth on 3 July 2013 for a consideration of
US$204 7 million The total costs of acquinng Truth were £8 2
mullion of which £2 4 million related to the raising of equity finance
and have been offset against share prermium and £15 milion
related to bank facility arrangement fees which will be amortised
over the two year life of the faciity The remaiming £4 3 million of
costs relating to the Truth acquisition are mcluded within
exceptional items

Annualised Returns on Acquisition Investment {(“ROAL") for the three
businesses of size acquired since 2011 are as follows

Original
acquisition Annuglised
Date of Investment RGAL ROAI since date
acquIsition 000 in 2073 of acquisition
Overland Dec 2011 $16 493 14 8% 99%
Fab & Fix Aug 2012 £15,217 204% 181%
Truth! ui2013 3206438 137% 137%

1 Truth ROAI for 2013 has been annualised

The Group requires that all acquisitions target an annuahsed ROAL
greater than 15 per cent in the first two years following acquisition

While Overland has not achieved the target in this timeframe, it had
a much improved second year under our ownership generating a
ROAI close to the target level and stampings remain a core part of
our North Amenican product offering Fab & Fix has performed very
strongly for the Group since acquisition and has already significantly
exceeded the required return threshold within 18 months of
acquisition Truth has made a strong contribution in its first six
months and fooks well positioned to exceed the required return
within 12 months of the date of acquisition

Amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets
Amortisation of £16 6 milhon (2012 £10 8 million) represents the
annual charge relating to the Group’s intangible assets, with the
increase due to the first six months’ amortisation of the intangible
assets created as aresult of the Truth acquisition In 2012,
alongside various adjustments to mtangibles and goodwill relating
to discontinued operations, we also recorded an accelerated
amortisation charge of £12 6 million and an impairment charge of
£20 3 milhion

In accordance with accounting standards, the Board has reviewed
the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets across the
Group in the hght of current trading and prospects and progress
towards achieving the divisions’ strategic plans The Boerd
concluded that the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible
assets remained appropniate and that no imparrment had occurred

Segmental analysis

Dunng 2013, the Board, in its capacity as the Group's Chief
Operating Decision Maker, reviewed the continuing appropnateness
of the Group’s operating segment disclosures The Group operates
through three clearly defined divisions — Amesbury, Grouphomesafe
and Schlegel International — each headed up by a Divisional CEQ
and each reperting to the Board, via the CEQ and CFQ, on aregular
basis Accordingly, the Board has concluded that the most
appropriate segmental analysis for stakeholders i1s based on the
three reporting dwisions with an allocation of Group central
overheads made to each division

For 2013, the Board belteves that it 1s appropnate that Truth should
be disclosed as an additional segment given its size and the fact
that throughout the year it was managed as a stand alone entity
with its own CEQ and management team

From January 2014, our North American businesses have been
managed as a single entity with an integrated management team
Accordingly, Truth has been incorporated into the Amesbury
operating segment from the start of 2014 and the 2014 results will
therefore not include Truth as a distinct operating segment

In the optton of the Board there is no matenal difference between
the Group's cperating segments and segments based on
gecgraphical splits Accordingly, the Board does not consider
gecgraphically defined segments to be reportable
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Liquidity and covenant performance

At 31 December 2013 the Group had gross outstanding borrowings
of £124 6 million (2012 £72 8 mullion), cash balances of £43 6
million (2012 £35 9 million) and undrawn working capital facilities
of £29 7 milion (2012 £29 & million)

Underlying net debt was £80 9 millwon (2012 £370 mulion) Under
IFRS, which reduces gross debt by the unamortised portion of
finance arrangement fees, net debt at the year end was £78 7
million (2012 £35 2 midlion)

At the year end, the Group had headroom on its banking covenants
ranging from 39 5 per cent to 60 5 per cent Leverage, calculated on
the same basis as our banking covenant tests, was 181x (2012

1 22x), well within our target range of 1 50x to 2 00x end
significantly ahead of the 2013 year end leverage target of 2 00x
that we announced at the time of the Truth acquisition

The Group mamntains sufficient cash balances and undrawn
borrowing facilities to finance allinvestment and capital
expenditure included in its strategic plan, with an additional margin
for contingencies

Shares in issue

The acquisition of Truth was part funded through a fully
underwntten placing and open offer of 32 8 million shares, which
increased the total number of shares i 1ssue to 170 1 million The
basic weighted average number of shares in 1ssue for 2013 was
152 8 milhon (2012 129 6 mullion) and the fully dituted weighted
average number of shares in 1ssue for 2013 was 1551 million (2012
131 8 millien} As at 31 December 2013 the Group had 0 6 million
shares in treasury (2012 74 milhion) and the Tyman Employee
Benefit Trust held 2 2 million shares {2012 02 million)

Cash flow

The Group saw very strong conversion of profit into cash during the
year, with aperating cash conversion of 1119 per cent (2012
restated 83 6 per cent), reflecting the tight management of the
working capital cycle by the divisions and despite the increased
mnvestments in capital expenditure made dunng 2013

Capital expenditure

In 2013 we continued our programme of targeted investment
across each of the businesses Overall net capital expenditure
increased to £8 1 million (2012 £6 8 mithon} or 1 3x depreciation
with notable projects including the reconfiguration of our UK
distnbution centre at EWS, the factory moves in Europe and North
Amenica and further investment in automation projects at Truth

Of this amount, intangible capital expenditure comprised £13
million {2012 £1 4 million) principally as a result of our investment
in Amesbury’s ERP system

Working capital

We retained our strong focus on management of working capital
withuin each of the dvisions, with the aim of achieving an
appropriate balance between commercial prionties and financial
efficiency Each dvision is allocated specific cash targets which are
monitored throughout the year and flexed according to demand
levels and the divisions are encouraged to seek out opportunities to
secure permanent reductions in working capital

Despite increased levels of trading and the impact of the Truth
acquisition, the overall movement of working capital in 2013 was

a net cash inflow of £12 4 millhion (2012 £2 3 million) of which
US$13 9 million related to Truth, which was acquired at the peak

of its working capital cycle While we will need to work through a
complete 12 month trading cycle at Truth before drawing absolute
conclusions, we were pleased with the significant reductions in trade
woarking capital we were able to secure at Truth when compared
with the prior year end position

Net trade working capital to revenue at the year end improved by
90 basis points to 13 2 per cent (2012 141 per cent) Inventories

on the balance sheet increased to £40 7 million as a function of

the acquisition {2012 27 6 million) with inventory turns improving
shghtiy to 4 8x (2012 4 6x), assisted by targeted inventory reduction
programmes that were put in place at a number of sites

Our credit management processes remained robust with bad debts
written off amounting to only O 1 per cent of revenues (2012 03
per cent) Continued proactive management of customer credit
which starts at the point of sale will remain a prionity for the
businesses in 2014 as mature markets recover and customers’
working capital needs increase

Pensions and post-retirement medical benefits

The Group's gross pension and post retirement medical benefit
obligations under IAS 19 at 31 December 2013 were £211 mullion
(2012 £24 2 milion) with the majonity of the movement over the
course of the year being due to actuanal gains following
reassessments of discount rates The principal schemes are located
in North Amernica where the pension scheme is closed to new
entrants and post-retwernent healthcare benefits are capped

Cash contnbutions made to the schemes during the year were £0 9
million (2012 £1 O mullion)

The 2013 revision of IAS 19 increased the net pension charge in the
income statement for 2013 by approximately £0 4 mithon, with a
corresponding increase i other comprehensive income The 2012
financials have also been restated to take account of the TAS 19
reviston, which increased the comparative s net pension charge in
the income statement and reduced the charge to other
comprehensive income by £E0 2 million

No pension or post-retirement medical benefit obligations were
transferred to Tyman as a result of the Truth acquisition
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Property

On expury of the lease on the Montreal factlity in the first quarter
of 2013, Unique Balance production was transferred to Statesville
In 2013, Schlegel International disposed of approximately one
quarter of the surplus Gistel site and i1s exploring potential options
for the remamnder of the site

Qur small Falkirk distnbution facility was closed during the year The
lease runs untit 2016 and efforts are underway to sublet the vacant
space

We have also greatly reduced the footpnnt of the Truth business
since acquisition, os further detailed in the Truth integration section

Smce the year end we have disposed of surplus property in Stoux
Falls, South Dakota for net cash consideration of US$1 7 millron,
realising a book profit on disposal of US$0 7 mullion

Summary 2014 guidance

Underying tax rates for the Group for 2014 are expected to be

¢ 27 - 28 per cent as aresult of the continued reductions in the UK
corporation tax rate The final rate for the year will depend on the
Group's mix of taxable profits Cash taxation rates are expected to
broadly be in line with the Group's underlying tax rate

Capital expenditure for the year 1s expected to be in the range
£100-£12 0 mulhon

Interest payable on borrowings for the full year under the existing
facilities 1s expected to be ¢ 3 0 -3 5 per cent — dependent on
leverage Subject to market conditions, the Group intends to move a
portion of its borrawings into longer dated funds during the course
of 2014 .n order to diversify its inancing structure Thus wall increase
the blended interest rate payable on the Group’s borrowings

Working capital trough to peak for the year is expected to be
¢ £15 0 million

2014 exceptional costs in respect of the integration of Truth into
Amesbury are expected to be in the range of US$1 0 million to

US$1 5 millon Cash costs incurred in connection with integration in
2014 are expected to be in the range US$2 25— US$2 75 million

LTIP purchases by the employee benefit trust are expected to be
£20-E30milion

Currency

As an international group, Tyman's reported results will be impacted
by exchange rate movements — most notably the US Dollar Had the
Group's 2013 results been reported on the basis of exchange rates
as at 28 February 2014, the impact would have been as follows

£ mulian unless stated

Currency uss Euro Aus$  Cther  Total
Average rate 2013 15646 11780 16224
Rate ot 28 February 2014 16665 12179 18634
% movement {(65)% (34)% (149)%
Revenue impact (78 (08 (1 (07 (104)
Underlying operating profitimpact (09) (1) (01) (01 (12)

The 2014 translational impact on the 2013 underlying operating
profit for Amesbury {iIncluding Truth for the full calendar year) for a
1 US cent change in the exchange rate would be ¢ £200,000 a

1 Euro cent change In the exchange rate for the European
businesses of Schiegel International would be ¢ £3,000,and a

1 Australian cent change in the exchange rate for the Australian
business of Schlegel International would be ¢ £10,000 In addition
there are transactional exposures for those divisions that purchase
or sell praducts in currencies other than therr functional currency

The Group aims to mitigate the translational impact of exchange
rate movements by denominating a proportion of total borrowings
in those currencies where there 1s a matenal contribution to
underlying operating profit

Financial reporting

This financial information has been prepared under IFRS and in
accordance with the Group's accounting pohcies There have been
no changes to the Group’s accounting policies dunng the year
ended 31 December 2013

Going concern

The Directors are confident, on the basis of current financial
projections and facibities available, and after considering
sensitivities, that the Company and the Group has sufficient
resources for its operational needs and will enable the Group to
remnatn in comphance with the finanaal covenants in its bank
faciities for at least the next 12 months Accordingly, the Directors
continue to adopt the going concern basis

(- b~Shwn-

James Brotherton
Chref Financial Of ficer
11 March 2014




Schlegel Australia

50th anniversary

During 2013 Schlegel celebrated its
50th anniversary in manufacturing
for the Australian market

In April 1963, Schlegel Australia commenced
production in @ small warehouse i Ultimo, Sydney In
the ensuing five decades, the company's products have
become an integral part of the Australian window and
door industry

In addition to being Australia’s first, and now only,
manufacturer of woven pite weatherseals the company
also designs and manufactures foam weatherseals,
extruded seals, window and door hardware, and
window and door operating systems

Having grown with the industry, Schlegel Australia has
built an enviable reputation in the manufacture and
supply of sealing solutions and high end hardware
praducts to the locat market

Tyman plc 27
Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Strategic report

Directors’ report
Financial statements




2 8 Tyman plc

Annual Repart and Accounts 2013

Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk Descnption Mitigation
Demand in the bullding products sector 1s Maintarning significant headroom between the
Market COI’]dItIOI’]S subject to the usual drivers of construction  Group’s net debt and its available banking facilities,
activity, Incduding general economic with the £30m revolving credit facility committed
conditions, interest rates, inflation, until March 20186, helps the Group to withstand
availabiity of credit, business/consumer future downturns in its markets The geographic
confidence levels, unemployment, and spread of our bustness and our ability to flex our
population growth This demand can be cost base helps to mitigate some of this nisk For
unpredictable and the Group has alow example, our European operations account for 9 per
visibility of future orders from its customers  cent of total Group sales Management prepares
The recent recessionary economic regular forecasts that focus on remedial action plans
environment experienced in Europe has required to deliver the desired performance during
resulted in reduced demand for some of the balance of the year Continuing to measure our
our businesses performance enables us to offer ndustry leading
customer service which improves customer retention
and wins new customers The continuing investment
In ERP systems will enhance management visibility
of operational performance and drive continuous
improvement in customer service and product
quality
Risk Descnption Mitigation
i The Group may face significant Some of gur markets are relatively concentrated
Compet|t0 rs competitton, both actual and potential, with two or three key players, while others are highly
including competition from global fragmented and offer significant opportunities
competitors with large capital resoursces for consolidation and penetration The Group
Competition in the industry is based on differentiates itself by its wide range of products,
range and qualty of products offered, a focus on setting industry leading standards for
geographical reach, product development,  delivery on time and 1n full, its geographical spread,
reputation and client relationships The strategic focus and reputation We aim to minimise
butding products market has become the impact of aggressive pnong by competitors
increasingly competitive, particularly where  through a low cost manufacturing strategy
overcapacity has been exacerbated by the  supported by our programmes of continuous
economic recession Aggressive pricing process improvements and building long-term
from our cornpetitors could cause a relationships with our customers based on value,
reduction in our revenues and margins quality, service and added value technical support
Risk Description Mitigation
The success of the Group will, to some The Group aims to build long-term relationships
LOSS Of m(]_|0r extent, be dependent on the continuation  with our customers based on value, quahity and
CUStomers of satisfactory commercial relationships range of products, industry leading service and value

with the major custorners of the Group

added technical support The Group continues to
focus on a bioad range of customers in a number of
geographtc markets The top 10 customers account
for less than 32 per cent of total Group sales
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Risk

Description

Mitigation

Raw material costs
and supply chain
failures

Risk

The raw matenals used in the Group's
businesses include commaodittes that
expenence pnce volatihty (such as oil
derivatives, steel, alumimum and zinc)
caused by changes in supply and demand,
and commodity market fluctuations The
Group's ability to meet customer demands
depends in large part on obtaining timely
and adequate supplies of components and
raw materials on competitive terms Faillure
by any of the Group's suppliers could
sigruficantly lmit the Group's sales and
increase its costs

Description

The Group continues to invest in and improve its
sourcing and procurement capability The Group
manages the risks associated with raw matenal
costs and supply chan failure through strong
long-term relationships with supphiers, economies
of purchasing, multiple suppliers and inventory
management In addition, the Group will mitigate
this nisk by increasing selling prices or applying
surcharges to recover unavoidable input cost
Increases

Mitigation

Business integration

The Group will continue to make strategic
acquisitions in the future, which wall impact
the performance and the nisk profile of the
Group The subsequent integration of
acquisitions involves further risks such as
the diversion of management, disruption of
operations and the retention of key
personnel in the acquired business

The Group mitrgates this nisk by extensive due
diligence prior to the acquisition and the
preparation of a detalled integration plan following
acquisition, covering all key areas of activity The
Truth integration process i1s led by the Executive
Directors and supported by dedicated project teams
that include specralised management from the
wider Group Rolling out our ERP investment and our
internal audit programme helps to establish best
practise in governance and control procedures

Risk Description Mitigation
i The Group's future success 1s substantially ~ The Remuneration Committee and the Tyman
Key eXeCUt|VeS dependent on the continued services and Management Committee mitigate the risk of losing

and personnel

Risk

performance of its Executive Directors and
senior management and its ability to
continue to attract and retain highly skilled
and qualfied personnel

Description

key personnel through robust succession planning,
strong recruitment processes, long-term
management incentives and retention smtiatives

Mitigation

Funding and
financial risks

The Group operates on a global basis and 1s
therefore exposed to transactional and
translational foreign exchange nsk aganst
Sterling 69 per cent of the Group's
underlying operating profit are denved from
US operations The Group 1s also exposed
to interest rate nsks, hquidity and credit
nsks

The Group dencminates some of its debt in foreign
currency to match some of its exposure to the
translattonal balance sheet nisks associated with
overseas subsidianes Ancillary bank facilities are
avallable to manage some of the foreign exchange
transactional nsks and interest rate exposure
through the use of dervative financial instruments
The Group maintains adequate cash balances and
credit facilities with sufficient headroom and
tenure to mitigate credit avallability nisk Further
information on these risks Is given in note 25 to
the Group's financial statements
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Employees

Diversity

All Tyman employees have the nght to work in an environment that
supports diversity and fosters a culture of dignity and respect

The Group 1s committed to supporting employment polictes and
practices that support equal opportunities non discnrmination, and
that comply with relevant local legislation and accepted
employment practice codes

Policies and practices of equal opportunittes and non-disciimination
will ensure that an individuat’s abulity, aptitude and talent are the
sole determinants in recruitment, training, career development and
progression opportunities rather than on the grounds of age, behefs,
disability, ethnic origin, gender, marital status, race, rehgion or
sexudl onentatron

In considering appointments to the Board and senmor management
positions, it 1 the Group's policy to make an appointment on the
basws of the candidate’s knowledge, skills and expernence with due
regard for the benefit of diversity Set out below is an analysis of the
number of employees by gender as at 31 December 2013

Male Fermnale Total % Male % Fernale
Tyman plc Board 5 1 6 83% 17%
Senior managers 100 18 118 85% 15%
Other employees 1622 977 2599 62% 38%
Total Tyman Group 1,727 996 2,723 63% 37%

Asat 31 December 2013, the Group had a female representation of
15 per cent in sentor management positions and 17 per cent at the
Board level This proportion is higher across the total workforce with
37 per cent of the profile being female

Sentor manager 15 per the defimition in Section 414C of the UK
Companes Act 2006

Traning, development and retention

The Board recognises that the long-term growth and enduring
success of the Group depends on its ability to attract and retain
talented and skilled employees Operational efficiencies across the
Group are enhanced by building and developing the skills,
competencies and motivation of all employees

Each of the Group's operating units are encouraged to implement
comprehensive employment policies designed to attract, retain and
motivate high calibre employees and to determine ways of applying
their knowledge and skills in a manner that best contnbutes towards
the success of the business

The Group encourages and supports the continuing professional
development and training of all its employees Employees are
provided with training to acquire and develop skitls that will enable
them to perform their duties and where appropricte allow for career
progression The Group also invests in a range of development

activities including National Vocational Qualifications and
apprenticeship schemes

The Group operates the Tyman Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP") in
which senior employees are invited to participate in the long term
future of the Group through share ownership and intends to explore
other all employee share plans The conditional annual awards of
shares under the LTIP are at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee

Communication

In order for our employees to gain an understanding of the role
they play within their local operations and that of the Group,
employees are regulary kept informed on matters relating to their
employment, recent business developments and other activities of
the Group and its divisians These communications are effected
through management briefings, internal communications, as well as
external announcements and press releases posted on the Group's
website

Health and safety

The Group 1s committed to ensuring a safe, clean and healthy
working environment for all employees. customers and other
persons with whom the Group has contact The Group actively
promotes a strong health and safety culture as well as encouraging
the collective pursuit of continuous improvement in health and
safety standards across all operations

Management and accountabihity

The Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") holds the overall responsibility
for the Group’s health and safety performance Through the Tyman
Management Committee ("TMC"), local management are tasked
with the responsibility of creating a health and safety management
system, and are held accountable for thewr

> hedlth and safety performance,

> adherence to the Group's health and safety policies and

> compliance with local health and safety regulatory requirements

Health and safety performance 1s reviewed at each weekly TMC
meeting A Health and Safety Report is prepared and presented by
the CEO to the Board at each of its meetings

Health and safety management system

It 1s essenttal that awareness 1s raised amongst all employees as to
theamportance of health and safety in creating a safe and healthy
working environment Local management's health and safety
management system

» dentifies and assesses risks,

> takes actions to reduce nisks,

> develops safe working practices and

> emphasises training and development

As part of the health and safety management system each
locaticn 1s audited to identify and assess the impact of any nsk
areas, Institute corrective actions and put the necessary plans in
place to address any deficiencies The Group requires that all
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acadents, dangercus inaidents and near-miss situations are
promptly and thoroughly investigated The details of such incidents
as well as the remedial and preventative measures taken are shared
between sites as a means of raising awareness and reducing the nsk
of repetition There 15 a requirement that any incidents invalving lost
time of greater than one working day are reported to the TMC and
the Board

Operations representing 49 per cent of the value of total Group
sales in 2013 have achieved accreditation for OHSAS 18001 (Health
and Safety) of for OSHA SHARP (the Safety & Health Achievemnent
Recogrution Program run by the Occupational Safety & Health
Administration of the United States Department of Labor) Most of
the other Group operations have programmes in place with the
obgective of achieving accreditation

2013 performance

The KPIs used to evaluate the Group’s health and safety
performance are the lost time injury rate and the number of Jost
time injunes

Both KPIs show a considerable improvermnent in the Group's health
and safety performance and the Group remains committed to a
pregramme of continuous improvement in health and safety
targeting further injury reductions in 2014

Ethics, anti-corruption and compliance

The Group 1s committed to conducting its business with integrity
and demands high standards of professional and ethical conduct
throughout its operations This will ensure compliance with the laws
and regulations in junisdictions in which the Group operates, protect
the business from unforeseen habilties and mantain a relationship
of trust between the business and its stakeholders

In all relationships and dealings, employees and other persons

actlng on behalf of the Group are expected to
engage in honest and ethical conduct, including the avordance
and reporting of any conflicts of interest

» - mamtain effective procedures to prevent confidential
information being misused or used for personal gain,

> advance the legitimate interests of the Group, having regard to
the Group's values and standards,

> uphold all applicable laws and regulations in junisdictions in which

the Group operates, focusing in particular on the implementation

of policies and procedures that ensure compliance with the Bribery

Act 2010 and the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act 1977 and the

prevention of bribery, corruption and fraud

mamtan a healthy and safe working environment for employees,

treat customers fairly, openly and honestly,

be intolerant of discnmination or harassment of any kind,

maintain high standards of integnty in business relationships

with suppliers, and

» encourage the use of those suppliers who operate with values
and standards equivalent to those of the Group

S Y]

The Group requires that formal and confidential whistieblowing
procedures are in place at its operating units and that these are
advertised locally Employees are encouraged to report any
suspected mcadence of non-compliance in accordance with local
whistleblowing procedures

Environmental

The Board recognises its responsibilities as a manufactunng concern
to continue to reduce the envircnmentalimpact of its activities In
addition, the Group aims to develop and supply products to help
customers meet their own environmental objectives and the
demands of their customers and of government

The most significant areas of environmental impact associated with

the Group's operations are energy consumptton, waste to landfill,

the use of outer packaging and transport

> Process development the Group strives to design manufacturing
processes that are as environmentally efficient as possible and
monitors developments in alternative matenals and production
processes which may reduce the environmental impact of its
products Operations across the Group are encouraged, through
internal development and investment, to
> make use of recycled materials where possible,
> MINImIse resource consurmption and waste generation

through re-use and recycling,

> reduce harmful emissions
> reduce their global carbon footprint from transportation

»  Energy consumption the Group continues to invest in energy
efficiency measures such as ighting, improved heating and
cooling systems

> Waste to landfill the Group acts to minimise the amount of
waste sent to landfill by selling for recycling any waste that
cannot be used internally

> Quter packaging and transport the Group minimises the use of
outer packaging where appropnate and encourages the use of
returnable outer packaging formats The Group reduces the
environmental impact of transport through vehicle efficency
measures such as improved load fill, reductions in empty running
and route optimisation

The Group 1s committed to the mtroduction of environmental
management systems such as IS0 14001 Currently 15 of the
Group's manufacturing sites have achieved accreditation to the
environmental management systems standard IS0 14001
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Greenhouse gas emissions

The greenhouse gas ("GHG"} emissions generated by the Group's

operations present considerable nisks to both the Group and the

environment These nisks include

> The agricultural impact of the Group’s dependence on extraction
and use of raw matenals

> The potential disruption of the Group's operations and those of
its customers and suppliers

> Changes In the nature or distribution of consumer demand as
aresult

These risks can be mitigated through the Group’s conscious efforts
in mintmising 1ts release of GHG through its environmental
Inibiatives

The Group applies the World Resources Institute/World Business
Counail for Sustainable Development Greenhause Gas Protocol

A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard, Revised Edition,
as the basis for reporting its emissions and includes the faciities
over which it has operational contro! Thisis the internationally
recognised standard for corporate carbon reporting

As 2013 1s the first year the Group reported detaled GHG emissions,
no comparative informatton has been provided The Group has
compiled and disclosed emissions data relating to those ermission
sources that are considered to be withun the Group’s operational
control and over which the Group has responsibility Emission
sources falling outside the Group's operational control and other
Scope 3 emussions have not been collated and reported Ermussion
data for businesses acquired dunng the year has only been included
from the date of acquisition

Data on the actual consumption of combustible fuels (Scope 1), and
purchase of externally provided energy services {Scope 2} has been
collected from all matenal locations operated or controlled by the
Group In addition, process emissions ansirig from ather “"Kyoto”
gases have also been identified and included within Scope 1 The
consumption data has been converted into CO,e by using enission
factors specific to each identified Scope 1 source and by using
specific geographtc emission factors for each identified Scope 2
source

The Group has used revenue as its intensity ratio as this is the most
appropnate and relevant factor associated with our activities and
should provide an apprapriate basis on which to compare trends
over time

The following tools were used in converting the Group’s

consumption data into CO,e

> World Resources Institute (2008) GHG Protocol tool for
stationary combustion Version 40

»  World Resources Institute (2012) GHG Protocol toot for emissions
from purchased electnaty Version 4 4 August 2012

> World Resources Institute (2008) GHG Protocol tool for mobile
combustion Version 2 5 June 2013

Our GHG emissions, measured as the quantity of CO,e generated by
the Group's activities, for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
presented in the table below

GHG emissions

Scope Description {tonnesCO.e)
Scope1  Emissions that anse directly from our 8,005
operattons and compnse the combustion
of fuels and process emissions
Scoped  Indirect emussions that anse from our use 23939
of electnaty and gas
Total direct and indirect emissions 31,944
Intensity rabio £'000 of revenue per tonne CO,e 933

Community

The Group understands the importance of being a contnibuting
member of soclety and its impact on the long-term developrnent
and sustainability of the business The Group policy on donations
and community involvemnent 1s to support local educational and
charitable causes

Each operating unit 1s tasked with the responsibility of managing its
relationship with its local community This responstbility involves
the positive engagement and suppart of worthwhile projects and
programmes as a company as well as the volunteering activities
and efforts of its employees

Operating units and their employees participate in a vaniety of local
activities including projects with local schools and charnty events
Some examples of Group community activities include

[n North Amenca

* Monetary donations totalling US$59,000 to local chanities and
initiatives such as Local Chambers of Commerce, United Way,
Volunteers for Amenca, Make A Wish Foundation

» Local involvement and support of Habitat for Humanity,
participation in Red Cross blood dnives, donation of gifts to the
Community Chnstrnas Wish Tree, a community sponsored gift
dnive for needy families

In Eurcpe

> In the UK, sponsorship of Macmillan Cancer Support through a
seres of coffee mornings across all sites, raising £1,000 as well
as donattons to various other cancer chanties ncluding Lennox
Children’s Cancer Fund and the Sir Bobby Robson Foundation

> Adonation by Tyman plc to Lupus UK, the only national charty
supporting people with systemic or discoid Lupus, of £5,000 to
mark the end of the Group’s assocation with the word Lupus

> In Spain, a donation of €1,000 to the San Juan de Dios children’s
hospital in Barcelona for cancer research

In 2013, the Group made donations of £44,000 No political
donations were made
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Human rights

Hurnan rights 1s not considered to be a matenal risk for the business
owing to the fact that the Group’s activities are substantially carried
out in developed countries that have strong legislation governing
human rights The Group 1s considered to be in compliance with
appropriate legislation in the junsdictions in which it operates

In working with and duning regular reviews of our suppliers, the
Group always seeks to encourage suppliers to operate with values
and standards equivalent to those of the Group

Whilst the Group does not have a specific human nghts policy at
present, careful consideration will be made as to whether a speafic
human nghts policy 1s required in the future

Product integrity

The Group seeks to be honest and fair in its relationships with
customers and supplers, to source and supply goods and services
in an efficient manner, in accordance with specifications, without
compramising quality and performance

By providing customers with standards of goods and service that
have been agreed and by paying suppliers and sub-contractors on
agreed terms, the Group aims to
maintain and grow market share through customer satisfaction,
> achieve cost efficiencies through effective supply chain
management,
> source and supply goods and services that are reliable, safe to
use for their intended purpose and meet ndustry standards

Relationships with suppliers

Each division 1s responsible for negotiating the terms and conditions
of trade with supplers In the UK and North America, a large
propartion of product sourcing 1s conducted through the combined
activity of the Group’s Chinese operating unit

Through its Chinese sourcing operations, the Group conducts
annual quality assessments of its Asian supplier chain The quality
assessments are conducted by suitably qualified employees and
involves the scoring of strategic suppliers’ procedures and
efficiencies in respect of procurement, manufactunng and quality
controf

Quality management standards

[t 1s Group policy to maintain accreditation to the quality
management standard IS0 9001 and encourage operating untts
to gain accreditation to any specific standards required by the
markets served

IS0 9001 certification will ensure that operations maintain and
adopt efficient quality management systems that save time
and cost, improve efficiency, and ultimately improve customer
relationships

Currently, operating units comprising 92 per cent of the Group's
turnover have 1SG 9001 accreditation

Amesbury stays
SHARP

Two of Amesbury’s Sioux Falls companies
were recently recognised as a SHARP
work site.

SHARP, which stands for Safety and Health
Achievement Recognition Program, 1s an OSHA
Cooperative program that recognises small business
employers who operate an exemplary injury and illness
prevention program

Amesbury partnered with OSHA consultants out of
South Dakota State University (*SD5U") to achieve this
goal As a partner with Amesbury, SDSU does
inspections of the floor and recard keeping Upon
recewtng SHARP recognition, OSHA exempts the work
site from OSHA programmed inspections during the
period of the SHARP inspection

As at December 2013, there were only three certified
companies in South Dakota, of which two were
Armesbury’s Sioux Falls facilities
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Board of Directors

Jamie Pike

Non-executive Chairman and Chairman
of the Nominations Commuttee

Date of appointment

Louis Eperjes:
Chief Executive Officer

Date of appointment

James Brotherton
Chief Financial Officer

Date of appointment

Jarmie Pike (aged 58) became a Non-
executive Director and Non-executive
Chairman in November 2009

Background and experience

Louis Epeijesi (aged 51} was appointed to
the Board in February 2010

Background and expertence

James Brotherton (aged 44) was appointed
as Chief Financial Officer in May 2010

Background and experience

He was chief executive of Foseco plc, an
internaticnal business serving the foundry
and steel making industries, until its
acquisition by Cookson Group plc in April
2008 He led the buy-out of Foseco from
Burmah Castrol in 2001, which culminated
in flotation on the main market in 2005 Mr
Pike was educated at Oxford, holds an MBA
from INSEAD and is a Member of the
Institute of Mechamcal Engineers

His early career was as a consultant with
Bain and Co and A T Kearney before joining
Burmah Castrol in 1991 He rose to chief
executive of Burmah Castrol Chemicals
before leading the Foseco buy out He has
previously been a non-executive director of
two FTSE 250 companies, RMC Group plc
and Kelda Group plc, and s currently
chairman of RPC Group plc and the Lafarge
Tarmac Joint Venture

Committee membership

Mr Epernjesi has an extensive and successful
track record in the buulding maternials and
manufactunng sectors, most recently at
Kingspan Group plc, the international
bullding products business, where he was an
executive director on the main board and
divisional manaqing director of Kingspan
Insulated Panels, the Group's largest
dwision

Prior to joining Kingspan, Mr Eperjesi held a
range of senior management positions at
subsidiaries of Baxi Group plc, Lafarge
Redland pte and Caradon plc

Commuttee membership

Mr Brotherton joined Tyman as Head of
Corporate Development in 2004 He was
previously a director in the Investment
Banking Division of Citigroup, having also
worked for HSBC and Ernst & Young He s a
Chartered Accountant

Committee membership

Remuneration Committee
Nomunations Committee

None

None
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Les Tench
Non-executive Director and Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee

Date of appointment

Martin Towers

Non-executive Director, the Senior
Independent Director and Chairman
of the Audit Committee

Date of appointment

Dr Angelika Westerwelle
Non-executive Director

Date of appointment

Les Tench {aged 68) became a Non-
executive Director and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee in December
2009

Background and experience

Martin Towers (aged 61) became a

Non executive Director, the Senior
Independent Director and the Chairman of
the Audit Committee in December 2009

Background and expenence

Dr Angelika Westerwelle (aged 51), a
German national, became a Non-executive
Director tn November 2012

Background and expenence

He has considerable expenence in building
products, having jomed CRH plcin 1992
where from 1998 unti his retirement in
December 2002 he was managing director
of CRH Europe — Bullding Products He was
also a non-executive director of the privately
owned family business Shepherd Building
Group Limited (Construction and
Engineering, Manufactuning and Property
Development) from 1994 unul 2004, a
non-executive director of Norcros plc until
2012 and the non executive chairman of
SIG plc from 2004 until January 2011

Committee membership

He was chief executive of Spice plc untif its
sale to Cinven in December 2010 Previously.
he was group finance director of Kelda
Group plc from 2003 until February 2008

Mr Towers 1s a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and began his career with Coopers &
Lybrand (now PricewaterhouseCoopers}
before moving to the retaler Ward White
Group plc He has served as group finance
director of McCarthy & Stone plc, The Spring
Ram Corporation plc and Allied Textile
Companies plc He was a non-executive
director of Homestyle Group plc from 2004
to 2006

Mr Towers 1s currently a non-executive

director of KCOM Group plc and RPC Group
plc and chairman of Norcros plc

Committee membership

She Is the managing director of Karlte Group
GmbH, a joint venture of five Euro-Asian
companies in the pet accessory market She
15 also the managing partner of Lanax
Management GmbH, an investment and
consulting company She acts as non-
executive director of Pinova Capital GmbH
and 1s a member of the German Monapalies
Commission

Dr Westerwelle has extensive operational
experience, including her previous roles in
mid-sized engineenng companies as CEQ of
RMG Regel-und Messtechnik GmbH and as
managing director of the Weidemann
Group She has also worked as a
management consultant for several years
with The Boston Consulting Group and Alix
Partners GmbH Dr Westerwelle graduated
from the University of Aachen, earned a
graduate degree from Cambndge University
and a Master of Public Admirustration from
Harvard University She later received her
Doctorate in Economics from the Aachen
Institute of Technology

Committee membership

Audit Committee
Remuneratton Committee
Nomnations Committee

Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee
Nominations Committee

Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee
Nominations Committee
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Tyman Management Committee

The Tyman Management Committee consists of the Executive
Durectors of the Company together with the following sentor

management

Kevin O'Connell

Company Secretary and Group
Fiancial Controller

Yeff Graby

President and Chref Executive
Officer - Amesbury

Brian Cann
Vice President - Finance and Chief
Financial Officer - Amesbury

Kevin O'Connelt joined Tyman as Group
Financia! Controller in February 2008 and
was appointed Company Secretary in 2011
Prior to this he worked ot Datamonitor plc
from July 2005 as group financial controller
and company secretary He has many years’
experence working 1n a plc head office
environment He is a Chartered Accountant,
having trained with Coopers & Lybrand (now
PricewaterhouseCoopers)

Jeff Graby was appointed President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Amesbury
Group In January 2014, following the
acquisition and integration of Truth
Hardware with Amesbury He was appointed
President and Chief Executive Officer of
Truth Hardware in Apnil 2012 Mr Graby has
an extensive and successful background
managing global manufacturing companies
and has held various senior positions in his
career Before joining Truth Hardware, Mr
Graby was President of FES Systems (a
company owned by GEA Group AG) and
President/COO of RAM Industnes LLC {a
company owned by Schneider Electnc) Mr
Graby has a Bachelor of Science in
Mechantcal Engineering

Brian Cann was appointed the Vice
President — Finance and Chief Financial
Officer of Amesbury in August 2012 He
previously worked for such companies as
General Electric ("GE"}), Fidelity Investments,
and Concentra Integrated Services in
several management capacities Maost
recently, Mr Cann worked in the bio-
discovery business of PerkinElmer, Inc a
USs$2 billion diversified environmental
health and safety business

Mr Cann 1s a seasoned finance leader with
more than 20 years’ expenence in finance
and accounting and trained in GE's Financial
Management Program Mr Cann graduated
from the Unwersity of Massachusetts

Darren Waters
Chief Executive Officer - Grouphomesafe

Peter Santo
Chief Executive Officer -
Schiegel International

Richard Swan
Group Finance Director — Grouphomesafe
and Schlegel International

Darren Waters joined Grouphomesafe in
March 2012 Mr Waters has a strong
background in the building products sector
Having graduated i chermustry from
Nottingham Unversity, he spent the early
part of his career with Mobil Oii Corporation
before moving on to senior management
positions with RMC Group and Tarmac As
Chief Executive Officer he is responsible for
developing the Group s brands within the UK
and Insh markets

Peter Santo Jjoined the Group in January
2012 as Chief Executive Officer of Schlegel
International Mr Santo has held vanious
management positions in manufacturing,
sales, marketing and general management
and developed his career through Pilkington
plc, BP Chemicals, Sentrachem Ltd and
Kingspan Group

Prior to joining Tyman, in 16 years with
Kingspan, Mr Santo held a number of senior
general management roles, most recently
managing director of the Door Components
business in Belgium and head of the
Benchmark architectural facades business in
the UK Mr Santo has a Masters Degree in
Chemical Engineening

Richard Swan joined Schlegel in 2007 and 1s
responsible for Finance and IT for
Grouphomesafe and Schlegel International
His career has largely been in finance and he
has many years’ expenence working in the
defence sector, wines and spirits, as well as
the multinational environment for a FTSE
100 packaging company He s a Chartered
Management Accountant and has a Masters
Degree in Finance




Directors’ report

Review of the business

The revtew of the business along with the key performance
—indicators used to monitor performance are set out on pages 10 to

26, which are incarporated into this report by reference

Pnincipal activities

The principal activities of the Group are unchanged from last year
The Group 15 a leading international suppher of bulding products to
the door and window industry The Company Is a holding company

Business review

A description of the Group's strategy and business modelis given on
pages 7 to 9 A review of the Group’s development and
performance, ncluding financial performance and the key financial
performance indicators dunng the year ended 31 December 2013,
its position at that date and the outlook forthe Group can be found
on pages 10to 26 A description of the principal nisks and
uncertamnties facing the Group can be found on pages 28 and 29
Information concerning environmental matters employees, social,
community and human rights 1ssues are included in the Corporate
social responsibility report on pages 30 to 33 Detalls of the key
financial and non financial performance indicators are set out on
pages 12 to 15 The information that fulfils the requirements of the
Business review referred to above 1s to be treated as part of this
report

Results and dividends
The total Group profit for the year after taxation amounted to
£956,000 (2012 £15 241,000 restated)

The 2012 final dvidend of 3 50 pence per ordinary share, which
amounted to £4,511,000, and the 2013 intenm dvidend of

1 50 pence per ordinary share, which amounted to £2,528,000, were
paid in the financral year ended 31 December 2013 The Board 1
recommending a final dvidend of 4 50 pence per ordinary share
(2012 3 50 pence} to be paid on 21 May 2014, subject to approval
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting ("AGM ) of the
Company on 16 May 2014, to shareholders on the register on 22
April 2014 The ex dvidend date will be 16 April 2014 This brings the
total dividends for 2013 to 6 00 pence per ordinary share

{2012 4 50 pence)

Directors

The names and biographical detarls of all the current Directors are
set out on pages 34 and 35 There were no changes to the Board up
to the date of this report and all the Directors served throughout the
penod

Except for their shareholdings, the Non executive Directors are
entirely independent There were no contracts subsisting during or
at the end of the year in which a Director was or 1s matertally
interested The Company mamntans a policy of insurance against
Directors’ and Officers’ labilities

A description of the Board’s methed of operation, its work during
the year and that of its committees, 1s given in the report on
Corporate governance on pages 40 to 44 Details of the Directors’
remuneration, notice periods under their service contracts or terms
of appointment and theirinterests in the share capital of the
Company are shown in the Remuneration report on pages 48 to 65
The service contracts for Executive Directors and terms of
appointment for Non-executive Bhrectars are avaitable for
inspection at the Company’s registered of fice and at the AGM
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Re-election of Directors

The Company's Articles of Assocration ("Articles™) require that any
Director who has been appainted by the Board since the last AGM
must retire from office but s eligible to subrmit themself for election
by the shareholders The Articles require that all Directors are
subject to re election at intervals of no more than three years
However, in accordance with best practice under the UK Corporate
Governance Code, each Director will stand for re-election at each
Annual General Meeting Accordingly, Mr Pike, Mr Eperjesi, Mr
Brotherton, Mr Tench, Dr Westerwelle and Mr Towers will offer
themselves for re election at the 2014 Annual General Meeting

Share capital

On 23 May 2013, the Group completed the fully underwntten firm
placing and open offer of ardinary shares as part of the funding for
the acquisition of Truth Hardware (“Truth") Gross proceeds of £73 4
million were raised through the sale of 6 864 000 treasury shares
and the 1ssue of 32,816,904 new ordinary shares at the issue price
of 185 pence per share Share 1ssue costs of £2 4 million were
incurred and netted against share premium

On 8 July 2013, the Company's shares were admitted to the
premium segment of the Official List and to trading on the Marn
Market of the London Stock Exchange Trading in the Company's
ordinary shares on AIM was cancelled simultaneously

The Company had 170,104,385 ordinary shares of 5 pence each in
1ssue at 31 December 2013 Full details of the Company’s 1ssued
share capital, including the nights, obligations and restrictions
attaching to the shares are set out In note 22 to the financial
statements

Financing

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of retained
prefits, equity and borrowings The Group does not trade in financial
instruments

0n 1 July 2013, the Group drew down US$100 million under a new
multicurrency loan facility for the purposes of funding the Truth
acquisition The facility extends to and 1s repayable in full on 30
June 2015 and 1s unsecured Full details of the Group's borrowing
facilities are set out in note 17 to the financial statements

The main risks ansing from the Group’s borrowings are market risk,
interest rate nsk, iquidity risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
nsks and the policies, which have been applied throughout the year,
are set out 1N note 25 to the financial statements

Acquisition

On 3 July 2013, the Group completed the acquisition of Truth for a
net cash consideration of U5$204 7 million from Melrose Industries
plc Truth s a manufacturer of operating hardware for residential
and hkght commeraal windows and doors in North America and
compnises the US-based Truth Corpoeration {located in Owatonna,
Minnesota), where the business 1s headquartered, and the
Canadian-based Atlas (located in Brampton, Ontario) Full details of
the Truth acquisition are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements

The acquisition was funded from a combination of the net proceeds
of the firm placing and placing and open offer of ordinary shares,
new borrowings and the Group’s existing cash reserves
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Directors’ report continued

Purchase of the Company’s own shares

A resolution concerning the purchase of the Company’s own shares
was approved at the AGM on 24 June 2013 The Directors believe
that the Company should continue to have an authonty to purchase
shares of the Company They will therefore propose a special
resofution, iIn accordance with best practice, at the forthcoming
AGM to obtan authonty to make market purchases up to the date
of the AGM 1in 2015 The authority will be limited to 14 99 per cent
of voting shares in 1ssue (that 15, excluding shares held in Treasury)

Allotment of shares

The Compantes Act 2006 {"the Act”) provides that the Directors
may not allot ordinary shares unless authonsed to do so by the
Company in general meeting or by its Articles At the forthcoming
AGM the Directors will seek renewal, for a further penod expinng at
the earlier of the close of the next Annual General Meeting or 16
August 2015, of the authornity previously granted to the Directors at
last year's Annual Generat Meeting held on 24 June 2013

The Act gives holders of ordinary shares, with imited but important
exceptions, certan nghts of pre emption on the 1ssue for cash of
new equity secunties The Directors believe that it is in the best
interests of the Company that, as in previous years, the Board
should have imited authonty to allot some shares for cash without
first having to offer such shares to existing shareholders The
Directors’ current authonty expires at the close of the forthcoming
AGM and, accordingly, will seek to renew this authonty on similar
terms for a further penod, expinng at the earher of the close of the
next Annual General Meeting or 16 August 2015

Substantial shareholders

In addition to the holdings of the Directors described in the
Dwrectors’ remuneration report, at the latest practicable date before
publication of this report the Company had been notified of, or had
identified, the following direct or indirect interests comprnising 3% or
more of Its voting share capital {the 1ssued share capital less shares
held by the Company in Treasury)

Ordinary shares %
F&C Asset Management (UK} 18 985155 1120
Standard Life Investments 18.400,985 1085
Aviva Investors 15 844 608 935
BlackRock Investment Management 10,213,784 603
Threadneedle Investments 8703828 513
GVO Investment Management 7.388,383 436
GMO 6575837 388

Creditors payment policy

Group operating comparues are responsible for agreeing the terms
and conditions under which business transactions with thewr
supplers are conducted It s Group policy that payments to
suppliers are made in accordance with alf relevant terms and
conditions Creditor days for the Group have been calculated at 78
days (2012 66 days} The Company, as a holding company, did not
have any amounts owing to trade creditors at 31 December 2013
(2012 ENIl)

Financial risk management

A statement on the financial sk management cbjectives, policies
and other matters in relation to the use of financial nstruments is
set out In note 25 to the Group financial statements

Safety, health and the environment

The Board recognises that the highest standards in safety, health
and environmental issues are an essential part of sound business
practice The Board 1s committed to improving the impact on the
environment from any of its operations and to iIncorparating the
principles of sustainable development A full description of the
Group's policies with respect to health and safety and the
environment are given in the Corporate social responsibility report
on pages 30 to 33

Greenhouse gas (“GHG"”) emissions
Details of the Group's GHG emissions for 2013 are set out in the
Carporate social responsibility report on pages 30 to 33

Employees

The Group's excellent performance would not be possible without
employees of the highest calibre with the motivation to perfarm to
their full potential The Group operates on a decentralised structure,
reflecting the orgamisation of the Group This underscores our belief
that locahsed teams, operating under common principles are best
equipped to deal with the varying cultures, operating structures and
geographic locations that exist in the Group

Each operating entity in the Group Is encouraged to implement
comprehensive employment policres designed to attract retain and
motivate the highest quality of staff and to determine ways in
which their knowledge and skills can best contribute towards the
success of the business

We are committed to ensuring that all our employees are treated
equally, regardless of gender, age, colour, nationality, ethric ongin,
race, disability, mantal status, sexual onentation or religion We are
committed to reqular communication and consultation with our
employees and we encourage employee involvement in our
performance Each company in the Group endeavours to provide
equality of opportunity in recruiting, tramning, promoting and
developing the careers of disabled people

A full descniption of the Group's policies with respect to ethics,
communication, traintng and development in respect of the Group's
employees is given in the Corporate socal responsibility report on
pages 30to 33

Corporate governance statement

The corporate governance statement on comphance with the UK
Corporate Governance Cede ("the Code"), and information on how
the Company has applied the Main Principles of the Code In
accordance with the Listing Rules and section 7 2 of the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authonty and
other corporate governance matters, can be found in the Corporate
governance report on pages 40 to 44, the Audit Committee report
on pages 45 to 47 and the Remuneration Committee report on
pages 48 to 65 which are to be treated as part of this report




Going concern

The Group s current activities, and the factors likely to affect its
future development and performance are discussed in the Business
review on pages 10 to 26 and the principal nsks are set out on pages
28 and 29 The financial position of the Group, its cash flows,
hgquidity position and borrowing facilities are described in the
Financial review on pages 22 to 26 In addition, note 25 to the
financial statements sets out the Group's objectives and policies for
managing its capital, its financial nisk, details of its inancial
instruments and hedging activities, and its exposures to credit and
hgquidity nisk

The Directars have reviewed the Group's budget and cash flow
forecasts On the basis of this review, and in the light of the current
financial position and the existing borrowing facilities, the Board
believes It 1s approprate to continue to adopt the going concern
basis in prepanng the Annual Report and Accounts, as stated in the
Directors’ responsibilities statement on page 43

Auditors and disclosure of information to auditors

The Directars who held office at the date of approval of this
Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are aware, there 1s no
relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are
unaware and each Director has taken all the steps that they ought
to have taken as Director to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are
aware of that information

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (*PwC"), have indicated
their willingness to continue in office, and a resolution that they be
re-appointed will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

Financial reporting

The Annual Report and Accounts and the Intenm Report are
intended to provide a balanced and clear assessment of the Group’s
past performance, present position and future prospects A
statement by the Directors on their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements 1s given on page 43 and a statement by the
auditors on therr respansibilities 1s given on page 69
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Annual General Meeting

The Notice of the Company’s AGM to be held on 16 May 2014 and
related explanatory notes accompany this Annual Report and
Accounts As mentioned above, all the Directors are submitting
themnselves for re-election The other business to be considered at
the AGM 15 to renew the Directors’ authority to allot shares, to
disapply pre-emption nights in certain imited aircumstances and to
purchase its own shares and other routine matters

Further information on these resolutions is given in the explanatory
notes to the Notice of AGM

By order of the Board
Kevin O’Connell
Company Secretary
11 March 2014

Company registration number 02806007
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Corporate governance

In accordance with the Financial Conduct Authority UK Listing Rules a statement describing how the Company has applied the Main
Principles contained in the September 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code (the "Code”) issued by the Financial Reporting Council ¢ FRC”)
(avallable at www frc org uk) and the statements required by sections 71 and 7 2 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules are set out In
this report together with the Directors’ report, Business review, Corporate social respansibility report and the Remuneration report

Statement of compliance
The Company has applied the man principles of the Code and complied with its detailed provisions throughout the pertod under review
We detail below how, in practice, the Company has applied these principles and complied with the detailed provisions

The Board

How the Board operates

The Board meets regularly and 1s responsible for the overall leadership, strategy, development and control of the Group in order to achieve
its objectives for continued earnings growth and to enhance shareholder value The Board sets the Group's strategic aims, ensures that the
necessary financial and human resources are in place for the Group to meet its objectives, reviews management performance and ensures
that high ethical standards of behaviour are followed The Board also ensures that there 15 an effective system of controls to safeguard the
Company’s assets and to enable nisks to be properly assessed and managed

The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for it and this includes the following

Responsibiity for the overall management of the Group, including monitoning the Group's operating and financial performance

Approval of the Group's long-term objectives, commercial strategy and annual budgets

Making changes to the Group’s capital, legal and corporate structure

Approval of the half-yearly report, Intenm management statements, the preliminary results announcement of the final results and the

Annual Report and Accounts

Approval of the dividend policy and declaration of any interim and final dividends

Approval of accounting and treasury policies, the Group's internal control systems and risk management strategy

Approval of significant acquisitions and disposals and material capital investments

Approval of significant borrewing facilities and other matenal contracts and transactions

Approval of resolutions to be put forward for shareholder approval at a general meeting and all commumications with shareholders and

the market

»  Managing membership and approving adequate succession planning for the Board

> Responsibility for the Group corporate governance, determining the remuneration policy of the Group and determining Directors’
remuneration

> Approval of the Group’s health and safety and sustainability and environmental policies

O

L "

Matters not specifically reserved for the Board and the day-to day management of the Group are delegated to the Executive Directors

To enable the Board to discharge its duties, all Directors receive appropniate and timely mfermation The Company Secretary distnbutes
briefing papers to all Directors in advance of Board meetings All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who 15 responsible for ensunng that Board procedures are followed and that applicable rules and regulations are complied with
The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary 1s a matter for the Board as a whole In addition, procedures are in place to
enable the Directors to obtain independent professionat advice in the furtherance of their duties, if necessary, at the Company’s expense

Board composition

The Board comprises two Executive and four Non-executive Directors and the names and biographical details of all the current Directors
are set out on pages 34 and 35 Allthe current Directors served throughout the year ended 31 December 2013 and there were no changes
to the Board

Both Mr Eperjesi and Mr Brotherton are engaged exclusively on the Company's business and have no outside interests that conflict with
their responsibilities to the Company The Board considers alf the Non-executive Directors to be independent

The Nominations Committee 1s responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board {(including skills, knowledge,
experience, iIndependence and diversity) and making recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes The Board actively
encourages diversity and equal opportunities throughout its business and applies the saume principtes to Board appointments Drversity in
all areas be it gender, race, skills or background are a key part of strong and effective achievement There 1s currently one female Director
on the Board and the Nominations Committee will consider boardroom diversity in future successton planming and will establish a formal
pohcy for this in the coming year
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Board meetings
Duning the year ended 31 December 2013, the number of Board and committee meetings held and attended by ther members was as
follows - -

Auvdit Nominations

Board ratlon Committee Commuttee Committee
Number of Number Number of Number Number of Number Number of Number
Drrector meetlngs attended meelings astended meetings attended meetings attended
James Brotherton 10 10 n/a nfa n/a nfa nfa nfa
Louis Eperjesi 10 10 n/a n/a n/a nla n/a n/a
Jamie Pike 10 10 4 4 n/a nfa - -
Les Tench 10 10 4 4 3 3 - -
Martin Towers 10 10 4 4 3 3 - -
Angelika Westerwelle 10 9 4 4 3 3 - -

Dunng 2013 the Board visited three of the Group’s operating units, namely Fab & Fix in Coventry in the UK Schlegel in Hamburg, Germany
and Truth in Minnesota in the US In addition, the Board attended the Group wide management conference held dunng 2013

The man areas of business dealt with by the Board duning the year, other than routine matters, included

> Approving the fully underwritten firm placing and open offer of ordinary shares to raise gross proceeds of £73 4 million as part of the
funding for the acquisition of Truth

> Approving a US$100m multicurrency loan facility to partly fund the Truth acquisition

> Approving the acquisition of Truth from Melrose pic

> Approving the admission of the Company s shares to the premium segment of the Cfficial List and to trading on the Main Market of the
London Stock Exchange

> Monitoring the integration of Truth with Amesbury in the US

> Monitoring the nsks faced by the Group including the macro-economic environment in the US, UK and the Eurozone, and movements in
commodity raw material input prices

> Continued development of the Group's strategy and objectives including explonng opporturittes for further organic and acquisitive
growth

> Recewved and reviewed presentations from management on US structural reorganisation, patent and intellectual property management
process, attractiveness of global markets, Schlegel Internationat product strategy and the Group's M&A strategy

Chairman and Chref Executive Officer

The roles of the Charman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly defined and approved by the Board The Chairman is responsible for

the leadership and effective running of the Board and its decision-making processes, for setting the highest standards of corporate

governance, for setting its agenda and the style and tone of Board discussions The Chairman’s role includes

> leading the Board in determining the strategy and the overall objectives of the Group, white ensunng that the Board determines the
nature and extent of the significant risks associated with implementing this strategy

> creating the conditions to maximise overall Board and individual Director effectiveness,

»  ensunng effective communication with shareholders and safeguarding their interests,

> ensunng that Directors keep their skills, knowledge and famihanty with the Group up to date while ensuring they receive accurate timely
and clear information, and

> regularly considering succession planning and the composition of the Board

The Chief Executive Officer 15 responsible for the day to day management of the Group, provides leadership for the executive team and
develops and implements the Group's strategic objectives He 15 assisted by the Tyman Management Committee The Chief Executive does
not have any external directorships

The Chief Financial Officer

The Chief Financial Officer 15 responsible for the financial reperting and management of the Group In addition to the iinance, audit, tax
and treasury functions, he 1s also jaintly responsible with the Chief Executive Officer for the Group’s M&A strategy, and investor relations
The Chief Finanaial Officer does not have any external directorships

The Senror Independent Director

Mr Towers was the Senior Independent Director throughout the year under review and up to the date of this report The Seniar
Independent Director is available to enable shareholders o voice any concerns which may not be appropnate for discussion through the
normal channels of Chairman, Chief Executive Officer or Chief Finanaial Officer The Sensor Independent Drrector aiso leads the Chairman'’s
appraisal, serves as an intermedhary for the other Directors with the Chairman as necessary and acts as a sounding board for the Chatrman
as required
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Non-executive Directors

Independent Non-executive Directors compnised 60 per cent of the
Board, excluding the Chairman The Board believes that the
Non-executive Directors possess strong independent character and
Judgement and bring a wide range of business expenence in some
areas related to and in other areas complementary to the activities
of the Group The Board considered that all the Non-executive
Directors met the cnteria for independence set out in provision B 11
of the Code and there were no other relationships or circumstances,
including other common directorships among the Directors, which
were likely to affect, or could appear to affect, the Directors’
Judgement

Directors' insurance cover

The Company maintains, at its expense, a Directors’ and Officers’
hability insurance policy to afford an indemmnity in certain
circumstances for the benefit of Group personnel including, as
recommended by the Code, the Directors This insurance policy
does not provide cover where the Director or Officer has acted
fraudulently or dishonestly

Board performance

Following the admussion of the Company’s shares to the Official List
and to trading on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange,
the Board reviewed and revised its Board performance appraisal
process Areview of the Board's performance and that of the
individual Directors commenced in January 2014, with the help of
an external facilitator, Independent Audit Limited, a firm of
specialist board governance consultants Independent Audit
Limited do not have any other connection with the Company

The review is based on a comtunation of questionnaires and
interviews Independent Audit’s Thinking Board questionnatre
platform was iniially used to gauge the views of the Directors and
certamn key executives (and to provide a benchmark for next year's
review) Interviews were subsequently held to follow up this exercise
Independent Audit also observed a Board meeting and considered
the quality of Board papers

The review covered key areas of Board performance including
> the Board's role,

composition, skills and dynamics

the focus of the Board’s work,

meetings,

information and decision-making, and

internal and external communications

B

The Board review was undertaken dunng February and March 2014
and Independent Audit Limited will report back therr findings at the
May 2014 Board meeting Any recommendations made will be
constdered by the Board and actions undertaken to improve the
effectiveness of the Board will be pertodically reviewed thereafter

Drawing on the Board review and using individual Director
questionnaires, the Charman will undertake a review of the
performance of each of the Directors The Senior Independent
Director will undertake a review of the performance of the
Charman after taking into account the views of all the Directors
The results of these indwvidual reviews and any improvements or
personal objectives will be discussed with the refevant Directors ona
one to-one basis

The Board intends to engage an external facilitator again in three
years' time Reviews in the intervening years will be conducted
internally, with the focus being on progress against the Thinking
Board assessment and the areas tdentified for iImprovement 1n this
year's review

Relatrons with shareholders

We maintain an active engagement with our key financial
audiences including institutional shareholders and sell sside analysts
as well as potential shareholders Duning the year the Executive
Directors had regular presentations to, and meetings with,
imstituttonal investors and analysts to discuss the Company’s past
performance and strategy The Board is provided with brokers'
reports, surveys on shareholders’ views and regular feedback from
shareholder meetings The Charrman and Non-executive Drrectors
have the opportunity to attend meetings with major shareholders
and expect to attend meetings at their request

The Board uses the Annual General Meeting to communicate with
private and institutional investors and welcomes their participation
Details of resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting
can be found in the Directors’ report The Company has set upa
website www tymanplc com which shareholders, investors and other
interested parties may access The website permits users to
download coptes of published financial reports, press releases and
Stock Exchange announcements

Board committees

The Board has an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee
and a Nominations Committee, each comprised of all three
Non-executive Directors The Chairman 1s also a member of the
Remuneration and Naminations Committees The existence of the
committees ensures that time 1s allocated on a formal basis to
consider relevant 1ssues Terms of reference for the Board and each
of the Board committees are available for inspection on the Group
website

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee considers and approves the
remuneration and benefits of the Directors The Committee also
determines the remuneration of the members of the Tyman
Management Committee and the Company Secretary and of the
service providers contracted to perform executive functions for the
Group as well as long-term share incentive and share option
schemes for all employees

The membership and work of the Committee during the year ended
31 December 2013 and details of the remuneration policy and
Directors’ remuneration packages are set out in the Directors’
remuneration report on pages 50 to 65

Audit Committee

The Audit Commuttee’s primary responsibilities are to monitor the
integnity of the financial statements and any formal
announcements relating to the Company s financial performance,
to review any changes in accounting principles and consider the
oppropriateness of accounting policies adopted by the Company,
review the Group s internal and external audit activity and review
and menitor the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems within the business The membership and work of
the Commuttee dunng the year ended 31 December 201315
described in detail in the Audit Committee report on pages 45 to 47



Internal control

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the Group's
system of Internal controls and for reviewing the effectiveness of
those contrals The Board, including the Executive Directors, reviews
the internal control framework on an ongoing basis

Procedures have been developed to safeguard assets against
unauthonsed use or disposition of assets and to mantain proper
accounting records to provide reliable finanaal information both for
internal use and for publication In accordance with the revised
version of the Turnbull Guidance on Internal Control, the procedures
are reqularly reviewed in the hight of an ongoing process to dentify,
evaluate and manage the significant nisks faced by the Company
The process has been in place for the full year under review and up
to the date of the approval of the Annual Report and Accounts The
procedures are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance agamnst
material misstatement or loss

Internal financial controls

The Group operates an effective group reporting and consolidation
system Duning the year further enhancements and updates were
made to the Group reporting and consolidation system which have
further strengthened the financial reporting and control process in
the Group

The Group has an established system for assessing the
effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal financial controls
This includes strategic business planning and monthly monitoring
and reporting of financial performance A detailed annual budget,
prepared by senior management, 1s reviewed and formally adopted
by the Board The budget and other targets are regularly updated
and regular business review meetings are held menthly involving the
Tyman Management Comimittee to assess performance The results
of these reviews are in turn reported to and discussed by the Board
at each meeting

Going concern

In order to satisfy themselves that the Group has adequate
resaurces for the future, the Board reviewed the Group’s committed
funding and liquidity positionss, its ability to generate cash from
trading activities and its ability to raise external funding in the
future The operational performance, as descnbed in the Financial
review on pages 22 to 26, the future plans for the Group and the
risks facing the Group described on pages 10.and 11, and 28 and
29, were alsoreviewed In addition, notes 17 18 and 25 to the
consclidated financial statements include the Group s policies and
processes for managing capital hquidity and credit nsks as well as
details of its financial instruments and hedging strategies

In performing their reviews, the Board acknowledged the current
level of growth prospects in glabal markets and has considered
vartous sensttivity analyses when assessing the forecast funding
and headroom requirements of the Group

Consequently, based on the reviews outlined above, the Board
concluded that both the Group as a whole and Tyman plc have
adequate resources to meet their operational needs for the
foreseeable future, and that it remains appropnate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparning the financral statements
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Nominations Committee

The Nominations Commuttee identifies and nominates candidates
for the office of Director of the Company It meets as and when
required and Is chaired by Mr Pike, except that Mr Pike would not
chair the Commuttee or attend it if it were to consider the
appointment of a successor Chatrman

The Committee 1s responsible for the following

> review and make recommendations to the Board on the
structure, size and composition of the Board,

> succession planning for Directors and other senior managers,

> evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and expenence of the
Board,

> prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for a
particular appointment

» dentify and norminate for the approval of the Board, candidates
to fill Board and senior management vacancies as and when
they arise,

»  review the time required from Non-executive Directors and
evaluate the membership and performance of the Board and its
committees, and

» recommend the re-appointment of Non-executive Directors and
re-election of Directors

Durning the year, as part of a Board meeting, the Nominations
Committee discussed and reviewed Board composition and
succession planning and reviewed the plan to restructure the North
American management organisation

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements in
accordance with appltcable law and requlations

Company law requires the Oirectors to prepare financial statements
for each finanaial year Under that law the Directors have prepared
the Group financaial staterments in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"} as adopted by the
European Unton (“"EU"} and the parent Company financial
statements in accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable laws) Under company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period 1n
prepanng these finoncial statements the Directors are required to
> select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently
> make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent, and
> state whether IFRSs as edopted by the EUJ and applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explatned n the Group and
parent Company financial statements respectively
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The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s

- transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
finanaial position of the Company and the Group and enable them
to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the Compames Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of
the Company’s website (www tymanpic com) Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissermination of
finanaial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurnisdictions

The Directors consider that the Annuaf Report and Accounts, taken
as a whole, 1s fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s
perfarmance, business model and strategy

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are histed an

pages 34 and 35, confirm that, to the best of therr knowledge

> the financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU with respect to the
Group and UK GAAP with respect to the Company, give a true
and fair view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit
of the Group and Company, and

> the Strategic report and Directors’ report contained in the
Annual Report and Accounts incdludes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position
of the Group, together with a descniption of the pnincipal nisks
and uncertainties that it faces

By order of the Board (DM

Kevin O'Connell
Company Secretary
11 March 2014




Audit Committee report

The Audit Committee 15 made up of the three Non-executive
Directors and meets at least three times a year The Executive

“Directors, the Chairman and representatives of the external and
nternal quditors also attend upon INvitation, certain meetings of
the Commuttee The Charrman of the Committee meets separately
with the external auditor, the internal auditor and the Group CFO
and his team during the course of the year

The Commuittee’s pnmary responsibilities are to monitor the
integnity of the financial statements and any formal
announcements relating to the Company's inancial performance,
to review the Cempany’s compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, to review any changes in accounting principles and
constder the appropriateness of accounting policies adopted by the
Company, review the performance and mdependence of the
Group’s Internal and external audit activity and review and monitor
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems within the business The Board is satisfied that Mr Towers,
Charman of the Audit Commuttee, has both current and relevant
financial experience

The Committee receives and reviews regular reports from the
external auditor the internal auditor and the Group CFO The
Committee 1s authonised to seek iIndependent advice should it wish
to do so, however it did not require this in 2013

The Audit Committee also reviews any non audit services provided
by the auditors In accordance with best practices and FRC
guidelines, the Company policy in relation to non-audit services 1s
kept under regular review, it outhines which non-gudit services are
pre-approved, which services require prior approval of the Audit
Commuttee and which services the auditor is excluded from The
prohibited non-audit services include bookkeeping and accounting,
internal audit, design or implementation of financial information
systems payroll, actuanal, legal and recruitment services Permitted
non-audit services requiring pre-authonsation include due dihigence,
tax planning advice on IT projects and advice on corporate and
reporting structures The Committee 1s satisfied that the provision
of such services does net in any way prejudice the objectivity and
independence of the auditors Professional firms other than the
auditors also provide tax compliance work and tax advice Fees for
permitted non-audit services can be pre-authonsed by the CFO for
fees up to £100,000 and by the CFO, after consultation with the
Charr of the Committee, for fees up to £400,000 Where fees for
permitted non-audit services exceed £400,000 or where the
aggregate of such fees in a financial year exceeds 100 per cent of
estimated Group audit fees for that financial year, the Committee
will review and approve these non audit services

Non audit fees and services are reported to the Commuittee
regularly Duning 2013 total non audit fees paird to PwC were 329
per cent of the annual Group audit fee, prinaipally reflecting the
work done by PwC in connection with the acquisition of Truth
Hardware where the use of the external auditors was necessary and
specifically approved by the Committee

The Committee was chaired by Mr Towers and while the
Committee’s terms of reference state that meetings shall be held
not less than four times a year, the Committee met three times
dunng 2013 and considered this appropreate to enable it to
complete its work in 2013 The composition of the Committee
remained unchanged during 2013 The work of the Committee
duning the year mcluded consideration of the following matters
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{1) Monitoring the integrity of the financial statements

mcludmg significant judgements
The appropriateness of Group accounting principles, pructlces
and polictes and changes to, and compliance with, accounting
standards on an ongoing basis

> Prior to recommending the publication to the Board of the
prospectus 1ssued related to the acquisition of Truth Hardware,
the Committee reviewed the financial and legal due diligence
related to the acquisition and appraoved the contents of the
prospectus

»  Prior to recommending their publication to the Board, the
Committee reviewed the half-year results for the six months
ended 30 June 2013 with the external auditor and compared the
results with management accounts and budgets, focusing on key
areas of judgement

»  The revtew, prior to adwvising the Board on whether the
Committee believes the Annual Report and Accounts far the year
ended 31 December 2013, taken as a whole, is farr, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company's perfermance, bustness
model and strategy In undertaking this review the following
cntical accounting policies and judgements were discussed with
management and the external auditor

Acguisition accounting

On 3 July 2013, the Group completed the acquisition of Truth for a
net cash consideration of US$204 7 mullion 1FRS 3 requires assets
and habilibies acquired to be recorded at fair value and to separately
dentify intangible assets from goodwill, nitially measuring each
group of intangible assets at fair value Groups of Intangible assets
mclude purchased brands and customer relationships There 15
Judgement involved in estimating fair vatue, particularly in relation
to identifiable intangible assets, which requires the Directors to
estimate the useful economic life of each asset and the future cash
flows expected to anse from each asset and to apply a suitable
discount rate Given the size of the Truth transaction the Commuittee
engaged BDO LLP to assist in performing the farr value exercise over
the opening balance sheet The auditor provided the Committee
with therr review of the fair value exercise and following discussion
the Committee was satisfied that the assumptions used were
appropriate and that the resultant fair values were reasonable
Cetails of how this acquisition has been accounted for are set out In
note 24 to the Group financial statements

Carrying value of goodwill and intangibles

As set out in notes 10 and 11 to the Group financial statements, as
at 31 December 2013, the Group had goodwill of £244 8 million
with intangible assets amounting in total to £109 6 million In order
to satisfy itself that these balances were appropnately stated, the
Commuttee considered the impairment reviews carred out by
management These reviews involve the discounting of the
forecasted cash flows of each cash generating unit, using
appropriate discount rates relative to the Company’s cost of capital
These assumptions are then subjected to sensitivity analysis The
auditor provided the Committee with their review of the impairment
review process and, following discussion, the Committee was
satisfied that the assumptions used were appropnate and that there
was significant headroom on all calculations thus obviating the
need for any impairment




"6 Tyman plc

Annual Report and Accounts 2013
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Provisions

The Group has provisions of £9 7 million as at 31 December 2013 as
outlined in note 19 to the Group financial statements which by their
nature, are uncertain and highly judgmental in nature The
Committee considered the nature of the provisions, the potential
outcomes, any developments relating to specific claims, and the
prior history of lease obligations, provisions and ¢daims in order to
assess whether the provisions recorded are appropnate and suitably
conservative The Commuttee discussed with management and with
the auditor the key elements of judgement to assure themselves as
to the adequacy and appropriateness of the provisions Following
thus discusston, the Committee was satisfied that the judgements
exercised were appropnate

Carrying value of inventory

As set out in note 13 to the Group financial statements, as at 31
December 2013, the Group had gross inventories of £470 millien
and prowisions for slow moving and obsolete inventones of £6 3
millien Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value, with due allowance for excess, obsolete or slow-moving items
Group management exercises Judgement in assessing net realisable
value and provisions for slow moving and obsolete nventory which
is based on current assessments of future demand, market
conditions and new product development initiatives The auditor
provided the Committee with their review of inventories and
following discussion, the Committee was satisfied that the inventory
valuation was consistent with our accounting policy and previous
practice and that the resultant valuation was reasonable

Carrying value of trade receivables

As set out In note 14 to the Group financial statements, as at

31 December 2013 the Group had gross trade recevables of

£32 0 million and provisions for bad debts of £2 1 million Trade
receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method, less appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts Provision against trade
recevables 1s made when there 15 objective ewidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in accordance with
the onginal terms of those recevables The amount of the write-
down 1s determined as the difference between the carrying amount
and present value of estimated future cash flows Group
management exercises jJudgement in assessing the amount of any
write downs required which 1s based on current assessments of the
creditworthiness of current customers The auditor provided the
Commuttee with therr review of trade recevables and following
discussion, the Committee was satisfied that the book value of
trade recevables was consistent with our accounting policy and
previous practice and that the resultant valuation was reasonable

Following discussions with the auditor, and the deliberations set out
above, we were satisfied that the finanaal statements dealt
appropriately with each of the areas of significant judgement The
auditor also reported to the Commuittee on any misstatements that
they had found in the course of their work and confirmed that no
material amounts remained unadjusted

In accordance with the Code, we also reviewed the Annual Report
and were able to confirm to the Board that, in our view, the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, was fair, balanced and
understandable and provided the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's performance, business model
and strategy

(2) Review the Group's internal and external audit activity
PwC were appointed for the first time as the Group's auditors in
2012, following a competitive tender process The 2013 year end
audit 1s the second full audit that PwC have conducted The
Committee 15 satisfied with PwC'’s performance, independence and
effectiveness and therr fees are reqularly compared with peer
compantes by the Committee Accordingly, the Commuttee has
recommended to the Board that PwC should be reappointed as the
Group's auditors at the AGM There are no contractual restrictions
on the Group with regard to PwC's appointment

The effectiveness of the external audit process 1s dependent on
appropnate audit risk identification at the start of the audit cycle
The Committee reviews a detailed audit plan from PwC LLP,
identifying their assessment of these key risks For the 2013
financial year the pnmary nsks identified were in relation to
acquisition accounting, the carrying value of goodwill and
intangibles The Committee reviews the work performed by the
auditors to test management’s assumptions and estimates around
these areas and assesses the effectiveness of the audit process in
addressing these matters when reviewing the audit ptan prepared
by PwC For the 2013 financial year, the Committee was satisfied
that there had been appropnate focus and challenge on the
pnmary areas of audit sk and assessed the qualty of the audit
process to be good

The Charman of the Committee also meets with the external lead
audit partner outside the formal committee process during the year
to provide additional opportunity for open dialogue and feedback
from the auditor without management being present Matters
typically discussed include the auditor’s assessment of business nsks
and management actwvity thereon, the transparency and openness
of interactions with management, confirmation that there has been
no restriction in scope placed on them by management,
independence of their audit and how they have exercised
professional scepticism

PwC, as auditor, report to the Commuttee on therr compliance with
the fundamental pnnciples of objectivity, integnty and professional
behaviour, including independence PwC use a global independence
system which provides real tme identification of independence
1ssues They have confirmed to the Committee that they have not
identified any threats to independence that would impact on therr
ability to perform their audit work The Committee reviews the
polrcy on auditor independence and nan audit services, and the
cansideration of the nature, scope and appropnateness of non-
audit services supplied by the external auditor




Duning 2013 the Committee considered it appropriate to augment
mnternal resources with external resources ta establish an internal
audit programme A specalist team from BDO provided internal
audit services to the Group to complete an internal audit
programme, visiting 10 operating units in the Group The
Committee have reviewed reports from BDO detailing their audit
findings together with divisional management responses and action
plans Progress completing these action plans will be reviewed
regularly by the Committee Future internal audit programmes will
be reviewed and approved by the Committee and will be structured
to ensure that every operating unit will have an internal audit visit at
least once every three years, with the largest operating units being
audited at least once every two years

{3) Review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems in the Group

The Board as a whale 1s responsible for the Group's system of
internal control, however, the Committee assists the Board in
meeting its obhigations in this regard The Commuttee’s review of
risk s driven primarily by the Group’s assessment of its pnncipal nisks
and uncertainties, as set out on pages 28 and 29 The Tyman Risk
Committee assesses the Group’s significant business nisks identified
at both operating entity and Group levels and how these are
managed The Chief Executive Officer in turn reports back to the
Audit Committee who discuss and review the work of the Tyrman
Risk Committee The Tyman Risk Committee, whose members
compnse the Tyman Management Committee, discuss and review
the various risk registers compiled by each reporting segment within
the Group

In order to ensure that the Commuittee fulfils its role relating to the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group s internal control system
the Committee receives reports from the internal auditors A major
element of the current nternal audit programme 15 the assessment
of the Group’s internal control system throughout the Group The
recommendations for improving internat controls are reviewed and
the follow-on action plans to implement iImprovements are
monitored on an ongomg basis by the Committee

Committee effectiveness

The effectiveness of the Committee is reviewed on an annual basis
by both the Board and the Committee itself and the Commuittee s
considered to continue to operate effectively and efficiently

On behalf of the Audit Commuittee

Martin Towers

Chairrman, Audit Committee
11 March 2014
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Remuneration report letter

Dear Shareholder

It 15 my pleasure to present the Directors’ remuneration report for
the year ended 31 December 2013

Background to the Group's remuneration policy

Qur remuneration policy seeks to achieve a balance between the
interests of our employees and those of our shareholders The
Group operates a simple remuneration structure for Executive
Directors compnsing base salary and benefits, a bonus plan
incorporating deferral of half of any bonus award for three years
and a single long term incentive plan, which provide a dear hnk
between pay and our key strategtc priorities

In additton, our Executive Directors are also required to hold Tyman
shares to the value of at least one year’s salary and a significant
proportion of their remuneration is paid to them in the form of
Tyman shares though our Executive Share Plans

Cur senior management teams arcund the world have
remuneration structures derived from those of the Executive
Drrectors to ensure a clear ine of sight between local performance
and Group objectives

Activities of the Remuneration Committee

The main activities of the Committee since the last report were as

follows

> assessed performance of Executive Directors and determined
annual bonuses for 2013,

> established the Executive Directors’ bonus arrangements and set
bonus targets for 2014,

v consulted with shareholders and shareholder bodies on the
structure and targets for 2013 LTIP awards and made the awards
to Directors and key senior management,

> consulted with shareholders and shareholder bodies on
amendments to histornic LTIP awards following the acquisition of
Truth and the associated placing and open offer,

> reviewed and revised the Directors’ service contracts to reflect
best practice for a Main List company

> reviewed remuneration benchmarking and set 2014 base
salaries and benefit packages for Executive Directors,

> codified the treatment of share awards for senior managers who
leave the Group and who are viewed as good leavers,

> considered remuneration market trends and corporate
governance developments and

> reviewed the revised remuneration reporting requlations and
prepared the Directors’ remuneration report

In addition, the Commiitee participated in the March 2013 FRC
Reporting Lab an the reporting of pay and performance — the only
AIM company to participate

Remuneration for 2013
Details of the remuneration decisions for 2013 are set out In the
Duectors’ annual remuneration report B

As highighted in the Chairman’s letter, Tyman demonstrated solid
financial performance in 2013, with good growth in the US and the
UK, and our key strategic initiatives progressing well Group PBTA
performance during the year was robust with achievement of £179
million for 2013 This was ahead of the target range, resulting in
851 per cent of the bonus relating to PBTA becoming payable

The Group’s cash collection in the period was very strong and was
significantly ahead of the Group's expectations at the tirme of the
announcement of the Truth transaction Accordingly 100 per cent
of the bonus relating to cash flow became payable Overall, this
resulted in the Executive Directors receving a bonus equal to 89 6
per cent of 2013 salary for the year, of which 50 per cent will be
deferred until March 2017 under the rules of the Deferred Share
Bonus Plan

The announcement of the Group's results for the year ended

31 December 2013 was the trnigger event for the vesting of the
2010 and 2011 LTIP awards Cumulative EPS over the period for
both the 2010 and the 2011 awards was 34 15 pence agatnst
targets of 32 40 pence and 34 20 pence respectively Therefore
100 per cent of the 2010 awards and 99 44 per cent of the 2011
awards will vest

Key remuneration decisions for 2014

The Committee consulted major shareholders holding ¢ 50 per cent
of share capital on proposed increases to Executive Director base
salanes and the CFQ’s cash allowance in lieu of pension Some
common themes emerged from these discussions there was
widespread acknowledgement that the Company had made
cansiderable progress under the leadership of the current Executive
Directors, that the Company had grown significantly in size and
complexity since their appointment in early 2010, and that as there
had been no substantive adjustment to Executive Director pay to
date, a substantial gap had developed between Tyman base pay
and market median levels

Following consultation with major shareholders, the Committee has
decided to phase-in salary increases to closer to median over two
years, subject to an annual review of each executive’s performance
and Company performance In line with these discussians, the
Committee set the CEQ's base salary at £334,000 per annum (c 25
per cent increase) and the CFO's base salary at £226,000 per
annum (¢ 11 per cent increase) from 1 January 2014 The
Committee also increased the pensicn allowance for the CFO frem
¢ 5 per cent of salary to 15 per cent of salary (the CEO’s cash
allowance remains 20 per cent of salary)

The second phase will be considered at the next salary review date,
which 1s 1in January 2015, and will take into account both individual
and Company performance This will include an assessment of the
successful integration of, and delvery of the anticipated benefits
from, the Truth acquisition which completed in 2013

To further strengthen aignment with shareholders, the Committee
intends to extend the time horizon of future LTIP awards to
Executive Directors through the introduction of a two-year holding
penod on vested LTIP shares (net of tax)




Remuneration disclosure

This report comphies with the requirements of the Large and
Medum sized Companies and Groups Regulations 2008 as
amended in 2013, the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code (September 2012) and the Listing Rules

The report contains two sections

1 The Directors’ remuneration policy report {pages 50 to 56)
This section contans details of the remuneration policy that we
propose will apply from the 2014 AGM subject to obtaining
shareholder approval at the AGM

2 The Directors’ annual remuneration report
This section sets out detals of how our reruneration policy was
implemented for the year ended 31 December 2073 and how we
intend for the policy to apply for the year ended 31 December
2014

At the AGM in May 2014 the Directors’ remuneration policy report
will be put to a binding shareholder vote and the Directors” annual
remuneration report will be put to an advisory shareholder vote

It 1s my hope that you find this a clear and comprehensive report
and { look forward to hearing the views of our investors on the
information presented here aver the coming months

Les Tench
Charrman, Remuneration Cornmuttee
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Remuneration policy report

Introduction
The Group's policy 1s to provide remuneration that reflects the contnibution of senior executives to the business, the performance of the
Group, the size and complexity of the Group's operations and the need to attract, retain, and incentivise executives of the highest quality

The Commuttee seeks to provide remuneration packages which are stratghtforward and easily comprehensible and which align the
interests of the Directors with those of the shareheolders The general principles underpinning the Group’s remuneration policy are that the
pohicy should support and incentivise the delivery of the Group's strategy while providing an appropriate balance between fixed and
vanable rewards

The key components of the remuneration policy and associated arrangements for Board members are shown below This pelicy statement
will be submutted for approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 16 May 2014 1If approved, the
policy will take effect from the conclusion of the 2014 AGM and remain in effect until the 2017 Annual General Meeting, or earlier if
amended by the shareholders

Remuneration at a glance

Current salary CEQ - £334,000 and CFO - £226,000
Pension allowance Maximum contribution of 20 per cent of base salary
Benefits Typically ife assurance cover, critical illness cover, private medical and dentel cover, car afowance and

professional tax and finanaal advice

Annual bonus 100 per cent of base salary, with 50 per cent in cash and 50 per cent in shares deferred for three years Targets
are usually 100 per cent financial but can have up to 20 per cent targeted on individual personal objectives

LTIP Normally nil cost options up to 100 per cent of base salary, but exceptionally 150 per cent Performance metrics
based on cumulative underlying EPS measured over a three-year penod, with a discretionary underpin Typically,
25 per cent vests for threshold performance (zero per cent below threshold) increasing pro rata to 100 per cent
vesting for stretch performance From 2014 new LTIP awards to be retained for two years after vesting, thereby
making a five-year holding period for an LTIP award from date of grant to permitted disposal

Executive Directors’ remuneration policy

Purpose and Iink to strategy Operation and opportunity

Base salary

To pay Executive Directors at a level commensurate  Base salary 1s pard monthly in ¢cash i the currency speafied in the employment

with their contribution to the Company and contract

appropnately based on skill, experience and

performance achteved The Executive Directors’ salanes are reviewed annually by the Committee which
takes into account

The level of salary paid 1s considered appropnate for > prevailing market and economic conditions

motivation and retention of the calibre of executive > scope of the role,

required to ensure the successfu! formation and > pay levels at companies of a similar size, internationality and complexity, and

delivery of the Group's strategy and management > company and indwvidual performance

of its business in the international environment in

which it operates In normal arcumstances, annual increases in salary will be imited to the general
annual salary increase receved by Group employees in the relevant Director’s
country of residence

The Cormmittee may consider t appropnate and necessary to award larger
increases, for example, In crcumstances where the nature or complexity of the
Group has increased materially or if an individual assumes significantly more
responsibility If there were a matenal change in business size or complexity {up or
down), then this would be reflected in the market comparability
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Operation and opportunity

To provide @ range of market competitive benefits to
encourage retentson and which enable an Executive
Director to perform his or her duties

Executive Directors are eligible for a range of benefits that may include

> Iife assurance cover,

> cntical illness cover

> private medical and dental cover for Executive Directars and their dependants,
> car allowances,

» professional tax and financial advice

Additional benefits may also be provided in certaun arcumstances which may
include relocation and assaciated expenses

Other benefits may be offered if considered appropriate, reasonable and necessary
by the Commuttee

Pension

To provide a market-competitive benefit for
retirernent which rewards sustained contribution
and encourages retentton

Eligible to participate in the relevant pension arrangements offered by the Group or
to receive a cash salary supplement 1n lieu of pension entitlement

The maximum opportunity, either by way of a contribution to a Group pension
arrangement or payment of a cash salary supplement, 1s 20 per cent of base salary

The Committee may amend the form of any Executive Director's pension
arrangements In response to changes i legislation or similar developments,
provided that the amendment does not materially increase the cost to the
Company of the penston provision

Annual bonus

To reward achievement of annual financial goals
consistent with the strategic direction of the
business

The maximum annual bonus opportunity for the Executive Directors 1s 100 per cent
of salary

Performance torgets ore set annually and relate {o the achievement of financial
and strategrc objectives

In normal arcumstances, the Committee would expect to set annua! bonus targets
100 per cent dependent on the achievement of defined financial performance
targets, however there may be arcumstances where the Commuittee feels it 1s
appropnate and necessary to have not more than 20 per cent of maximum bonus
weighted towards the achievement of indwidual personal objectives

Annual inanaal performance targets to date have been focused on profit and cash
metrics, however the Committee may elect to use different financial performance
measures In future years

The Commuttee retains the discretion to revise any formulaic bonus award
downwards or upwards in the event that an exceptional negative or positive event
occurs during the bonus year in question, however in practice would not expect to
revise any formulaic bonus upwards

Any bonus payable to Executive Directors under the annual bonus scheme is paid
50 per cent in cash and 50 per cent in shares deferred for three years under the
Deferred Share Bonus Plan {"DSBP") and is not pensionable
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Purpose and link to strategy

Operation and opportunity

Long term incentive plans

To align interests of senior executives and those of
shareholders in developing the long-term growth
of the business and execution and delivery of the
Group's strategy

To facilitate share ownership by Executive Directors
and other sentor management to provide further
alignment with shareholders

Executive Directors are eligible to participate {subject to selection by the
Commuttee) n long term incentive plans approved by shareholders

Awards made under long term incentive plans are not pensionable

The Tyman Long Term Incentive Plan (the “LTIP"}
The LTIP was approved by shareholders on 30 November 2010 and hasa
maximum life of 10 years

Awards are determined by the Committee at its discretion, with a maximum annual
performance share award under the current plan of 100 per cent of salary or

150 per cent of salary in exceptional circumstances Such arcumstances typically
include recriutment or the retention of cnitical talent on a targeted basis

Awards are subject to the Company meeting defined financial targets over three
financial years, starting with the financial year in which the grant takes place

A percentage of the award, typically 25 per cent, vests for threshotd performance
{0 per cent below threshold) increasing pro rata to 100 per cent vesting for stretch
performance

LTIP vesting depends on the aggregate underlying EPS of the Group over the three
year life of an award Maore recent LTIP awards have incorporated a discretionary
TSR underpin and the Committee considered and has extended the number of
performance parameters it constders when assessing the underpin These are set
out in the annual report on remuneration

The Committee reviews the LTIP performance measures in advance of each LTIP
grant to ensure therr ongoing appropriateness and consults with shareholders over
both the measures and their associoted targets

The Committee retains the discretion to adjust the financial targets in the event of
any matenal acquisitions, disposals or other corporate events in order to maintain
an equivalent level of difficulty

The LTIP provides for the grant of () performance shares or nil-cost options, andfar
{n} farr-market value options, vesting on the satisfaction of stretching performance
chteria over three years (subject to a maximum annual award of 200 per cent of
salary) If awards are a mix of performance shares and market value options, then
the aggregate fair value would be no higher than the fair value of an award of
100 per cent of salary in performance shares Awards under the LTIP to date have
been made in the form of nil cost options however, the Committee retains the
flexibility to consider other forms of award (such as fai-market value options) for
future cycles as it 1s mindful that alternative forms of award remain prevalent in
some of the geographies (eg the USA) in which the Company competes for senior
executive management

From 2014, awards made under the LTIP will normally require Executive Directors
to retain any awards that vest, net of tax, {(whether held as shares or options}

for a minimum of two further years from the date of vesting This will make the
aggregate holding period for an LTIP award five years from date of grant to
permitted disposal
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Purpose and link to strategy Operation and cpportunity

Mimmum shareholding requirement B - —- -

To requwe Executive Directors to retain a mimmum  Executive Directors are expected to retain a mimtmum shareholding equivalent to

shareholding in the Company to ensure aignment 100 per cent of basic salary

with shareholders’ interests as a whole
Executive Directors are required to retain SO per cent of shares vesting (after any
disposals necessary to pay associated tax charges) under both the deferred share
plan and the LTIP until the minimum sharehelding 1s reached

Remuneration outcomes in different performance scenanos

The charts below set out an illustration of the remuneration policy for 2074 in hne with the remuneration policy The charts provide an
illustration of the proportion of total remuneration made up of each component of the remuneration policy and the value of each
component

Three scenarios have been illustrated for each Executive Director

Below threshold > Fixed remuneration
performance > No annual bonus payout
> No vesting of LTIP awards
At target » Fixed remuneration
performance > 50 per cent annual bonus payout

> 25 per cent of LTIP awards vest

Stretch performance  »  Fixed remuneration
» 100 per cent annual bonus payout
> 100 per cent of LTIP awards vest

The fixed pay element is based on the following elements

> Base salary 1s the base salary effective for the year ended 31 December 2014, as set out on page 50

> Benefits are the value of benefits paid in the year ended 31 December 2013, as set out on the table of Directors’ remuneration on
page 57

»  Cash contribution in lieu of pension and benefits effective for the year ended 31 December 2014, which 1s 20 per cent of base salary for
the CEO and 15 per cent of base salary for the CFO

The scenanos below do not take into account share price appreciation or davidends
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Non-executive Directors’ remuneration policy

Purpose and Iink to strategy Operation and opportunity

Fees

Attract and retain high calibre Non-executive Fees are reviewed annually, taking into account time commitment, responsibilities
Directors and fees paid by compamies of a similar size and complexity

Fee increases, if applicable, for Non-executive Directors, will take effect from 1 July

Additional fees may be paid to Chairmen of Board Committees and to the Senior
Independent Director

Aggregate annual fees to Directors are imited to £500,000 under the Articles of
Association

No ehigibility to receive bonuses, retirement benefits or to participate in the Group's
long term incentive plans or employee share plans

Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment
The Chairman and Non-executive Directors do not have service agreements but the terms of therr appointment including the time
commitment expected are recorded in letters of appointment

Non-executve Directors are employed for terms of three years’ duration, terminable on a month’s notice by the Company or the Director

All Non-executive Directors are required to undertake that they will submit themselves for re election at each Annual General Meeting
accurnng during their term of office and no Non executive Director will serve mare than three terms of three years without prior
shareholder approval

Non-executive Directors’ shareholding guidelines
Non-executive Directors do not have a minimum shareholding requirement, however are expected to acquire and retain a shareholding in
the Group for the duration of ther appointment

Other policies

Recruitment of Non-executive Directors

Non executive Directors who are recruited to the Board will be employed on a letter of appointment of three years' duration, terminable on
amonth’s notice by the Company or the Director

The remuneration for Non-executve Directors consists of annual fees for their services as members of the Board and, where relevant, for
their work on selected committees New Non-executive Directors recruited to the Board will be pand the same rates and be subject to the
same provisions concerning annual re-election and shareholdings as the then current Non-executive Directors
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Recruitment of Executive Directors
The Committee’s general policy on recrutment remuneration s that new Executive Directors should be offered a contract on stmilar terms
to the existing Executive Directors

In exceptional and unforeseen circumstances it may prove necessary for the Committee to exeraise discretion and offer a varniable pay
opportunity (excluding buyouts) in the first year of employment to a new Executive Director that cantains elements of variable
remuneration which are in excess of the normal maxima stated in the policy table, however, the overall total vanable pay opportunity on
recruitment (excluding buyouts) would remain within the overall imst on vanable pay of 250 per cent of base salary

For a new CEQ or CFO their annual banus framework and LTIP awards will normalty be no more than those avalable to the current CEQ or
CFO, as applicable, at the date of recrutment The Committee may agree that the Company will meet certain relocatton and associated
expenses of a new Executive Director, subject to crcurnstances

In crcumstances where individuals are promoted to the Board fram within the Group, the terms and conditions of their existing share
grants or awards will not normally be amended, however any new grants or awards would be subject to the same framework as the other
Executive Directors

In certan circumstances, and in order to secure the services of an outstanding candidate, it may be necessary to make an award to a new
Executive Director to "buyout” unvested performance plan share or cash awards forfeited on leaving thew previous employment Any such
reimbursement would be subject to independent confirmation of the existence, forfeiture on departure and probability of these histaric
awards vesting had the new Executive Director remained in post In doing so, the Committee will seek to do no more than match the far
value of the awards forfeited, taking account of performance condrtions attached to these awards, the likelihood of those conditions being
met and the proportion of the vesting pertod remaining

Any such reimbursement would be made in cash or in shares in Tyman ple, and may be subject to performance conditions attached to
Tyman

No incentives were paid in connection with the recruitment of Mr Eperjesi or for the promotion of Mr Brotherton to their respective roles,
both of which occurred in 2010

Exit payment policy for Executive Directors

The service agreements of the Executive Directors entitle them on termination of their contract by Tyman to payment equal to salary and
the value of benefits, penston benefits {including life cover), health cover, dental cover and car allowance (but not annual bonus or grants
under long term incentive plans) until the earlier of 12 months from notice of termination or the Director obtaining full-ttme employment,
with an obligation on the part of the Director to mitigate

Payments will nermally be made monthly, although the Comnuttee retains discretion to agree settlement terms, which may include a
bonus in respect of the pernod worked by the Executive Director up until the date of termination

Executive Directors who are categonised as "Good Leavers™ by the Committee will generally be eligible to receive histonic awards under the
LTIP and DSBP {the “Executive Share Plans’} as they vest in future years Awards that vest under the LTIP post-employment may be
pro-rated to reflect the fact that the Executive Director was not employed for the entire penod under measurement For LTIP awards made
after the 2014 AGM, the Committee retains discretion to waive the extended holding penod requirement for Good Leavers depending on
arcumstances

In the event that an Executive Director 1s dismissed for reasons constituting gross miscenduct, no unvested awards under Executive Share
Plans may vest and the Committee retains no discretron in this regard

Policy on external appointments

Executive Directors are allowed to accept external appointments os a Non-executive Director of one other company subject to Board
approval, provided that these are not with competing companies and are not likely to lead to conflicts of interest Executive Directors would
normally be allowed to retain the fees paid from these appointments Executive Directors may not serve as the non-executive charrman of
ancther guoted company

As at 11 March 2014, neither Louss Eperjest nor James Brotherton held any externat directorships
Other share plans

The Executve Directors may participate in any all employee share pfans on the same basis as other employees in their country of
residence
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Consultation with employees

Although the Committee does not consult directly with employees on the Directors’ remuneration poficy, the Committee does consider the
general basic salary increase, remuneration arrangements and employment conditions for the broader employee population when
determining remuneration palicy for the Executive Directors

Consultation with shareholders and shareholder bodies

The Commuttee 1s committed to reqular engagernent with shareholders and shareholder bodies and enters into extensive consultations in
advance of implementing any matenal changes to the Executive Directors’ remuneration, as well as on the measures, duration and targets
for each of the annual grants under the LTIP

All Committee members attend the Annual General Meeting and may also be contacted through the Group's Registered Office to answer
any questions shareholders or sharehelder bodies may have in relation to the Group’s remuneration policy

Dilution

The general principle that the Group operates is that the vesting of share awards under Executive and Employee Share Plans should be
satisfied either by the issue of shares out of treasury or, subject to Trustee consent, through the issue of shares acquired on the market by
the Tyman Employee Benefit Trust

Certain junisdictions require that new shares are 1ssued to employees to settle vesting under share arrangements Where new shares are
issued in these circumstances it 1s the Group's intention to match the new shares issued with an equal purchase of shares on the market
either into Treasury or into the Tyman Employee Benefit Trust
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Board comprises all Non-executive Directors of the Company The Executive Directors may by
invitation, attend meetings and provide advice to the Committee, except when their own remuneration 1s discussed Duning 2013 the
Committee was chaired by Mr Tench and met four times

The Remuneration Commuttee s responsible for

»  setting, reviewing and recommending to the Board for approval the Company’s overall remuneration policy and strategy

»  determining and reviewing the terms of appointment and the remuneration arrangements of the Executive Directors of the Company
and the Charrman

» determuining and reviewing the terms of appointment and the remuneration arrangemenits of the members of the Tyman Management
Commuttee of the Company, and

» approving any Company share, share option or cash based incentive plan, and the grant, award, allocation or issue of shares, share
options or payments under any such plan

The Committee continues to receive advice from Kepler Associates, an independent firm of remuneration consultants appointed by the
Committee after consultation with the Board

During the year, Kepler advised the Committee on developments in market practice, corporate governance and mstitutional investor views
and in the development of the Company’s incentive arrangements Total fees for advice provided to the Committee during the year were
E30 510 Kepler are members of the Rermuneration Consultants Group, and as such, voluntanly operate under the Code of Conduct which
sets out guidelines to ensure that its advice 1s independent and free of undue influence

The Committee also took advice from the Group's legal advisers, Pinsent Masons LLP, as well as advice from a number of law firms around
the world relating to local laws and regulations surrounding the granting, vesting and exercise of awards made to senior divisional
management Total fees for legal advice provided to the Committee during the year were £56,316

The Committee 15 satisfied that the advice they have received has been objective and independent

Executive Directors’ remuneration 2013
The key components of the remuneration of Executive Directors are set out below

Single figure remuneration table {(audited)
The table below sets out a single figure of remuneration for each Director for 2013

Annual bonus settled  Cash payments in lieu of

Salary/fees Annual cash bonus with deferred shares pension and benefits Non cash benefits LTIP awards vested Total remuneration

Directors
remuneration for
the year ended 31 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Decemnber 2013 E 000 £ 000 £ 000 E 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 EQ00
Executive Directors
James Brotherton' 203 199 91 68 7 68 10 10 1 - B82S - 1221 345
Louls Eperjess’ 266 261 120 89 120 ge 54 53 1 1 1,100 - 1,661 493
Non executive

Durectors
Jamie Pike 100 100 - - - - - - - - - - 100 100
Les Tench? 40 4o - - - - - - - - - - 40 40
Martin Towers? &0 40 - - - - - - - - - - 40 L0
Angelika Westerwelle 35 3 - - - - - - - - - - 35 3
Total 684 643 21 157 211 157 64 63 2 1 1,925 - 3,097 1021

+  The 2013 single figure remuneration for the Executive Directors is above the maximum shown in the performance scenarios due to two LTIP cycles the 2010 Transtional LTIF and the
2011 LTEP vesting on performance to 31 December 2013 and the impact of shase price appreciation between grant and vesting

2 These feesinclude £5 000 in respect of chalrmanship of the Remuneration Committee

3 Thesefeesiaclude £5 000 in respect of chalrmanship of the Audit Committee

Additional disclosures for single figure for total remuneration table

Base salary

Base salanes for the Executive Directors were increased by 2 0 per cent from 1 January 2013 which was the same level of increase as was
awarded for 2012 and reflected the general level of salary increases in the Group’s UK businesses

Annual bonus

The annual bonus for Executive Directors increased by 34 per cent and reflected the improvement in underlying earnings of the Group
dunng 2013 The annual bonus for the Group s UK bustnesses increased by 176 O per cent, reflecting the improvement in the underlying
earnings of the Group's UK businesses in 2013 This increase in bonus payments for UK employees does not reflect any change in the level
of bonuses as a result of recruitment or promotion
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Non-cash benefits

The benefits provided to the Executive Directors included private medical insurance permanent health insurance, and bfe assurance The
Executlve Directors are not members of any of the Group pension schemes There were no changes to the benefits policies or levels dunng
the year

Cash payments in heu of pension and other benefits
In 2013, Lows Epeyjes) was pard £54,000 (2012 £53,000) and James Brotherton was paird £10,000(2012 £10,000) as a salary supplement
in leu of pension and other benefits These amounts were non-bonusable

Performance related remuneration

Annual bonus

For 2012 and 2013 the annual bonus scheme for Executive Directors was based 70 per cent on profitability (“PBTA") targets and 30 per
cent on free cash flow The actual target ranges for the two bonus components have not been disclosed as this is considered by the Board
to be commercially sensitive information however the 2013 targets for both of the bonus components were increased by some 26 per cent
and 50 per cent respectively during the year to take account of the acquisition of Truth

Under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan, 50 per cent of Executrve Director bonuses that would otherwise have been payable are delivered in
the form of mil cost options, to strengthen alignment with shareholders’ interests These awards will normally vest (together with dividend
equivalents in cash or shares) after three years and are not subject to any performance conditions Other senior employees are also
required to defer a proportion of their bonuses pursuant to the Deferred Share Bonus Plan

2013 bonus outcome

As highlighted in the Charman's fetter, Tyman demonstrated solid finanaial performance in 2013, with good growthin the US and the UK,
and our key strategic tittatives progressing well Group PBTA performance dunng the year was robust with achievement of £179 million for
2013 This was ahead of the target range, resulting in 85 1 per cent of the bonus relating to PBTA becorming payable

The Group's cash collection in the penod was very strong and was significantly ahead of the Group's expectations at the time of the
announcement of the Truth transaction Accordingly 100 per cent of the bonus relating to cash flow became payable

While none of the 2013 bonus was subject to the achievement of strategic or personal objectives, in approving the 2013 bonus amounts
the Committee took into account the strategic achievements of the Group dunng the year and the individual contrnbuttons of the Executive
Directors in secuning those achievements

Overall, this resulted in the Executive Directors receiving a bonus equal ta 89 6 per cent of 2013 salary for the year, of which 50 per cent will
be deferred until March 2017 under the rules of the Deferred Share Bonus Plan

LTIP awards vesting
The announcernent of the Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2013 was the tngger event for the vesting of the 2010 and
2011 LTIP awards

The 2010 awards were made 1 December 2010 and the 2011 awards were made in July 2011 Both awards covered the performance
penod from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013 Awards were dependent on the cumulative underlying basic EPS from continuing
operations for the three years measured against a defined target range

Following consultations with institutional shareholders, the target ranges for both awards were restated following the disposal of Gall
Thomson in 2012, however due to the proximity to the end of the measurement penod the target ranges were not restated following the
acquisition of Truth Hardware Instead, the 2013 performance year was ringfenced for the effects of the Truth acquisition and its
associated financing The underlying basic EPS achieved 1s set out below

Eernings per
Performance year share
2011 964p
20122 1149p
2013 (nngfenced)? 1302p
Underlying cumulative EPS 3415p

Notes

1 Restotedin 2012

2  Restmtedin 2013

3 Seecalculation of nngfenced EPS for 2013 on page 5%
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Areconctiatton of the ningfenced EPS for 2013 1s set out below

- -~ - —_- - - - - - - - - - — —Sowce — - —£000
Tyman plc reported underlying profit after taxation Note 9 on page 89 20948
Less Truth operating profit Note 3 onpage 83 (7.688)
Add Interest charge on financing Note 7 on page 87 892
Add Tax effect on Truth operating profit and interest charge See note below 2,609
Ringfenced profit after taxation 16,761
Weighted average nurmber of shares in 1ssue 128 770 million
Ringfenced 2013 EPS 13 02 pence

Notes
The Tax effect s calculated using an effective tax rate of 38 per cent which s a combination of a S tax rate on the Truth earnings and a UK tax rate on the interest charge

The percentage of awards vesting for the 2010 and 2011 awards are set out below

% of

oward to
Award Range Achievement vest
2010 awards 257 -324p 3415 10000%
201 awards 275-342p 3415 99 44%

The Remuneratiors Committee has satisfied itself that the recorded underlying cumulative EPS 1s a genuine reflection of the underlying
business performance of the Group over the perfermance period and accordingly has approved the vesting of the 2010 and 2011 awards
at their respective calculated percentages Awards were adjusted for the impact of the bonus element of the open offer as a result of which
a total of 1,836,954 awards excluding dimdend shares, vested in March 2014

The number of awards that have vested for the Executive Directors and the semior managers, including dividend shares where ehigible, 1s as
follows

Executive Senior
Award Directors managers Total
2010 awards 357,000 865,781 1,222,781
2011 awards 355,002 259171 614173
Total 712,002 1,124,952 1,836,954
In addition, dvidend shares to the following values were also awarded

Executive Semior

Drrectors managers Total
Award £000 £000 £000
2010 awards 40 96 136
2011 awards 33 24 57
Total 73 120 193

Awards will be satisfied in accordance with Group palicy through the ssuance of shares from the Tyman Employee Benefit Trust, shares out
of Group Treasury and new shares

LTIP awards granted in 2013

On 14 Novernber 2013 the Remuneration Committee granted mil or norminal cost options over 925,217 ordinary shares in the Company to
around 32 sentor managers, executives and Executive Directors (“2013 Awards”) Vesting of the 2013 awards 1s based on the Company’s
three year cumulative underlying for the finanaial years 2013 to 2015

1f, over the three financal years 2013 to 2015, cumulative underlying EPS 15 less than 45 pence, no 2013 awards will vest 25 per cent of
2013 awards will vest for cumulative underlying EPS of 45 pence, rising on a straight-line basis to full vesting for cumulative underying EPS
of 515 pence or hugher

In addition, if and to the extent that it considers the recorded EPS i1s not a genuine reflection of the underlying business performance of the
Company over the EPS performance penod, the Committee may reduce the number of Vested Award Shares accordingly (the “Financial
Underpin”)
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In applying this Financial Underpin, the Committee shall (without limitation) have regard to

» Tyman's TSR relative to the FTSE All-Share Index and the TSR of the median company in a ist of camparator compantes, mn order of
their TSR performance over the three calendar years 2013, 2014 and 2015, using such methodology for TSR calculations as the
Committee shall consider appropriate, and

» the EPS achieved in financial year 2015 and the extent to which this exceeds the EPS achieved in finanaial year 2012, and

» whether, In the Committee’s opinion, any inappropnate nsk taking has occurred, and

> whether, In the Committee's opinion, the three year cumulative EPS target has been achieved simply through increased and
inappropnate gearing of the balance sheet

The 2013 awards are expected to vest in March 2016, following the announcement of the Company’s results for the year ended
31 December 2015

LTIP awards granted n 2012

As the acquisition of Truth completed at an early point in the 2012 LTIP cycle (¢ 15 years into the three-year performance period ending in

December 2014), the Committee felt it was important for the incentive to capture the Group's overall performance over the remainder of

the performance penod (rather than nng-fence the effects of the acquisition) In light of this, the Committee decided to

»  make no adjustment to the existing EPS targets (25 per cent vesting at 33 pence up to 100 per cent vesting at 45 6 pence) for the Truth
acquisition but,

v re state the existing EPS targets for the capital raising completed as part of the Truth acquisition, as this was at a discount to the
prevailing market price, based on the standard theoretical ex-offer pnce adjustment factor (c 058)

Dilution hmit

Generally, it 15 the intention that LTIP awards will be satisfied through the transfer of existing shares by the Company's employees’ benefit
trust unless the Remuneration Committee n its discretion, feels that a new issue of shares would be more appropnate Inthe event that
LTIP awards are satisfied through new issue shares, the Company will operate within the Association of British Insurers’ {*ABI") guideline
dilution imit of 10 per cent in 10 years for all share-based incentive schemes (excluding awards to the former Executive Chairman granted
in 2004 and 2008} Expected dilution should not exceed the 10 per cent dilution limit, even if the awards made to the former Executive
Chairman are taken into account

The Remuneration Commuttee has the flexibility to operate outside the ABI guideline of 5 per cent in 10 years dilution bimit for
discretionary share based incentive schemes to accommodate LTIP awards for a broader employee population In managmg dilution, the
Company will nevertheless be mindful of the 5 per cent In 10 years guwideline and will be prudent in managing the flow rates, keeping
shareholders informed of actual and antioipated dilution levels over time The majonity of the 2010, 2011 and 2012 LTIP awards are Iikely
to be satisfied through the transfer of existing shares rather than the 1ssue of new shares

Assuming that all performance targets are met in full, the Remuneration Commuttee currently envisages that a maximum of 1,103,390 of
the 3,815,232 shares subject to all the Awards outstanding {approximately 29 per cent) will be satisfied through new issue shares to ensure
that local trusts, tax and secunties laws are complied with in certain overseas junisdiction

As at 31 December 2013, shares equivalent ta 2 25 per cent of the Group's 1ssued share capital (excluding treasury shares) would be
required to settle all outstanding awards under Employee and Executive Share Plans assuming maximum vesting

Tyman Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT")
The EBT held 2,179,282 Tyman ordinary shares at 31 December 2013 The outstanding LTIP awards at 31 December 2013 are as follows

LTIP aowards granted in Vesting date Number of shares
2010 March 14 1,198 806
201 March 14 605,514
2012 March 15 1140180
2013 March 16 870732

3,815 232

1 Vestings conditional upon financiel performance targets aver a three year perlod being met

Summary of Directors’ service contracts
The following table shows detatls of the service contracts for Executive Directors who were 1n office at 31 December 2013

Commencement Notice
date perod
James Brotherton 07/03114 12 months

Louis Eperjes 07/03114 12 months
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For both Executive Directors, their service contracts are termmable on 12 months' notice to or from the Company and contractual
termination provisions are imited to salary and benefits over the notice pertod

The Non executive Directors have letters of appointment which provide a notice period of ene month

Commencement Notice

date pericd

Jarmue Pike 23111109 1 month
Les Tench 172112109 1 month
Martin Towers 1712109 1 month
Angehka Westerwelle 30Mn2 1 month

Directors’ shareholdings and interests (audited)

Shares

The interests of each person who was a Director of the Company as at 31 December 2013 (together with interests held by his or her
connected persons) were

Ordinary Ordinary

shares at shares at

31Dec 31 Dec

2013 2012

James Brotherton 186,898 149191
Lows Epenes 181,648 145,000
Jarmie Pike 507,362 405,000
Les Tench 117,445 93,750
Martin Towers 62,984 50277
Angelika Westerwelle 131,318 -

Executive Directors’ minimum shareholding requirement
The table befow sets out the minimum shareholding required by the remuneration policy and the level of shareholding achieved for each
Executive Director at 31 December 2013

Value of Mimmum Actual

Salary'  shareholding?  shareholding  shareholding

Directors’ mirmmum shareholding £000 £000 os % ofsalary s % of salary
James Brotherton 203 427 100% 210%
Louis Eperjest 266 415 100% 156%

Notes to Dyrecters minimum shareholding table above
1 Basesalaryosat 31 December 2013
2 Bosed onthe closing price of a Tyman ple ordinary share of £2 285 on 31 December 2013

Executive Directors’ interests in Deferred Share Bonus Plan (audited)
The interests of each persan who was a Director of the Company as at 31 December 2013 1n awards made under the Deferred Share Bonus
Plan are set out below

Shares over whuch
deferred bonus awards
Market value'  granted after the year Normal
Deferred Share Bonus Plan Award date at award date end' vesting date Expiry date
James Brotherton 23/03/M £133 63,819 March 201472 23/03/1
16/0312 £123 17,580 March 20152 16/03/22
08/0513 £205 32986 March 20162 08/05/23
11403114 £2 67 34001 March 20177 11/03/24
Lows Eperjesi 23/03/ £133 86,880 March 20142 23031
16/0312 £123 23132 March 20152 16/03/22
08/05/13 £205 43402 March 20167 08/05/23
1140314 E267 44,736 March 20172 11403124

i The number of shares awarded is calculated by dividing one half of the gross value of the bonus payable by the market value of a share Market value means the average of the daily
closing prices of a share over the five dealing days immediately greceding the award date Awards are in the form of mil cost optlons and are granted for nil consideration
2 The exact day in March wi¥ be determined by the day the Group s results for the year ended on the previous 31 Blecember are announced
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Executive Directors’ interests in Long Term Incentive Plans (audited)
Executive Dwrectors’ interests in awards made under the LTIP are set out below

Shares aver Shares over Shares over

which LTIP which LTIP awards which LTIP Normal

Award Market value awards held at granted dunng awards held at Face vesting Explry

LTIP date ataworddate 1)on 2013 the year 31Dec 2013 valye? date dote
James Brotherton 101210 £10375 150,000 - 150,000 £155,625 1170314 10/12/20
06/07/11 £12300 150,000 - 150,000 £184,500 23/0314 06/07/21

03/0712 £1 2950 153,193 - 153,193  £198,385 March 2015 03/07/22

14111113 £2 2800 - 86,302 86302 £196,769 March 2016'  14/11/23

Louis Eperjes 10112110 £10375 200,000 - 200,000 £207,500 11/03/14 10/12120
06/07/11 £12300 200,000 - 200,000 £246,000 23103114 06/07/21

03/0712 £12950 201,570 - 201,570 £261,033 March 2015 03/07/22

141113 £2 2800 - 113,555 113,555 £258,905 March 2016 14/11/23

1 The exact doy in March will be determined by the day the Group s resuits for the year ended on the previous 31 December are announced
2 Foce value is the number of sheres awarded multiptied by the market value ot the award date

Awards are in the form of nil-cost options and are granted for nil constderation

Non-executive Directors’ fees and Chairman fees
During 2013 there were no Increases to the levels of Chairman fees, Non-executive Director fees or committee fees The fees payable to
the Chairman Non-executive Directors and Committee Chairmen dunng 2013 were as follows

Fees payable

inyearended

31 December

2013

Position/role I3
Chairman 100,000
Non-executive Director 35,000
Chairman of the Audit Committee 5,000
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 5,000

TSR performance
The graph below shows the total shareholder return (TSR} of the Group and the FTSE All-Share Index over the last five years This index Is,
in the opinion of the Directors, the most appropriate index against which the TSR of the Group should be measured
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Historical Chief Executive remuneration outcomes

The table below summanses the Chief Executive single figure for total remuneration, annual bonus payout and LTIP (or equivalent forplans

in place before the approval of the Group LTIP scheme by shareholders in December 2010) vesting as a percentage of maximum
opportunity for the current year and previous four years

2009 010 oM 2012 2013
£ 000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000

Louis Eperjest Single figure of remuneration nfa 394 338 493 1,661
Annual bonus payout (as % maximum opportunity) n/a 100% 22% 68% 90%

LTIP or equivalent n‘a Nl Nil Nil 1,100

Denis Mulhall Single figure of remuneration n‘a 438 n/a n/a nfa
Annual bonus payout {as % maximum opportunity} n/a 0% nla nla nfa

LTIP or equivalent n/a Nit n/a nfa n/a

Keith Taylor Single figure of remuneration 572 73 n/a n/a n/a
Annual bonus payout {as % maximum opportunity}) 100% n/e nfa n/a nfa

LTIP or equivalent nfe n/e nia n/a nia

Greg Hutchings  Single figure of remuneration 713 nfa n/a n/a n/a
Annual banus payout {as % maximum opportunity} 0% nfa nfa nla nia

LTIP ar equivalent Nil ls! nfa n/a n/a

Maotes
n/a" = not apphicable —individual was net employed as CEQ of the Group in the year in question
n/e = not eigible - Individual was employad duning the year but wos not eligible to participate in the bonus or LTIP scheme as appropriate that year

Lows Eperjesi
Appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 22 February 2010 Eligible to participate in annual bonus plans and long term incentive plans from
the date of his employment

Keith Taylor

Appainted as Intenim Cheef Executive Officer on 1 July 2009 and resigned from the Board on 22 Yanuary 2010 Keith Taylor did not
participate n any of the Group's long term incentive plans, however was eligible for a cash bonus for 2009 tied to certain objectves Keith
Taylor s remuneration was paid to Cnispins Partnership Limited

Denis Mulhall

Appoainted as acting Chief Executive Officer for the Group for the period between Keith Taylor's resignation and Louis Eperjesi’'s
appaintrnent Deris Mulhall was not paid any incremental salary or benefits for the penod of time that he was acting CEO and did not
receive any bonus or long term incentive plan or equivalent in respect of that appointment Denis Mulhall's single figure of remuneration
Includes payments made for loss of office

Greg Hutchings
Employed as Executive Chairman of the Group until 1 July 2009 Greg Hutchings® single figure of remuneration for 2009 includes payments
made for loss of office
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Relative spend on pay
_The chart below shows both the total cost of employee remuneration in the Group as shown on page 85 as well as dividends paid

Statement of implementation of remuneration policy for the year ended 31 December 2014

Basic salary

As explained in the Chairman’s remuneratien report letter, following consultation with magor shareholders, the Committee has deaded to
phase-in salary increases to closer to median over two years, subject to an annual review of each executive’s performance and Company
performance In line with these discussions, the Committee set the CEOQ s base salary at £334,000 per annum and the CFO’s base salary at
£226,000 perannum frem 1 January 2014

The second phase will be considered at the next salary review date, which s in January 2015, and will take into account both individual and
Company performance This will include an assessment of the successful integration of, and delivery of the anticipated benefits from, the
Truth acquisition which completed in 2013

The review of Executive Director base salanes took into account the executives’ performance, experience and responsibilities, the overall
impact of any salary adjustment on total remuneration and changes to pay across the Group, in addition to market competitive
positioring Comparators included international buitding preducts comparators and companies of similar size and complexity The
Committee wishes to emphasise that If there were a material change in business size or complexity (up or down), then this would be
reflected in the market comparability

Pension and benefits
As explained in the Chairman’s remuneration report letter, the Committee also increased the pension allowance for the CFQ from ¢ 5 per
cent of salary to 15 per cent of salary {the CEQ’s cash allowance remains 20 per cent of salary)

Annual bonus

The maximum epportunity for the two Executive Directors under the annual bonus plan 1s 100 per cent of basic salary The performance
measures for 2014 remain 70 per cent profitabiity (PBTA) and 30 per cent free cash flow Targets for the annual bonus plans are not
disclosed because they are considered by the Board to be commercially sensitive

LTIP awards

The maximum opportunity for the two Executive Directors under the LTIP 1s 100 per cent, or 150 per cent in exceptional circumstances,
and further awards are expected to be made in 2014 The measurement period for the 2014 awards will be from 1 January 2014 to

31 December 2016

2014 Awards are expected to vest (to the extent that the performance conditions have been satisfied) in March 2017, however in ine with
the Group's amended policy on vesting of LTIPs, Executive Directors will ordinanily be required to hold all vested awards under the 2014
Awards for a further two years untit March 2019
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Proposed 2014 Awards performance measures
As in previous years, the Committee intends to discuss the awards, the proposed performance measures and targets with institutional

shareholders and shareholder bodies prior to finalising awards The Committee will report back on the final position for the 2014 awards in
its 2014 Implementation Report

Shareholder votes

At the time of the 2013 AGM, Tyman's shares were traded on the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange Accordingly, the Committee
was not required to put its Remuneration report to the vote, however elected to do so voluntarily A summary of the voting 1s set out below

Votes for Votes against Votes cast Votes withheld
127154111 (99 9%} 18,478 (00%) 127,268,369 (100 0%) 6,437
Share price

The market price of ordinary shares in Tyman plc at 31 December 2013 was £2 285 and the range duning the year was £1 510 to £2 410
By order of the Board

Les Tench

Chairman, Remuneration Committee
11 March 2014
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Tyman plc

Report on the Group financial statements
Ouropimion
“In our opinion the Group financial staterments defined below

»  gwe atrue and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™) as adopted by the European
Union, and

> have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparnies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

This opimon 1s to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report

What we have audited

The Group financaal statements, which are prepared by Tyman plc, comprise

> the Group statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013,

» the Group income statement and statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,

> the Group statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and

> the notes to the Group financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

The financial reporting framework that has been apphied in their preparation comprises applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union

What an audit of financial statements nvolves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland) ') An audit involves

obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclasures i the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial

statements are free from maternal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

» whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed,

> the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors and

> the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the finanaal and non-financial information 1n the Annual Report and Accounts (the “Annual Report”} to identify
material nconsistencies with the audited Group financial statements and to identify any information that 1s apparently matenially incorrect
based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we becomne aware of any
apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Overview of our audit appreach

Matenahty

We set certain thrasholds for materiality These hefped us to determine the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to
evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenality for the Group Ainancial statements as a whole to be £15 miflion Thss
represents approximately 0 5 per cent of revenue In our view revenue I1s the most appropnate benchmark of underlying performance

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report te them misstatements identified during our audit above £75 000 as well as
misstatements below that amount that, iIn our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Overview of the scope of our audit

The Group s structured along four business ines being Amesbury Schiegel International, Grouphomesafe, and Truth Hardware The Group
financial statements are a consohdation of 49 reporting units, compnising the Group's operating businesses which map into the four
business lines and centralised functions

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit, we deterrmined the type of work that needed to be performed at the reporting
units by us, as the Group engagement team, or component auditors from other PwC network firms operating under our instruction Where
the work was performed by component auditors, we determined the level of involverment we needed to have in the audit work at those
reporting units to be able to conclude whether sufficent appropriate audit evidence had been obtained as a basis for our opmion on the
Group financial statements as awhole

Accordingly, of the Group’s 49 reporting units, we identified 13 which, in our view, required an audit of ther complete financial informatton,
either due to their size or therr nsk charactenistics Speofic audit procedures on certain balances and transactions were peiformed at a
further three reporting units and rotational visits to two additional small reporting units were made
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This provided coverage of 71 per cent of Group revenue We have considered the quantitative and qualitative charactenstics of the
remanmg reporting units which comprise a large number of small units in which we considered the nsk of maternial misstatement to the
Group to be low and performed analytical procedures on their financial information Together with additional procedures performed at the
Group level on balances such as goodwill and intangible assets, this gave us the evidence we needed for our opimion on the Group financial

statements as a whole

Areas of particular audit focus

In prepanng the financial statements, the Directors made a number of subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant
accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considerning future events that are inherently uncertain We primanly focused
our work in these areas by assessing the Directors judgements against avallable evidence, forming our own judgements, and evaluating

the disclosures in the financial statements

In our audit, we tested and examined information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we considered necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtained audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,

substantive procedures or a combination of both

We considered the following areas to be those that required particular focus in the current year This is not a complete list of all risks or
areas of focus identified by our audit We discussed these areas of focus with the Audit Committee Their report on those matters that they
considered to be significant 1ssues in relation to the financial statements Is set out on pages 45 and 46

Area of focus

How the scope of our audit addressed the area of focus

Impairment assessment

We focused on this area because the determination of whether or
not ansmpairment charge for goodwill or intangible assets was
necessary involved significant jJudgements about the future resuits
of the business

(Refer to note 10 to the financial statements)

We evaluated the Directors’ future cash flow forecasts, and the

process by which they were drawn up, including comparing them to

the latest Board approved budgets, and testing the underlying

calculations We challenged

> the Directors’ key assurnptions for long term growth rates in the
farecasts by companing them to hustoncatl results, economic and
industry forecasts, and

> the discount rate by assessing the cost of capital for the
Company and comparable orgamsations

We also performed sensitivity analysis around the key drivers of the
cash flow forecasts, being revenue growth rates and EBITDA
margins Having ascertained the extent of change in those
assumptions that either iIndividually or collectively would be
required for the goodwill to be iImpaired we considered the
likehhood of such a movement in those key assumptions ansing

Accounting for business combinations

The Group acquired Truth Hardware Inc during the year This
acquisition was significant to the financial statements of the
Group and accounting standards require that all assets and
liabilities are recorded at their fair value on acquisition The
identification and valuation of intangible assets and valuation of
inventory property, and prowvisions in particular required sigrificant
Judgement

{Refer to note 24 to the financial statements)

We evaluated the nature of intangible assets identified considenng
the rationale for the acquisition and the methodology and
assumptions used by the Directors in valuing these assets In
respect of the customer relationship and brand intangible assets
we evaluated the cash flow forecasts used by the Directors and
challenged key assumptions which included customer attrition
rates, sales growth, and imphed royalty rates

In respect of inventory valuation, we assessed the margin uphft
against histonc actual margins earned and tested the calculation of
obsolescence provisions based on inventory ageing In respect of
the property, management ¢btained an independent third party
valuation and we have evaluated the work performed by the
valuers, and m respect of provisions we evaluated the jJudgements
made around potential future liabilities and challenged the
assumptions made by management in calculating the provisions
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Fraud in revenue recognition We evaluated the design of controls over revenue and recevables

[SAs (UK & Ireland) presumne there is a risk of fraud in revenue and used a combination of automated data analysts to check that -

recognition because of the pressure managerment may feel to either a receivable was created or cash received upon recognising a

achieve the planned results revenue transaction and manual testing of praduct delivery and
cash collection to check that sevenue transactions were

(Refer to note 3 to the financial statements) appropriately recorded

We tested accounts recevable through a combination of third party
confirmations and testing of cash received after the year end date

We also tested journal entries posted to revenue accounts to
identify unusual or irregular itemns

Risk of management override of internal controls We assessed the overall control environment of the Group, including

ISAs (UK & Ireland) require that we consider this the arrangements for staff to "whistle-blow” inappropriate actions
and interviewed senior management We examined the significant
accounting estimates and judgements relevant to the financial
statements for evidence of bias by the Directors that may represent
a nsk of matenal misstatement due to fraud We also tested journal
entnes

Going concern
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’ statement, set out on page 43, in relation to going concern We have
nothing to report having performed our review

As noted in the Directors’ statement, the Directors have concluded that it 1s appropriate to prepare the Group’s financial statements using
the going concern basis of accounting The going concern basis presumes that the Group has adequate rescurces to remain in operation,
and that the Directors intend 1t to do so, for at least one year from the date the financial statements were signed

As part of our audit we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis s appropniate

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, these statements are not a guarantee as to the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern

Opinions on matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In cur opimon the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors' report for the financaial year for which the Group financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the Group financial statements

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of information and explanations receved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our gpinion we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by
law have not been made We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Parent Company's
compliance with nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) We have nothing to report having performed
our review
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On page 43 of the Annual Report, as required by the Code Provision C 11, the Directors state that they cansider the Annual Report taken as
awhole to be fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for members to assess the Group's performance,
" business model and strategy On page 45, as required by C 3 8 of the Code, the Audit Committee has set out the significant issues that 1t
considered m relation to the financial statements, and how they were addressed Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to
you If, In our opinion
> the statement given by the Directors 1s matenally incensistent with our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of perfarming
our audit, or

» the section of the Annuat Report descnbing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropnately address matters communicated by
us to the Audit Committee

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

Other information in the Annual Report
Under ISAs (UK & Ireland), we are required to report to you if in our opimion, information in the Annual Report s
> maternally nconsistent with the information in the audited Group financial statements, or

> apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of
performmg our audit, or
> 15 otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained mare fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 43, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibifity 1s to audit and express an opinien on the Group finanaal statements in accordance with applicable law and 1SAs (UK &
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any

other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or Into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in wnting

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company financral statements of Tyman plc for the year ended 31 December 2013 and on the
information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s described as having been audited

Simon Q'Brien {Senior Statutory Auditor) .
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP \
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Lendaon

11 March 2014
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2012
2013 £000
_ - - - _ - e = - — - = - . - - - - Note— £'000 — (Restated)— —= —
Continuing operations
Revenue 3 298,054 228753
Cost of sales 3 (198,758) (154,023)
Gross profit 99,296 74,730
Administrative expenses {94,985) (95945)
QOperating profit/(loss) 4,311 (21,215}
Analysed as
Underlying' operating profit 3 32,348 22958
Property provision release 3 - 2,021
Exceptional items 6 (10,903) (2574)
Amartisation of intangible assets 1 {(16,605) (10.,754)
Accelerated amortisation of intangible assets and impairment of intangible assets and goodwill 10,11 {(529) (32,866)
Operating profit/(loss) 4,311 {21.215)
Finance income 7 137 356
Finance costs 7 (4,925) {4.974)
Exceptional foreign exchange gawn 7 1,271 -
Net finance costs / (3,517) (4,618)
Profit/{Loss) before taxation 794 (25,833)
Income tax credit 8 162 3,700
Profit/{Loss) for the year from continuing operations 956  (22133)
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations - 37374
Profit for the year 956 15,241
Basic earnings/(loss) per share
From continuing operations 9 063p (1707p)
From discontinued operations 9 - 2883p
From profit for the year 063p 1176p
Diluted earnings/{loss) per share
From continuing operaticns 9 062p (1707p)
From discontinued operations 9 - 2837p
From profit for the year 9 062p 11 30p
Non-GAAP measure
Basic earnings per share
Underlying' basic EPS from continuing operations 9 1371p 11 49p
Underlying' basic EPS from discontinued operations 9 - 2895p
Total underlying basic EPS 9 1371p 40 44p
Undertying! profit before taxation from continuing operations 9 28,586 21,313
Underlying' profit before taxation from discontinued operations 9 - 37225
Total underlying profit before taxation 28,586 58538

1 Befere amortisation and accelerated amortisation of intangible assets deferred tax on amortisation and accelerated amortisation of intangible assets impairment of intangible assets

and goodwill exceptional items unwinding of discount on provisions amortisation of barrewing costs and the associated tax effect

The notes on pages 74 to 111 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2012

2013 £ 000
- - - = - - - - - - - -- Note-- - - E'000 -~ (Restated) - -~

Profit for the year 956 15,241
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Items that wifl not be reclassified to profit or foss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 20,21 2,300 (1.402)
Total items that wil not be reclassified to profit or loss 2,300 (1,402}
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on retranslation of foreign operations {10,566) (8.763)
Effective portion of changes in value of cash flow hedges 18 {163} 92
Total itemns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss {10,729) (8,671)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (8,429 (10073
Total comprehensive (less)/income for the year (7,473) 5,168

Items in the statement abave are disclosed net of tax The income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive ncome 1s
disclosed in note 8

The notes on pages 74 to 111 are an ntegral part of these consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Share Share Other Treasury Hedging Translation Retaned Total
capital premium reserves' reserve reserve raserve aarmings equity
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
At 1 lanuary 2012 6.864 101 10,385 (7,014) (697) 33,084 206,481 249,218
Total comprehensive (loss)/income - - (1,469) - 92 (8,763) 15,308 5168
Profit for the year - - - - - - 15,241 15,241
Disposal of subsidiary - - (1,469} - - - 1,469 -
Other comprehensive incomef{loss) -~ - - - 92 (8,763) (1,402) {10,073}
Transactions with owners - - - {1,147} - - (5,350) (6,497)
Share-based payments? - - - - - - 482 482
Dvidends paid - - - - - - (5832) (5.832)
Purchase of treasury shares - - - {1,147} - - - (1,147}
At 31 December 2012 (restated) 6,864 101 8,920 (8,161) {605) 24,321 216,449 247889
Total comprehensive (loss)/income - - - - (163}  (10.,566) 3,256 (7.473)
Profit for the year - - - - - - 956 956
Other comprehensive (loss)/income - - - - (163)  (10,566) 2,300 (8,429}
Transactions with owners 1,641 63,155 - 3,314 - - (5,586) 62,524
Issue of shares 1.641 69,390 - - - - - 71,031
Share-based payments? - - - - - - 1,453 1.453
Ddends paid - - - - - - (7,039) (7.039)
Sale of treasury shares - (6,235} - 6,235 - - - -
Purchase of treasury shares - - - (2921) - - - {2,921)
At 31 December 2013 8,505 63,256 8,920 (4,847) (768) 13,755 214,119 302,940

1 Other reserves are nen distnbutable capstal reserves which arase on previous acguisitions
2 Share based payments includes a deferred tax credit of £772 000{2012 ENil)

The notes on pages 74 to 111 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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2012

2013 £ 000
Note— E'000 (Restated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Goodwill 10 244845 184896

Intangible assets 11 109,595 73,834

Property, plant and equipment 12 39,942 29,785

Deferred tax assets 20 12,102 9774

406,484 298289
Current assets

Inventones 13 40,668 27558
Trade and other recervables 14 34,473 27,269
Cash and cash equivalents 15 43,607 35857
Current tax asset 199 -
118,947 90,684
TOTAL ASSETS 525,431 388973
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 16 (51,348) (32375)
Current tax payable - (1.868)
Interest beanng loans and borrowings 17 (6,834) (7,521}
Provisions 19 (2,641) (2.456)

(60,823) (44,220)

Non-current liabilities

Interest beanng loans and borrowings 17 {115464) (63,575}
Derwative financial Instruments 18 (767) (605}
Deferred tax habilities 20 (29,292) (11766}
Retirement benefit obligations 21 (7.478) (11,230}
Pravisions 19 (7,100) (7,513}
Other payables 16 (1,567) {2.175})
(161,668) (96,864)
TOTAL LTABILITIES (222,491) (141,084}
NET ASSETS 302,940 247,389
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attnbutable to owners of the Company
Share captal 22 8,505 6.864
Share premum 22 63,256 M
Other reserves 8,920 8,920
Treasury reserve (4,847) (8.161)
Hedging reserve (768) (605)
Translation reserve 13,755 24321
Retained earnings 214,119 216,449
TOTAL EQUITY 302,940 247889

The notes on pages 74 to 111 are an integral part of these consoltdated financial statements
The financial statements on pages 70 to 73 were approved by the Board on 11 March 2014 and signed on its behalf by

Louis Eperjest

Chief Executive Officer : < ?/\ .
James Brotherton Tyman plc
Chief Financial Officer . Company number 02806007
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
2012
2013 £000
Note - -- £'000 (Rastated)
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax — continuing operations 794 (25,833)
Loss before tax — discontinued operations - (379)
Adjustments 27 28,802 50,516
Changes in working capital {excluding the effects of acquisition and exchange differences on
consolidation)
[nventones 759 79
Trade and other receivables 1,275 2,768
Trade and other payables 10,363 (593)
Provisions utilised 19 (2,232) (1.911)
Pension contrnibutions 21 (909} (1,010)
Income tax paid (6,209) (6,862)
Net cash generated from operating activities 32,643 18,775
Cash flows from mvesting activities
Purchases of praperty, plant and equipment 12 (7,359) (5.462)
Purchases of intangible assets 11 (1,286) {1,355)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 559 -
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings, net of cash acquired 24 (131,244) (16,726}
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiary undertakings - 67,505
Interest receved 150 309
Net cash {used in)/generated from investing activities (139,180) 44,671
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (2,740} {4,540)
Dividends pad (7,039) (5.832}
Purchase of treasury shares (2,921) {1.147)
Proceeds from 1ssuance of ordinary shares 22 71,031 -
Proceeds from borrowings 65,738 -
Repayments of borrowings (8,059) (39.815)
Refinanaing costs paid (1,510) -
Proceeds from drawdown of working capital facility 2,642 -
Repayment of working capital facility (2,552) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 114,590  (51334)
Net increase 1n cash and cash equivalents 8,053 12,112
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents {303) {641)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15 35,857 24,386
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 43,607 35,857

The notes on pages 74 to 111 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General infermation
Tyman plc {"the Company”) and its subsidianies {together, “the Group”) 1s a leading international supplier of components to the door and
window industry The Group operates faailities in 13 countries worldwide ™ S

The Company 15 a public hmited company, which is isted on the London Stock Exchange and incorporated and dormiciled in England and
Wales at the address shown on page 118

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies apphed in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below These palicies
have been consistently applted to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

21 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Tyman plc have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{"IFRS”) and IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRS [C”) as adopted by the European Union and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS on a going concern basis The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the histonical
cost convention, as modified by financial assets and habslities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss

The preparation of inancial statements in conformity with TFRS requires the use of certamn critical accounting estimates It also requires
management to exercise its jJudgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting pohcies The areas invohving a higher degree of
Judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in note 2 22

211 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following standards have been adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and
have a matenal impact on the Group

Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Financiaf statement presentation’ regarding other comprehensive mcome The main change resulting from these
amendments 15 a requiremnertt for entities to group items presented in ‘other comprehensive iIncome’ on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments)

IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ was revised in June 2011 The main change for the Group's accounting policies is to replace the interest cost

and expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that Is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit

liability The implication of this s that the expected return on assets credited to the income statement {previously calculated based on the

expected long term return on plan assets) 1s now based on a lower corporate bond rate, being the same rate used to discount the pension

lrabiity The impact of the amended IAS 19 is as follows

> Profit/(Loss) before tax was approximately £0 4 million and £0 2 million lower for the full year 2013 and 2012 respectively, with a
corresponding pre-tax increase in other comprehensive income The results for 2012 have been restated

»  Basic and diluted earnings/{loss) per share for 2013 decreased by appraximately 0 25 pence (2012 a decrease of 0 14 pence)

> Noimpact on cash flows or the balance sheet at 31 December 2013, 31 December 2012 or 1 January 2012 As such, the impact of the
1A5 19 amendments have not been presented at 1 January 2012

IFRS 13, *Farr value measurement’, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise defimition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs The requirements, which are largely aligned
between IFRSs, do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use 15 already
required or permitted by other standards within IFRSs

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods begmning after 1 January
2013, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements None of these are expected to have matenial
impact on the consolidated financal statements of the Group, except the following set out below

IFRS 9, “Finanaial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial abilities TFRS 9
was 1ssued in Novemnber 2009 and October 2010 It replaces the parts of [AS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of
finanaial instruments IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified inte two measurement categories thase measured as at far value
and those measured at amortised cost The determination s made at imitial recognition The classification depends on the entity's business
model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument For financial liabilities, the
standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements The main change 1s that, in cases where the fair value option 1s taken for Anancial
habilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit nisk 1s recorded in other comprehensive incorne rather than the
Incame statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch The Group is yet to assess IFRS 9's full impact The Group will also consider
the impact of the remaining phases of IFRS 9 when completed by the Board

There are na other IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have material impact on the Group
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2 2 Conschdation

2 21 Subsidicries

Subsicianes are all entities (including structured entities) over whiich the Group has tontrol The Group controls an éntity when the Group 15
exposed ta, or has nghts to, vaniable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through its
power over the entity Subsidianes are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group They are
deconsoldated from the date that control ceases

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary 15 the fair values of the assets transferred, the habilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interest
issued by the Group The consideration transferred mcludes the fair value of any asset or habihty resultuing from a contingent consideration
arrangement Identifiable assets acquired, habilities assumed and contingent liabilities assumed 1n a business combimation are measured
inttially at their fair values at the acquisition date

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred

Any contingent consideration to be transferred is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent constderation that 1s deemed to be an asset or liability 1s recognised in accordance with LAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income Contingent consideration that is classified as equity 15 not re-measured, and its subsequent
settlement 1s accounted for within equity

The excess of the consideration transferred and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity Interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill [f the total of considerattan transferred is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference 1s recognised directly in the iIncome statement

(note 2 3)

Inter company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eiminated Unrealised losses
are also elminated Where necessary amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted te conform to the Group's accounting policies

2 2 2 Disposal of subsidianes

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity 1s re-measured to its far value at the date when control 1s
lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss The faw value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest in the finanaial asset In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive iIncome in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly dispased of the related assets or abilities
This may result in amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income being reclassified to profit or loss

2 3 Goodwill
Goodwill anses on the acquisition of subsidianies and represents the excess of the consideration transferred aver the Group's interest In the
net far value of the identifiable assets, labilities and contingent [abilities of the acquiree

For the purpase of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in @ business combination is allocated to each of the Cash Generating Units
{"CGUs™), or groups of CGUs that 1s expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill1s allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill 1s monitored for internal management purposes
Goodwillis momitored at the operating segment level

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes 1n circumstances indicate a potential
impairment The carrying vatue of goodwill 1s compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal Any imparrment is recogrised immediately as an expense and 1s not subsequently reversed

2 4 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment On acquisition of Group companies, the Group
recognises any separately idenbifiable intangible assets separately from goodwill, intially measuring the intangible assets at fair value

Purchased intangible assets acquired through a business combination, including purchased brands, customer relattonships, trademarks and
licences, are mtially measured at fair value and amortised on a straight-ine basis over therr estimated useful economic lives as follows

> Acquired brands - 5 to 20 years

> Customer relationships — 9 to 15 years

> Computer software — 3 to 4 years
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and umique software products controlled by the

Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met

» It 1s techrically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be avallable for use,

» - management intends to complete the software product and use it or sell 1t,

» there s an ablity to use or sell the software product

» 1t can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits

» adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software product are available,
and

» the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured

Directly attributable costs capitalised as part of the software product include the software development employee costs and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads Other development expenditures that do not meet these critenia are recognised as an expense
as incurred Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period Computer
software development costs recognised as assets are amortised when the intangible assets are in the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management Computer software development costs recognised as assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives, which does not exceed five years

The estimated useful lives of acquired intangible assets are reviewed whenever events or circumstances indicate that there has been a
change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset Any amendments to the estimated
useful lves of intangible assets are recorded as a change in estimate in the peried the change occurred

2 5 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets, including goodwill, that have an indefirite useful life or Intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable Animpairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s farr value less costs of
disposal and value in use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped ot the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows {cash generating units) Prior mpairments of non-financial assets {(other than goodwill) are reviewed for possible
reversal at each reporting date Goodwill previously impaired cannot be reversed at a later date

2 6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment Cost includes expenditure that 1s directly
attnbutable to the acquisition of the assets Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the specific asset will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably The carrying amount of the replaced part 1s derecognised All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred

Freehold land 1s not depreciated Depreciation is provided on all other property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to wnite off the
cost less estimated residual value of each asset on a straight-hine basis over its expected useful ife, at the following annual rates

> Freehold land — Not depreciated

> Freehold buitdings — 2% to 5%

> Plant and machinery—75% to 33%

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment periodically If events or changes in arcumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable The assets’ residual values, useful ives and method of depreciation are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period

Gains and fosses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income statement

2 7 Inventones

Inventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cast 1s determined in accordance with the first-in, first-out method Cost
includes the cost of materials determined on a purchase cost basis, direct labour and an appropnate proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on normal levels of activity It excludes borrowing costs Net realisable value i1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Where necessary, a provision 1s made to reduce cost to no more than net realisable value having regard to the nature and condition of
inventory, as well as its anticipated saleability
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2 8 Financial assets and habilities
Financial assets and habilities are recogrised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the nstrument and are generally derecognised when the contract that gives rise to it 1s settled, sold, cancelled or expires

Loans and recervables

Loans and recevables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
They are included in current assets, except for matunties greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting penod These are classified
as non-current assets The Group s loans and receivables compnse “trade and other receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
balance sheet

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of business If collection 1s expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets If not, they are presented as non-
current assets

Trade recevables are recogrised imitially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment

Provision against trade receivables 1s made when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to coflect all amounts dueto it
in accordance with the onginal terms of those recevables The amount of the write-down i1s determined as the difference between the
carrying amount and present value of estimated future cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows and balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly hquid investments with onginal maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts

Financial labilities held at amortised cost
Financial habilities held at amortised cost include trade and other payables, and interest-beanng loans and borrowings

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers
Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment 1s due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer} If not, they are presented as non-current habilities

Trade payables are recogrised intially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Interest-bearning loans and borrowings
Interest bearing loans and borrowings are recogmised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Interest-beanng loans and
borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method

2 9 Dernivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Denvative financial instruments are imittally recognised at fair value on the date on which a dervative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re measured at far value Dervatives are carned as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when far value 1s negative

The Group designates certain derivatives as either
> hedges of a particular nsk associated with a recognised asset or hability or a highly probable forecast transaction {cash flow hedge), or
> hedges of a net Investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge)

For those mstruments designated as hedges, the Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its nsk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions The
Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the dernvatives that are used In
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes m fair values or cash flows of hedged items

The farr values of varnious dervative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 18 The full farr value of a hedging
denvative 1s classified as a non-current asset or habiity when the rematning hedged itern 1s more than 12 months and as a current asset or
kability when the remaining matunity of the hedged item 1s less than 12 months

For denvatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised immecdhately
in the Income statement
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2 Summary of significant accounting pohcies continued
Cash flow hedges L .
The effective portion of changes n the fair value of the dervatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in

other comprehensive Income The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the iIncome statement

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the income statement in the perod in which the hedged item affects profit or loss
When a hedging instrument expires of Is sofd, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss existing In equity at that time remains in equity and 1s recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the Income
statement When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity 1s
immediately transferred to the income statement

Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for simitarly to cash flow hedges Any gain or loss on the hedging
nstrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge 1s recognised in other comprehensive iIncome The gain or loss relating to the
ineffectve portion 1s recegnised in the income statement Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the income statement
when the foreign operation 1s partially disposed of or sold

2 10 Employee benefits
The Group operates both defined contribution and defined benefit pension plans and pest employment medical plans

Pension obhigations

A defined contnibution plan i1s a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions into publicly or privately administered pension
msurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis The Group recognises contributions as an employee benefit expense when
they are due and has no further payment obligations once the contnbutions have been paid The Group has no legal or constructive
obhgation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold suffictent assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current or prior peniods Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund in the future 1s
avarlable

A defined benefit plan 1s a pension plan that i1s not a defined contribution plan Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit an employee will recerve on retirement This amount i1s usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service
and compensation

The hability recogrused in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans 1s the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting perniod less the farr value of plan assets The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method

The present value of the defined benefit obligation i1s determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to matunty
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation In countries where there 1s no deep market in such bonds, the market rates
on government bonds are used

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustments and changes in actuanal assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive income in the penod in which they anise

Past service costs are recognised immediately in income

Other post-employment obligations

Some Group comparues provide post retrement healthcare benefits to their retirees The entitlement to these benefits 1s usually
conditional on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service penod The expected
costs of these benefits are accrued aver the perod of employment using the same accounting methodology as used for defined henefit
pension plans

Actuanal gains and losses anising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive iIncome i the penad in which they anise These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified actuarnes

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated by the Group before the normal rebrement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Group recognises termination benefits at the earher of the following dates

> when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and

» when the entity recognises costs for a restructuning that 15 within the scope of [AS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits
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In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer Bernefits faling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to
their present valuée T - B

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-shaning, based on a farmula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company's shareholders after certain adjustments The Group recogmises a provision where contractually obliged or
where there 1s a past practice that has created a constructive obligation

211 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when

> the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,

» 1t 1s probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
> arehable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision Is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date, taking into account the nisks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation Where a provision 1s measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obhigation, its carrying amount i1s the present value of those cash flows using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the nisks specific to the obligation The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time 1s recognised 1n the Income statement within net finance costs Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses

212 Leases

Where the Group has substantiolly alt the nsks and rewards of ownership of an asset subject 1o a lease, the lease 1s treated as a finance lease
Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased property or the present value
of the minimum lease payments Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability Finance charges are recogrused in the iIncome statement

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated over the lower of the useful lives and the term of the lease

All otherleases are treated as operating leases Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the iIncome statement on a
straight-ine basis over the lease term

2 13 Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity settled share-based compensation plan (Long Term Incentive Plan, “LTIP") for certain employees under
which the entity receives services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (share options) of the Group The farr value of
the employee services received 1n exchange for the grant of optians 1s expensed on a straight-ine basis over the vesting peniod, based on
the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting penod is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any nan-market vesting conditions Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest At each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest,
with any changes in estimate recogrised in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustrment in equity The fair value of awards
granted under LTIP 1s measured using a probability model to predict target EPS levels

The proceeds receved net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nenminal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised

2 14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown In
equity as a deductton, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
attnbutable incremental costs (net of Income taxes) 1s deducted from equity attnbutable to the Company’s owners until the shares are
cancelled or reissued Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration recewved, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects, 1s ncluded in equity attnbutable to the Company’s owners

215 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported In a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision makers The
chief operating decision-makers, defined as the Board of Directors, are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments
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216 Revenue recognition o
Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the cansideration received or recevable, and represents the amounits receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes

Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the amount of
revenue can be rehably measured Revenue from the sale of goods 15 recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
have been substantially transferred to the buyer, usually on dispatch of the goods

217 Current and deferred taxation

Income tax credit comprises current tax and deferred tax Tax s recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it refates to
items recogrised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case it 1s recognised 1n other comprehensive income or
directly in equity

The Group's lrability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
in the countries where the Company and its subsidianes operate and generate taxable income

Deferred income tax 1s recogmsed on termporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and habilities and therr carrying

amounts in the consolidated financial statements No deferred tax liabilities are recognised if t anses from the initial recognition of

» goodwill,

> an asset or llabihty in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects nesther accounting
nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred income tax 1s determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liabilty s settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profit will be availlable against which the
temporary differences can be utiised

Deferred income tax habilities are provided on taxable temporary differences anising on investments in subsidianes except for deferred
income tax hability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it 1s probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from investments in subsidianes only to the extent
that it 1s probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there 1s sufficient taxable profit against which the temporary
difference can be utihsed

Deferred income tax assets and habiiities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets against current tax
habilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty on either the
same tax entity or different taxable entities where there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net basis

2 18 Exceptional items
Where certain income or expense items recorded in the period are matenal by their size or inaidence the Group reflects such items as
exceptional items within a separate line on the iIncome statement, except for those exceptronal items that refate to net finance costs and tax

Separate presentation of exceptional items provides an improved understanding of the elements of financial performance in the year so as
to faciitate companson with prior penods and to assess trends in financial performance

Exceptional items as disclosed in note 6, Include one-off redundancy and restructunng costs, and transactions costs associated with
merger and acquisition activity

219 Forergn exchange

2191 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the pnmary econamic
environment in which the entity operates {the functiona! currency) The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling,
which s the functienal currency of the Company and the presentation currency of the Group

219 2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and habilities denominated i foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive mcome as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investrnent hedges These are recognised
directly in equity, other than the ineffective element, until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised in the
income statement
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219 3 Group companies
On consolidation, assets and habilities of Group companies deneminated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the exchange.

rate prevailing at the balance sheet date Income and expense items are transtated into Sterling at the average rates throughout the year

Exchange differences ansing on the translation of opening net assets of Group comparies, together with differences anising from the
translation of the net results at average or actual rates to the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date, are taken to other
comprehensive iIncome On disposal of a foreign entity, the cumulative translation differences recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation are recogrised 1n the income statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal

2 20 Discontinued operatrons and non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets and all assets and fiabilities classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying value and fair value less
costs to sell

Non-current assets and all assets and habihties, or disposal groups, are classified as held for sale if their carrying value will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use This condition 1s met only when a sale is highly probable, the asset or
disposal group 1s avallable for immediate sale in its present condition and management 1s committed to the sale which 1s expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year fram the date of classification

2 21 Non-GAAP measure accounting policy

The Directors believe that the “underlying” profit and earnings per share measures prowide additional useful information to sharehoiders on

the underlying performance of the business These measures are consistent with how business performance 1s measured internally The

adjusted profit before tax measure 1s not recognised under [FRS and may not be comparable with "underlying” profit measures used by

other comparies The adjustments made to reported profit before tax s to include the following

»  Exceptional items — these are largely one-off in nature and therefore create volatility in reported earnings

> Amortisation of borrowing costs, amertisatton and accelerated amortisation of intangible assets, impairment of intangible assets and
goodwilt, and unwinding of discount on provisions — these are non-cash in nature and the events giving rise to them are expected to be
infrequent

2 22 Cntical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the Group's accounting policies the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on histonical experience and other factors, Including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
arcumstances Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
penod inwhich the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that penod or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects bath current and future penods

2 221 Cntical judgements in applying the Group's accounting pohicies
The following areas represent the key judgements made by management in order to facilitate the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements

Acquisition accounting

IFRS 3 requires assets and habilities acquired to be recorded at fair value and to separately identify intangible assets from goodwll, initially
measuring each group of ntangible assets at far value Groups of intangible assets include purchased brands and customer relationships
There Is jJudgement involved in estimating fair value, partrcularly in relation to identifiable intangible assets, which requires the Directors to
estimate the useful economrc life of each asset and the future cash flows expected to anse from each asset and to apply a suitable
discount rate (note 24)

Carrying value of goodwll and intangibles

As set out in notes 10 and 11 to the Group financial statements, as at 31 December 2013, the Group had goodwill of £244 8 million with
Intangible assets amounting in total to £109 6 millon An imparrment review using a value in use calculation has been performed for each
cash generating unit There 15 significant judgement involved in determining appropnate assumptions to use in the calculations, includtng
the forecasted cash flows of each cash generating unit and appropnate discount rates relative to the Company's cost of capital These
assumptions have been subjected to sensitivity analyses Details of estimates used and sensitivities in the impairment reviews are set out In
note 10

Provisions

The Group has provisions of £9 7 million as at 31 December 2013 as cutfined in note 19 to the Group financral statements which, by their
nature, are uncertain and highly Judgemental Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the balance sheet date based on the nature of the provisions, the potential outcomes any developments relating to
specific claims, and previous expenence
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued
Carrying value of nventory _

“As set out In note 13 to the Group financial Sstatements, as at 31" Deceémber 2013 the Group had gross inventories of £47 0 milion and
provistons for slow moving and obsolete inventories of £6 3 million Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, with
due allowance for excess, obsolete or slow-moving items Group management exercises judgement in assessing net realisable value and
provisions for slow moving and obsolete inventory which i1s based on current assessments of future demand, market conditions and new
product development initiatives

Carrying value of trade receivables

As set out in note 14 to the Group financial statements, as at 31 December 2013, the Group had gross trade receivables of £32 0 miflion
and pravisions for bad debts of £2 1 million Trade recevables are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, less appropniate alfowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts
Provision against trade receivables 1s made when there 15 objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts dueto it
In accordance with the original terms of those recevables The amount of the write down 1s determined as the difference between the
carryng amount and present value of estimated future cash flows Group management exercises judgement in assessing the amount of
any write downs required which is based on current assessments of the creditworthiness of current customers

2 22 2 Other key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions The key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have a significant risk of causing
matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year, are discussed below

Defined benefit pension and post-retirement benefit schemes

The benefit obligation 1s calculated using a number of assumptions including future salary iIncreases, iIncreases to pension benefits,
mortality rates and, in the case of post-employment medical benefits, the expected rate of increase in medical costs The present value

of the benefit obligation 15 calculated by discounting the benefit obligation using market yields on high-quality corporate bonds at the
balance sheet date The plan assets consist largely of hsted secunties and their far values are subject to fluctuation in response to changes
in market conditions Effects of changes in the actuanal assumpttons underlying the benefit obligation, effects of changes in the discount
rate applicable to the benefit abligation and effects of differences between the expected and actual return on the plan assets are classified
as actuarial gains and lasses and are recogrused directly in equity Further actuanal gains and losses will be recognised dunng the next
financial year An analysis of the assumptions that will be used by management to determine the cost of defined benefit plans that will be
recogrused in the income statement in the next financial year 1s presented in note 21

Deferred tax assets

Esttrnation s required of temparary differences hetween the carrying amount of assets and habilities and their tax base Deferred tax
habiities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences but, where deductible temporary differences exist, management's
Judgement 1s required as to whether a deferred tax asset should be recognised based on the avallability of future taxable profits Tt 1s
possible that the deferred tax assets actually recoverable may differ from the amounts recogrised f actual taxable profits differ from
management’s estimates (note 20)

3. Segment information

The reporting segments reflect the manner in which performance 1s evaluated and resources allocated During 2013, the Board, in its
capacity as the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker reviewed the continuing appropriateness of the Group's operating segment
disclosures The Group operates through three clearly defined divisions — Amesbury, Grouphomesafe and Schlegel International — each
headed by a divisional CEQ and each reporting to the Board via the Group CEQ and CFO on a reqular basis Accordingly, the Board has
concluded that the most appropnate segmental analysis for stakeholders is based on the three reporting divisions with an allocation of
Group central overheads made to each division

For 2013, the Board considers it appropnate that Truth Hardware (“Truth”) be disclosed as an additional segment given its size and the fact
that throughout the year it was managed as a stand alone entity with its own CEO and management team From January 2014, our North
Amencan businesses have been managed as a single entity with an integrated management team Accordingly, Truth has been incorporated
nto the Amesbury operating segment from the start of 2014 The 2014 results will therefore not include Truth as a distinct operating
segment

Each operating segment broadly represents the Group's geographical focus, being the North Amencan (Amesbury and Truth), United
Kingdom (Grouphomesafe} and International (Schlegel International) operations The Schlege! International segment includes Schlegel
Bullding Products (formerly Linear), the Group's UK-based manufacturer of pile weatherstnp and extrusians
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The following tables present Group revenue and profit and certain assets and lability information regarding the Group’s product segments,

which have been generated using Group accounting policies, with no differences of measurement apphed

Revenue
2013 2002
£000 £000
Amesbury 132,352 118,600
Truth Hardware 42,900 -

Total North Amenca
Grouphomesafe
Schlegel International

175,252 118,600
86,047 73345
36,755 36808

Total from continuing operations

298,054 228,753

Included within Schlegel International segment are revenues attributable to the United Kingdom of £6,401,000 (2012 £5,483,000)

No revenue from any single customer exceeds 10% of total revenue from continuing operations

Result
2012
2013 E 000
Mote £'000 (Restated)
Amesbury 14,562 11,506

Truth Hardware

7,688 -

Total North America
Grouphomesafe

22,250 11,506
10,496 8972

Schlegel International (398) 2,480
Underlying operating profit 32,348 22958
Property provision release - 2021
Exceptional 1tems 6 (10,903) (2.574)
Amortisation of intangible assets 11 (16,605) (10,754)
Accelerated amortisation of intangible assets and imparment of intangible assets and goodwill 10,11 {529} (32.866)
Operating profit/(loss) 4311 (21,215)
Net finance costs 7 (3,517) (4,618)
Profit/(Loss) before tax and discontinued operations 794 (25833)
Other profit and loss disclosures
Depreciation Cost of goods sold

2013 2012 2013 02

£'000 E 0CO £'000 £000
Amesbury (3,169) (2,779y  (91,560) (83,555}
Truth Hardware (974) - (27,772 -
Total North Amernica (4,143) (2,779} (119,332} (83,555}
Grouphomesafe (1,374) (1.274)  (55966) (48,961)

Schlegel International

(820) (838) (23,460) (21,507}

Total from continuing operations

(6,337) (4,891) (198,758) (154,023)
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3 Segment information continued
Segment assets and liabilities

- - - = = - = Truth - - Total = — — — “Schlegel — - - - -

Amesbury Hardware  North America  Grouphomesofe international Total
At 31 December 2013 £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000
Segment assets
Total segment assets 212360 145302 357662 117310 37479 512,451
Unallocated assets 12,980
Consolidated total assets 525,431
Segment liabilhities
Total segment habiities (32,.471)  (28,726) (61,197)  (28,068) {7,422} (96,687)
Unallocated habiities? {125,804)
Consolidated totat labilities (222,491)
Non-current assets’ 165038 122,773 287811 83,197 23374 394,382
Other segment information
Ermnployee benefit habihty {7,L478) - {7,L78) - - (7.478)
Goodwill 104,397 63,505 167,902 61910 15033 244,845
Intangible assets 41,255 49,209 50,464 16,708 2423 109,595
Capital expenditure
- Property, plant and equipment 4,518 952 5,470 1,271 618 7,359
— Intangble assets 969 - 965 233 84 1,286

Truth Total Schlegel

Amesbury Hardware  North Amenca  Grouphomesafe international Total

At 31 Decersber 2012 £000 £000 £400 €000 £000 £000

Segment assets

Total segment assets 213,676 - 213676 119113 37515 370,304
Unallocated assets 18,669
Consolidated total assets 388973
Segment liabilities

Total segment habilities (30,127) - (30127)  (25,702) (8,818)  (64,647)
Unallocated habilities? (76,437)
Consolidated total labilities (141,084)
Non-current assets’ 176,639 - 176,639 87,397 24,479 288,515
Other segment information

Employee benefit hability (11,230) - (11,230) - - (11,230)
Goodwlll 107,375 - 107375 61,910 15611 184896
Intangible assets 50,542 - 50,542 20,794 2,498 73,834
Capital expenditure

— Praperty, plant and equipment, 3,681 - 3,681 859 777 5317
— Intangible assets 1,118 - 1,118 122 115 1,355

1 Mon current assets exclude amounts relating to deferred tax assets
2 Included within uncllocated segment habilities are borrowings of £122 253 000 (2012 £71 032 000) provisions of £1 200 000{2072 E2 269 000) and other habilities of £2 351 000
(2012 £3136 Q00}

Non-current assets of the Schlegel International segment include £3,650,000 (2012 £3,460,000) attnbutable to the United Kingdom
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4 Operating profit/(loss) from continuing operations
Operating profit/{loss) from continuing operations 1s stated after (charging)/crediting the following

- 0 - 012
Note £:000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (6,337 (4,891}
Amortisation of intangible assets 11 (16,605} (10,754)
Amortisation of intangible assets — accelerated basis 1 = (12568)
Imparment of intangible assets 1" (529) (9,570}
Impatirment of goodwill 10 - (10,730}
Operating lease rentals {4,632) (4,598)
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 120 (318)
The analysis of auditors’ remuneration s as follows
2013 2012
£7000 £000
Audit of the Parent Company and consolidated financial statements 97 (99)
Audit of subsidianes (403) (344)
Total audit (500) {443)
Audit-related assurance services 27 -
Other assurance services (700) -
Total assurance services {(1,227) (443)
Tax compliance services (24) -
Corporate finance services (873) -
Other non-audit services (22) {104)
Total non audit services {1,646) {104)
Total fees (2,746) (547}
5 Employees
Number of employees
The average monthly number of employees (including Directors) of the Group during the financial year was 2013 2012
]
Administration 252 219
Operations 1,866 1.486
Sales 199 166

2317 1,871

The number of employees (including Directors) of the Group as at 31 December was

2013 2012

Administration 276 236

Operattons 2226 1477

Sales 221 175

2,723 1,888

Employment costs

Employment costs of these employees during the year were as follows o1

2013 £000

Note £000 (Restated)
Wages and salaries (74,049) (53,202)
Social security costs (7,052) (5,389)
Share-based payments 23 (681) (482)
Pension costs — defined contnbution schemes (1,153) (1,450)
Penston costs — defined benefit schemes 21 {583) {571}
Other post-retirement benefits 21 (221) {179}

(83,739) (61,273)
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5 Employees continued
Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration payable to Directors considered to be the Group’s key management personnel, was as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
Short term employee benefits' (961) (864)
Share-based payments (243) {180)

(1,204) (1,044)

1 Short term employee benefits exclude Directors remuneration for deferred share bonus plan and LTIP awards
Full details of individual Directors’ remuneration are given in the remuneration report on pages 48 to 65

6 Exceptional items
Exceptional items from continuing operations

2013 2012

£a00 £600
Redundancy, restructuring, inventory obsolescence alignment and warranty costs (2,650) {1,608)
Transaction costs assoctated with M&A activity (4,515} (966)
Truth integratton costs (1,434) -
Whnite-off of Truth inventory fair value adjustrment (2,304) -

(10,903) {2,574)

Redundancy, restructuring, inventory obsolescence alignment and warranty costs

Included within this category 1s a charge of £887,000 relating to changes made to the Group’s provision estimate for slow-moving
inventory held for greater than one year and followed a review of the Group’s overall inventory provisiening methodology undertaken on
acquisitton of Truth Hardware (note 24) The Group believes that aligning Tyman's iventory obsolescence calculation with that of Truth
Hardware 1s apprapriate given the enlarged Group's experience of slow-moving and obsolete inventory The remainder of this category
relates to exceptional costs incurred as a result of the restructuring of the European footpnint and the changes made to the North
Amencan management team

Transaction costs associated with M&A activity
These costs prinaipally relate to the transaction costs, including anti-trust fees, which are directly attnbutable to the acquisition Truth
Hardware {note 24)

Truth integration costs
These costs are non-recurring costs incurred as a result of integrating Truth Hardware Of the £1,434,000 integration costs, £850,000
comprise non-cash write downs of discontinued products and product lines

Write-off of Truth mventory fair value adjustment

This charge relates to the IFRS requirement that finished goods held in inventory must be revalued to their market value on acquisition As
the inventary acquired at the date of acqursition has been substantially sold in the subsequent six months, this uplift in the book value has
been written off as exceptional as the cost 15 considered to be of a one-off nature and 1s of a magnitude that would distort the underlying
trading result of Truth Hardware in the period
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7 Finance income and costs

Finance income and costs from continuing operations - om

2013 £ 000
Note £'000 (Restated)
Finance income
Interest income from short-terrn bank deposits 137 276
Ineffective portion of changes in value of cash flow hedges - 80
137 356
Finance costs
Interest payable on bank loans and overdraft (3,494) (3,620)
Amortisation of borrowing costs (997) {681)
Unwinding of discount on provisions 19 (29) (271)
Pension scheme and other finance costs (405) {402)
(4,925) (4974)
Exceptional foreign exchange gain 1271 -
Net finance costs {3,517)  (4,618)

Included within interest income from short-term deposits 1s £2,000 relating to Truth Hardware

Included within interest payable on bank loans and overdraft 1s £894,000 associated wath the US$100 mullion loan drawn down for the
Truth Hardware acqussition (see note 24)

8. Income tax credit
81 Tax on profit on ordinary activities from continuing operations

2n3 2012

£'000 £ 000
Current tax
Current tax on profit/(loss) for the year (4,162) (4,059)
Adjustments in respect of prior penods 373 {40M)
Total current tax (3,789)  (4,460)
Deferred tax
Orgination and reversal of temporary differences 2,273 6,522
Adjustment due to deferred tax rate change 1,455 1,200
Adjustments in respect of prior pertods 223 -
Exceptional adjustments in respect of prior penods - 438
Total deferred tax 3,951 8,160
Income tax credit in the iIncome statement 162 3,700
Tax (charge)/credit relating to components of other comprehensive income is as follows
Deferred tax (charge)/credit on actuanal gans and losses (1,313) 820
Deferred tax credit on share-based payments 772 -
Income tax (charge)/credit in the statement of comprehensive income (541) 820
Total current taxation (3,789)  (4,460)
Total deferred taxation 3,410 8,980
Total taxation {379) 4,520

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 24% to 23% with effect from 1 Apnl 2013 Accordingly, the Group's UK
profits for this accounting penod are taxed at an effective rate of 23 25% (2012 24 50%) A tax rate of 21% from 1 Apnil 2014, and a tax
rate of 20% from 1 Apnl 2015 were substantively enacted in July 2013 The Group’s UK deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
remeasured at a rate of 20%, being the rate apphcable duning the peniod the deferred tax assets and habilities are expected to be utiised

Taxation for other yunisdictions I1s calculated at rates prevailing in the respective junisdictions

Exceptional adjustments in respect of prior periods arose from the clarification with the tax authornties of the tax treatment of provisions,
marnly those onginally made at the time of the Schlegel acquisition in 2006 and the LSS acquisition in 2007
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8. Income tax credit continued
8 2 Reconciliation of the total tax credit from continuing operations
The tax assessed for the year differs from the standard rate of tax in the UK of 23 25% (2012 24 5%) The differences aré explainéd bélow ~

2013 2012

£'000 £000
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 794 (25,833)
Rate of corporation tax in the UK of 23 25% (2012 24 5%) (185) 6,329
Effects of
Income not taxable for tax purposes (43) (3,214)
Overseas tax rate differences (1,661) (652)
Adjustment due to deferred tax rate change 1,455 1200
Adjustment in respect of prior periods 596 37
Income tax credit 162 3,700
9 Earnings per share

013 01

£'000 £000
Prafit/(Loss) for the year — continuing operations 956 (22133)
Profit for the year — discontinued operations - 37,374

956 15,241
Basic earmngs/{loss) per share
From continuing operations 063p (1707p)
From discontinued operations - 2883p

063p 1176p

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
From continuing operations 062p (1707p)
From discontinued operations - 2837p

062p 1130p

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attnbutable to ordinary equity holders by the weighted
average number of ardinary shares cutstanding during the year

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attnbutable to ordinary equity holders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares ocutstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be ssued
on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares There i1s no difference between the basic and diluted loss
per share for 2012 as the effect of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding was anti-chlutive

The weighted average number of shares was

2013
‘000

012
000

Weighted average number of shares (including treasury shares) 157,337 137,287
Treasury and employee benefit trust shares (4,492) (7.643)
Weighted average number of shares - basic 152,845 129 644
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares — LTIP awards and options 2,229 2,108
Weighted average number of shares — diluted 155,074 131,752

Non-GAAP measure

Underlying earmings per share

The Group presents an underlying earnings per share figure which excludes the impact of exceptional items, amortisation and accelerated
amortisation of intangible assets, impairment of intangible assets and goodwill, non-cash finance costs, and certain non-recurnng items
Underlying earnings per share has been based on underlying earnings for each financial year and on the same weighted average number
of shares in 1ssue as the earnings per share calculation
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Underlying profit after taxation from continuing operations 1s derived as follows

2013 2012
; - - _ L . Note _ _ €000 _ _£000
Profit/(Loss) before taxation from continuing operations 794  (25,833)
Exceptional items 6 10,903 2574
Exceptional foreign exchange gain 7 {1,271) -
Amortisation of borrowing costs 7 997 681
Amortisation of intangible assets 1 16,605 10,754
Amortisation of intangible assets — accelerated basis 11 - 12,566
Imparrment of goodwill 10 - 10,730
Imparment of intangible assets 11 529 9570
Unwinding of discount on provisions 7 29 271
Underlying profit before taxation from continuing operations 28,586 21313
Income tax credit 8 162 3,700
Add back Adjustment due to tax rate change 8 (1,455 (1,200
Add back Exceptional prior penod tax adjustments 8 - {438)
Add back Tax effect of exceptional items, exceptional fareign exchange gain, amortisation of
borrowing costs, amortisation and acceterated amortisation of intanaible assets, impairment of
intangible assets, and unwinding of discount on provisions {6,345) (8.477)
Underlywng prafit after taxation from continuing aperations 20,948 14898
Property provision release - (2,021)
Tax effect of property provision release - 495
Underlying profit after taxation from continuing operations before property provision
release 20,948 13372
Underlying profit after taxation from discontinued operations i1s derived as follows 2013 12
E'000 £ Q0D
Profit before taxation from discontinued operations - 37010
Exceptional items - 215
Underlying profit before taxation from continuing operations - 37225
Income tax credit - 364
Add back Adjustment due to tax rate change - (2)
Add back Tax effect of exceptional costs - (53)
Underlying profit after taxation from discontinued operations - 37534
Underlying earnings per share 1s summarised as follows
2013 2012

Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations 1371p 1149
From discontinued operations - 2895p

1371p  4044p

Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operattons 13 51p 1131p
From discontinued operations - 28 49p

1351p  3980p

Underlying earnings per share before property proviston release i1s summarised as follows

2013 2012

Basic earnings per share 13 71p 1031p

Diluted earnings per share 13 51p 1015p
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10. Goodwli

Note £ 000
Cost and net carrying value - - 0 0T - - 0 0 0
At 1 January 2012 213,678
Recognised on acquisition of subsidiaries 3,237
Derecognised on disposal of subsidianes (14,307)
Impairment {10,730)
Exchange difference (6,982)
At 31 December 2012 184,896
Recognised on acquisition of subsidianies 24 68,978
Exchange difference (5,029)
At 31 December 2013 244845

Goodwillis monitored principally on an aperating segment basis and the net book value of goadwill s allocated by Cash Generating Umit
("CGU") at 31 December 2013 as follows

2013 012

£000 £ 000

Amesbury 104,397 107375
Truth Hardware 63,505 -
Total North America 167,902 107375
Grouphomesafe 61,910 61,910
Schlegel International 15,033 15,611

244845 184,896

Impairment tests for goodwill

Assumptions

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations Value in use is determined by discounting the future
pre-tax cash flows generated from the continuing use of the CGU, using a pre-tax discount rate

Cash flow projections are derwved from financial plans approved by the Board and cover a five year peniod They reflect management’s
expectations of revenue growth, operating cost and margin for each CGU based on past experience Cash flows after the five year forecast
period were extrapolated using a long-term growth rate of 1 50% n order to calculate the termunal recoverable amount

Discount rates are estimated using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsk profiles of
the CGUs

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations in each of the Group's CGUs ot 21 December 2013 are as follows

Average pre tax Average revenue growth
discount rate for years one to five
2013 2042 2013 2012
Amesbury 141% 124% 125% 81%
Grouphomesafe 102% M7% 60% 36%
Schlegel international 126% 145% 10.0% 98%
Truth Hardware 137% n/a 45% nfa

Impairment review results 2013
Acreview of the carrying values of goodwill and intangible assets across the Group has been carned cut 1in the ight of current trading and
prospects As aresult of the annual impairment reviews, no tmpairment losses have been recognised in the year

Whilst economic conditions in the European markets remain challenging, the goodwill and intangible asset halances are considered
sustainable based on current projections If markets conunue to deteriorate, this could give nse to a further imparment charge ot a future
date

Impairment review results 2012

The results of the impairment review process in 2012 indicated that the carrying value of goodwill In the Schlegel International CGU was
unsupportable, and that impairment was necessary An impairment charge of £10 7 million was recognised In administiative expenses in
the income statement
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Sensitivity to assumptions

Sensitivity analysis was calculated on the basis of lowering the forecast revenues by a constant percentage each year from year one

- onwards in perpetuity untit the excess of value in use over the carrying value of the CGU’s assets was reduced to zero Revenues would need
to decrease by 5 7 percentage points for each year from year one onwards in perpetuity before any impairment would anse in respect of
the CGU with the lowest impairment headroom Given the strengthened management structure and improving economic prospects in the
markets in which this CGU operates, it 1s considered unlikely that such a sustained deterioration in revenue will occur

11 Intangible assets

Computer Acquired LCustomer
software brands relations Total
Note £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2012 716 33719 122087 156,522
Additions 1,27% 76 - 1,355

Disposals (8) (8,984) - (8,992)
Recognised on acquisition of subsidiarnes - 5,534 4,667 10,201

Derecognised on disposal of subsidianes (1,238} (1,238)

Exchange difference (77) (831} (6,303) (5211)
At 31 December 2012 1,910 28514 121,213 152,637

Additions 1,178 108 - 1,286

Recagnised an acquisition of subsidiaries 24 56 15,108 41,419 56,583

Exchange difference (217) (1,649) (5,200) (7.066)
At 31 December 2013 2,927 43,081 157,432 203,440

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January 2012 (288} (15738} (41,449} (57,475)
Amortisation for the year! (111 (2092) (8.551)  (10Q,754)
Amortisation for the year' — accelerated basis - (922) (11,644) (12,566)
Impairment - (7,733) (1,837) {9.570)
Disposals 6 8,984 - 8,990

Derecogmsed on disposal of subsidianes - - 660 660

Exchange difference 46 4ip 1,420 1912

At 31 Decemnber 2012 (347) (17,055} (61,401) {78,803)
Amortisation for the year’ (262} (3,263} (13,050) (16605)
Impairment - - (529) (529)
Exchange difference 117 460 1,515 2,092

At 31 December 2013 (492) (19,888) (73,465) (93,845)
Net book value

At 1 January 2012 428 17,981 80,638 99,047

At 31 December 2012 1,563 12,459 59,812 73,834

At 31 December 2013 2,435 23,193 83,967 109,595

1 Amortisation forthe year s included in adrministrative expenses in the income statement

Impairment

2013 Impairment charge

The impatrment charge on customer relattons of £529,000 relates to intangibles acquired as part of the Unique acquisition in 2012 The
imparrment was necessitated by the transfer and integration of the Unique business and assets to the Group's Statesville facility (part of
the Amesbury diviston)

2012 Impairment charge
The impairment charge on acquired brands of £6,223,000 refates to a US brand name which 15 no longer in use

The remaining £1,510,000 impairment on acquired brands and the £1,837,000 impairment on customer relations relates to intangibles
acquired as part of the Schlegel acquisition in 2006 As mentioned in note 10, the Group's European businesses have continued to
expernence challenging market conditions, thus reducing the expectation of the future profitability of products marketed in this segment,
under the Schlegel brand As a result, the recoverable amount of these intangible assets fell below net book value, giving rise to an
imparrment loss in 2012 Impairment losses were recognised in administrative expenses in the income staterment
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land Plant and
[ and buildings machinery Totat
Note £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2012 15,182 62,635 77817
Addrtions 773 4,689 5.462
Disposals - (3.110) {3,110}
Transfers between fixed asset type 92 (92} -
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 935 935
Disposal of subsidiaries - (3,793) (3.793)
Exchange difference (444) (1,938) {2,382)
At 31 December 2012 15,603 59,326 74929
Additions 144 7.215 7.359
Disposals (593) (3.257) (3.850)
Transfers between fixed asset type 66 {66) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 24 4,404 6,612 11,016
Exchange difference (459} {6,059} {6518}
At 31 December 2013 19,165 63,771 82,936
Accumutated amortisation
At 1 January 2012 (3.671) (43,685) (47356}
Charge for the year (482) (4,603) (5.085)
Disposals - 3,040 3,040
Disposal of subsidianes - 2,845 2845
Exchange difference 109 1303 1,412
At 31 December 2012 (4,044) (41,100}  (45,144)
Charge for the year (617) (5,720} (6,337)
Disposals 264 2,985 3,249
Exchange difference 42 5.196 5.238
At 31 December 2013 (4,355) (38,639) (42,994)
Net book value
At 1 January 2012 11,511 18,950 30,461
At 31 December 2012 11,559 18,226 29,785
At 31 December 2013 14,810 25,132 39,942

Deprecation relating to continuing operations in the year of £6,337,000 {2012 £4,891,000) 1s included in administrative expenses in the
income statement Depreciation relating to discontinued operations of £Nil (2012 £194,000)1s included n profit for the year from
discontinued operations

13 Inventones

2013 2012
£'000 £000
Raw materials and consumables 14,921 11.417
Work in progress 2,987 1,148
Finished goods 22,760 14,993

40,668 27.558

The cost of materials charged to the income statement during the year ended 31 December 2013 was £134,958,000 (2012 £106,110.000)

As at 31 December 2013, inventories are stated net of an allowance for excess, obsolete or slow-moving items of £6,294,000 (2012
£5.110,000}

Animparment charge of £1,077000 (2012 £744,000) was recognised in respect of inventonies during the year No inventornes (2012
£34,000) were wntten down to net realisable value

There were no borrowings secured on the inventonies of the Group {2012 £Nil)
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14 Trade and other receivables

2013 01
_ o LM —— e o __E000 _ _EO000___ _ .

Trade receivables 32,012 25,547

Less Provision for impairment of trade recevables (2,139)  (1.855)

Trade receivables — net 29873 23,692

Other recevables — net 1,625 547

Prepayments and accrued income 2,975 3,030

34,473 27,269

All trade and other secewvables are current The net carrying values of trade and other recevables are considered to be areasonable
approximation of therr far values

At 31 December 2013 trade receivables of £24,546,000 (2012 £20,462,000) were considered to be fully performing

Net trade recewvables of £5,327,000(2012 £3,230,000} were past due but not impaired as at 31 December 2013 These relate to
custormers for whom there I1s no recent history of default The ageing of the net trade receivables is as follows

Within normal payment terms Past due
Fully Not fully Within Three to Qver
perfarming perfarming three months six months sixmonths
£000 E 000 £ 000 £ 000 E000
At 31 December 2013
Trade receivables 24,546 - 5,282 45 -
At 31 December 2012
Trade receivables 20,462 - 3,109 96 25

All of the Group's trade and other receivables have been reviewed for impairment At 31 December 2013, trade recevables of £2,139,000
(2012 £1,855,000) were determined to be specifically impaired and provided for The individually impaired receivables manly relate to
customers affected by difficult economic crcumstances

Movements on the provisions for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

2013 2012
Note £'000 £000

At 1 January (1,855) (2,558)
Prowision for recevables impairment (555) (824)
Recevables written off during the year as uncollectible 208 666
Unused amounts reversed 175 629
Acquisition of subsidiaries 24 {(142) (156)
Disposal of subsidianies - 350
Exchange difference 30 38
At 31 December (2,139) (1,855)
The creation of provisions for imparred trade receivables is included in administrative expenses in the income statement
Ageing of impared trade recevables

2013 2012

£000 £000
Trade receivables within normal terms not fully performing (1,493) {1.001)
Trade receivables past due date and aged up to three months from nvoice date (453) (757)
Trade receivables past due date and aged between three and twelve months after invoice date (193) (97)

(2,139) (1,855)
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14. Trade and other receivables continued

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables are denorminated in the following currencies

2013 20m
£'000 £ 000
British Pounds 12,618 11,685
US Dollars 16,548 10,523
Euros 3,391 2,804
Other currencies 1,916 2,257
34473 27,269
15 Cash and cash equivalents
2013 072
£'000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 58,430 49472
Short-term bank deposits 2,369 303
Bank overdrafts (17,192) (14518)
43,607 35,857
The carrying amaounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated i the following currencies 2013 2012
"
£'000 £ 000
British Pounds 13,989 22960
US Dollars 23,648 8 660
Buros 3,026 2570
Other currencies 2,944 1,667
43,607 35857
16 Trade and other payables
2013 2012
£'000 £ 000
Trade payables (31,235) (19015)
Other taxes and social secunty costs {1,146) (1,762}
Accruals and deferred income (20,534) (13,773)
{52,915} (34,550
Analysed as
Current llabtlities {51,348}y (32375)
Nan-current liabtilities (1,567) (2175}
(52,915)  (34,550)
The carrying amounts are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other payables are denominated m the following currencies 201 2012
1
£'000 £000
Breitish Pounds (18,068) (14.723)
US Dollars (28,488) (13,101)
Euros {4,117) (4,511)
Other currencies {2,242) (2,215)
(52,915) (34,550)
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17 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

2013 2012
_ .. - S - _ - - — . . E000 _ £00D_
Unsecured barrowing at amortised cost
Bank loans (124,509) (72,775)
Capitalised borrowing costs 2,256 1,743

(122,253) (71032)

Secured borrowing at amertised cost
Bank loans (45) {64)

(122,298) (71,096)

Analysed as
Current labilities (6,834) {7.521)
Non-current iabilities (115,464) (63575)

(122,298) (71,096)

On 1 July 2013, the Group drew down US$100 rmullion under the new multicurrency loan facility for the purposes of funding the Truth
acquisition {note 24} The faciity extends to and is repayable n full on 30 June 2015, 1s unsecured and guaranteed by Tyman plc and its
principal subsidiary undertakings

On 14 September 2011, the Group entered into a debt facility agreement which extends the Group’s committed facilities to 31 March 2016
The multicurrency term loan of £110 million, as well as the £30 million multicurrency working capital facility, are unsecured and guaranteed
by Tyman plc and its principal subsidiary undertakings Scheduled repayments commenced annually on 31 December 2012 and will
continue until 31 December 2015, with the balance outstanding payable on the termination date of the facility, being 31 March 2016
There were no defaults in interest payments in the year under the terms of the loan agreements

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facility

2013 2012
£'000 £000
Floating rate
Expiring beyond 12 months (29,674) (29,594)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings are denominated in the folowing currencies
2013 2012
£'000 £000
British Pounds (21,247) (25,807)
US Dallars {(101,051) (45289)

(122,298) (71,096)

18 Derivative financial instruments
2013 2012
£'000 E 000

Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges
Current labilities - -
Non-current habilities (767) (605)

(767) (605}

Cash flow hedges
The full far values of the hedging denvatives are dassified as a non-current asset or hability if the remaining matunty of the hedged
instrument 1s more than 12 months and, as a current asset or hability, If the hedged item is less than 12 months

The nctional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2013 were £51 1 mullion (2012
£58 3 mullon)
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18 Denvative financial instruments continued

During the year a loss of £163,000 {2012 a gain of £92,000) was recognised in the statement of comprehensive tncome and £Nil (2012 a
credit of £80,000) in the Income statement for the ineffective portion of changes in the value of cash flow hedges T

Details of the interest rate swaps are as follows

Notlonal Floating
amount Fixed nterest Interest rate Far value
000 rate paid received 000

At 31 December 2013
British Pound swaps £18,800 1.1682% 06266% (£277)
US Dollar swaps $53,200 1.0950% 04573% ($809)
At 31 Decembrer 2012
British Pound swaps £21,200 11670% 06675% (£204)
US Dollar swaps $59,900 10940% 05130% ($649)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the denvative assets in the balance sheet

Refer note 25 3 for the fair value measurement methodology

Net investment hedges

The Group uses foreign currency denominated debt to hedge the value of its foreign currency denominated net assets due to moverments
in foreign exchange rates The value of the net investment hedge was £101,007,000 at 31 December 2013 (2012 £46,334,000) This
hedge 1s considered highly effective, and no ineffective portion has been recognised in profit or loss

19 Provisions

P:zﬁ:etzz Restructuring Wartanty Other Total
Note £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
At 1 January 2012 (9,923) (199) (2,253) (3,622 (15997)
{Charged)/Credited to the income statement
— Additional proviston n the year (486) (13) (1,019} - (1.518)
- Unused amounts reversed 2,868 61 944 1971 5844
Utilised inthe year 1.321 137 453 - 1,911
Unwinding of discount (271) - - - (271)
Exchange differences 23 - 39 - 62
At 31 Decembeer 2012 (6,468) (14) (1.836) (1,651} (9.969)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 24 (10) - (1292) (561} (1.863)
(Charged)/Credited to the income statement
— Additional provision in the year (69) (613) (718) (200) (1,600)
- Unused amounts reversed 322 - 127 650 1,099
Utilised in the year 649 262 1,321 - 2232
Unwinding of discount (29) - - - {29)
Redlassification to cther payables - - 256 - 256
Exchange differences (1) 20 68 46 133
At 31 December 2013 (5,606) (345) (2,074) (1,716) {9,741)
Analysed as
2013 2012
£'000 £000
Current liabilities (2,641) (2,456)
Non-current licbilities (7,100) (7.513)
(9,741) (9.969)

Current habilities are those aspects of provisions that are expected to be utifised within the next year
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Property related
Property provisions include provisions far onerous leases of £4,210, 000 (2012 ES 125,000} cmd Ieusehold dllaprdatlons of £1,396,000
(2012 £1;343,000) and are expected to be utifised by 2018 - T T

For onerous leases, the Group has provided for the rental payments due over the remaining term of existing operating lease contracts
where a period of vacancy 1s ongoing The provision has been calculated after taking into account both the periods over which properties
are hikely to remain vacant and any likely sub-lease income on a property-by-property basis The proviston covers potential transfer of
economic benefit over the full range of current lease commitments disclosed in note 29 2

The provision for leasehold dilapidations relates to contractual obligations to reinstate leasehold properties to their onginal state of repar
The transfer of economic benefits will accur at the end of the leases set out in note 29 2

In 2012, the Group successfully assigned the lease on Unit A at Peterlee and have been released from all remaining obligations in
connection with the Peterlee site This resulted in a release to the income statement of £2,021,000 of property provisions

Restructuring
Restructuning provisions include provisions for staff redundancy costs at restructured business units and are expected to be utilised by the
end of 2014

Warranty
The warranty provision s calculated based on histonical expenence of the ultimate cost of setthng product warranty claims and potential
claims Warranty provisions are expected to be utilised by the end of 2017

Other
Other provisions relate to the tax cansequences of international intragroup transactions for which the Ascal authorities may be expected to
adopt opposing treatments in respect of revenue and cost recognition Other provisions are expected to be utilised by 2014

20 Deferred tax
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities is as follows

2013 2012
£'000 £000
Deferred tax assets 12,102 9,774
Deferred tax habtlities (29,292) (11,766)
Deferred tax habilities (net) (17,190) (1,992)
The net movement in deferred tax is as follows
2013 2012
Note £'000 £000
At 1 January (1,992) (9,323)
Acquisition of subsidharies 24 (20,074) (2.229)
Disposals of subsidigries - 144
Income statement credit 8 3,951 8,249
Tax {charge)credit relating to components of other comprehensive iIncome 8 (541) 820
Exchange difference 1,466 347
At 31 December (17,190) (1.992)

An income statement credit relating to discontinued operations of £Nil (2012 £89,000) is included n profit for the year from discontinued
operations

The movement in deferred tax assets and habilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, 1s as follows
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20 Deferred tax continued

Post retirement

- — - Acceleratedtax - tenefit ~Purchused — Othertrrang = - - - ——~ — ——
depreciation provisions goodwill differences Total
Deferred tax assets £ Q0C £ 000 E 00O £ 0CO £ 000
At 1 January 2012 135 3,304 5439 740 9,618
Acquisition of subsidianes - - 122 - 122
Income statement {charge)/credit (54) (136) (735) 376 (549)
Tax credit relating to components of other comprehensive income - 820 - - 820
Exchange difference 20 {158) {105) 6 {237)
At 31 December 2012 101 3830 4,721 1,122 9,774
Reclassification to deferred tax liabilities - - 3.822 638 4,460
Income statement (charge)/credit (70) 42 (2,299) 872 {1455)
Tax {charge)/credit relating to components of ather comprehensive tncome - (1.313) - 772 {541)
Exchange difference 17 {(11) 23) (119) {136)
At 31 December 2013 48 2,548 6,221 3,285 12,102
Intangible
Accelerated tax assets on Other timing
depreciation acquisiion differences Total
Deferred tax habilities £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 ECCO
At 1 January 2012 (2112)  (16,508) (321)  (18941)
Acquisttion of subsicharies - {2,357) - (2351)
Disposals of subsidiaries - 144 - 144
Income statement credit 11 8.461 326 8798
Exchange difference 94 513 (23) 584
At 31 December 2012 (2,007} (9,747) (18) (11,766)
Transfer between categories - (656) 656 -
Reclassification from deferred tax assets - (3822) (638) {4,460)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - (19,897) (177)  (20074)
Income statement {charge}/credit (821) 6,227 - 5,406
Exchange difference 82 1,507 13 1,602
At 31 December 2013 (2,746) (26,382} (164) (29,292)

Factors that may affect future tax charges

There are estimated tax losses of £16,124,000 (2012 £14,403,000) within the Group, compnsing capital losses of £4,581,000 (2012
£4581,000) and trading losses of £11,543,000 (2012 £9,822,000) As the future use of these losses 1s uncertain, in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy only a portion of these losses have been recogrised as a deferred tax asset

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 24% to 23% with effect from 1 April 2013 Accordingly, the Group's UK
profits for this accounting year are taxed at an effective rate of 23 25% (2012 24 50%)

Reductions in the UK corporation tax rate from 23% 1o 21% (effective from 1 Apnl 2014) and a further reduction to 20% (effective from 1

Apnl 2015) were substantively enacted on 2 July 2013

These reductions in the UK corporation tax rate are hikely to lead to a further reduction in the future UK current tax charge The deferred tax
assets and habilities at 31 December 2013 have been calculated based on the rate of 20% substantively enacted at 31 December 2013

The amounts of deferred tax not recognised are as follows

2013 2012

£'c00 £000

Trading losses {1,542) (915)
Capital losses (916) (1.054)
{2,458) (1,969)
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No deferred tax hability 1s recogmsed on temporary differences of £49,300,000 (2012 £40,500,000) relating to the unremitted earnings of
overseas subsidianes As a result of UK leqisiation, which largely exempts from UK tax the overseas dividends recerved, the temporary
differences ansing on unremitted profits are unlikely to lead to additional UK corporate taxes Furthermore, although the remittance to the™
UK of those earnings could still result in a tax liabdity, ansing as a result of withholding taxes levied by the overseas tax junsdictions in

which those subsidianes operate, such junsdictions provide currently for zero dwvidend withholding tax in their tax agreements with the UK

21 Pensions and other post-employment benefit plans

211 Defined contnibution pension schemes

The Group operates a number of defined cantribution pension schemes, the assets of which are held externally to the Group in separate
trustee administered funds The costs of the Group's defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the income statement n the
pentod in which they fall due The Group had unpaid pension contributions of £Nil (2012 £NIl) included within employee benefit labilities

21 2 Defined benefit pension and post-employment medical benefit schemes
The table below outlines where the Group’s post-employment amounts and actiwity are included in the financial statements

2002

2013 £000
£'000 (Restated}
Balance sheet obligations for
— Defined pension benefts {3,564) (6,993)
— Post-retirement medical benefits {3,914) (4,237)
Liability on the balance sheet (7,478) (11,230)
Income statement charge for?
— Defined pension benefits {583) {571}
— Post-retrement medical benefits {(221) (179)
(804) {750}
Remeasurements for
— Defined pension benefits 3,252 (969}
- Post-retirement medical benefits 361 {1.253)
3,613 (2222)

1 The income statement charge included within profit/{loss) before taxation includes current service cast interest cost and past service costs

The 2012 comparatives have been restated to take account of the 1AS 18 revision, which increased the comparative's net pension charge in

the income statement and reduced the charge to other comprehensive iIncome by £0 2 million Refer note 211

The Group’s prinaipal defined benefit pension scherne and post-employment medical benefit scheme are operated in the United States
The defined benefit schemes provide benefits to members in the form of guaranteed level of pension payable for life The level of benefits
provided depends on members’ length of service and therr salary in the final years leading up to retirernent For US plans, pensions in
payment do not recerve inflationary increases The benefit payments are from trustee-adrministered funds Plan assets held in trusts are
governed by local regulations and practice in the US, as 1s the nature of the relationship between the Group and the trustees and their
composition Responsibility for governance of the plans, including investment and contribution schedules, lies jomtly with the Group and
the board of trustees The board of trustees must be composed of representatives of the Company and plan participants in accordance

with the plan’s regulations

The current service cost, past service costs and expenses relating to the administration of the defined benefit schemes are included in the
income statement within administrative expenses Net expense is included within net finance income and costs Actuarial gains and losses
from participant expenience, changes in demographic assumptions, changes in financial assumptions and net return on plan assets are

recognised, net of the related deferred tax, in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Other defined benefit pension schemes had net habilities of £Nil (2012 £NIl)

Amounts recognised 1n the balance sheet are determined as follows

2012
2013 £000
£'000 (Restated)
Present value of funded obligations (21,090) (24,159)
Fair value of plan assets 13,612 12,929
Liability on the balance sheet (7,.478) (11,230)
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21 Pensions and other post-employment benefit plans continued
The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows

- — Presentvalue — Farvalueof - — -
of obligatiens plan assets Total
£ 000 £000 £ 000
At 1)anuary 2012 (21.831) 12,099 {9,732)
Current service cost (276) - (276)
Interest (expense)/income (937) 535 (402)
Administrative expenses - a2 (72)
{1.213) 463 (7500
Remeasurements
— Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest iIncome - 745 745
— Loss from change in demographic assumptions (23) - (23)
— Loss from change in financial assumptions (3.887) - {3,887)
— Expernience gain 943 - 943
(2,967} 745 (2.222)
Exchange differences 1,020 (556) 464
Contnbutions
- Employers - 1,010 1,010
— Plon portipants (49) 49 -
Payments from plans
— Benefit payments 881 (881) -
At 31 December 2012 (24,159) 12,929 (11,230)
Current service cost (298) - (298)
Interest (expense)/income (910) 505 (405)
Administrative expenses - (101} (101)
(1,208) 404 (804)
Remeasurements
— Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income - 521 521
- Loss from change in demographic assumptions (57) - (57)
— Gain from change in financial assumptions 2,780 - 2780
— Experience gamn 369 - 369
3092 521 3613
Exchange differences 342 (308} 34
Contributions
— Employers - 909 909
— Plan particaipants (57) 57 -
Payments from plans
— Benefit payments 900 (900) -
At 31 December 2013 (21,090) 13,612 (7,478)
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows
2013 012
£'000 £ 000
Current service cost (298) (276)
Expected administrative expense (107) (72)
Net interest expense (405) (402}
(804) (750}

Of the total charge, £399,000 (2012 £348,000) and £405,000 (2012 £402,000) were included in administrative expenses and finance

income and costs respectively
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Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in respect of the defined beneft pension and post-retirement

benefit schemes

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -~ 2093 — —2012- ——
E°000 £000
Net return on plan assets 521 745
Loss from change in demographic assumptions {(57) (23)
Gain/{Loss} from change in financial assumptions 2,780 (3.887)
Expenence gain 369 943

3,613 (2,222}

Pian assets comprise the following asset classes

2013 2012
£:000 % £ 000 %
Equity instruments 3,318 24 4% 3,415 264%
Large US Equity 1,996 2012
Small/Mid US Equity 483 491
International Equity 839 912
Balanced/Asset Allocation 682 50% 672 52%

Fixed Income

9,612 706% 8,842 684%

Total

13,612 1000% 12929 1000%

Through its defined benefit pension plans and post-employment medical plans, the Group 1s exposed to a number of risks, the most
significant of which are detailed below

Asset volatihty

The plan habilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields if plan assets
underperform this yield, this will create a deficit The US plans hold a significant proportion of fixed income
investments, comprising a mixture of government and corporate bonds, and provides an acceptable level of
investment nisk to better match llabihties

The Group believes that given the long-term nature of plan habihities, and the strength of the supporting Group, a
level of continuing equity investment is an appropriate element of the Group’s long-term strategy to manage the
plans efficiently Equities are expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long-term while providing volatility
and risk in the short-term As the plans mature, the Group intends to reduce the level of investment nisk by
investing mare in assets that better match the habilities

Changesin
bond yields

A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan habilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase
in the value of the plans’ bond holdings

[nflation nsk

Some of the Group's pension obligations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will iead to higher iabilities
(although, in most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect the plan against
extreme inflatton)

The majonty of the plans’ assets are either unaffected by fixed interest bonds or loosely correlated with equities
inflation, meaning that an increase in inflation will also increase the deficit In the US plans, the pensions in
payment are not linked to inflation, so this 1s a less matenal rnisk

Life expectancies

The majority of the plans’ obligations are te provide benefits for the ife of the member, so increases in life
expectancy will result in an increase in the plans’ habilities

The significant actuanal assumptions were as follows

2013 2012

£'000 £000
Discount rate 4.5% 37%
Inflation 23% 23%
Salary growth rate nfa nfa
Pension growth rate 0.0% 00%
Health care cost trend' 70% -45% 80%-45%

1 The level of heglthcare cantrbutions are copped and adopting a higher trend rate does not matenally affect the hability
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21 Pensions and other post-employment benefit plans continued
Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuanal advice in accordance with published statistics and expenence in each
yunsdiction These assumptions translate into an average life expectancy in years for a pensioner retinngatage 65~ =~ = =~

2013 2012
Retiring at the end of the reporting year
- Male 19.6 199
- Female 21.5 217
Retiring 20 years after the end of the reporting year
- Male 19.6 213
— Female 21.5 226
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted pnncipal assumption 1s
Impact on defined benefit cbligation

Change 0 assumption Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption

Discount rate 025% Decrease by 29% Increase by 30%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change 1n an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant In practice, this is
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuanal assumptions the same methodology has been applied as when calculating the pension iability
recognised within the statement of financial position

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparmg the sensitwvity analysis did not change compared to the previous year

The pension scheme s closed to new entrants as a result the service costs to the Group will nise in future years The expected level of
contrnbutions to the defined benefit pension scheme and post-employment medical benefits in the year to December 201415 £1,277,000

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 1s 109 years

The expected matunty analysis of undiscounted pension and post-employment medical benefits are as follows

No later than Between one Between two Later than

one year totwo years 1o five years five years Totai

At 31 December 2013 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 E 000
Pension benefits 800 831 2,741 5373 9745
Post-employment medical benefits 267 297 934 1,510 3,008
Total 1,067 1,128 3,675 6,883 12,753

22 Share capital and share premium

MNumber Ordinary Share

of shares shares premium

000 £000 £000

At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 137,287 6,864 101
Proceeds from shares 1ssued 32817 1,641 69,390
Sale of treasury shares - = (6,235)
As at 31 December 2013 170,104 8,505 63,256

On 23 May 2013, the Group completed the fully underwntten firm placing and open offer of ordinary shares as part of the funding for the
acquisition of Truth Hardware (see note 24) Gross proceeds of £73 4 million were raised through the sale of 6,864,000 treasury shares and
the 1ssue of 32,816,904 new ordinary shares at the 1ssue price of 185 pence per share The sale of treasury shares resulted in a transfer of
£6 2 million from the treasury reserve against share prermium Share 1ssue costs of £2 4 milhon have been incurred to 31 December 2013,
netted against share premium

The total authorised number of ordinary shares 1s 180,000,000 (2012 180,000,000) with a par value of 5 pence per share (2012 5 pence
per share} All issued shares are fully paid
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23 Share-based payments

In 2013, the Group operated the LTIP The nil cost options awarded under the LTIP were valued using a proboblllty model to predict EPS
levels The charge to the income statement in 2013 was £681 000 (2012 £482,000)

LTIP

Conditional, annual awards of shares are granted under the LTIP to certain Executive Directors and semor managers at the discretion of
the Remuneration Committee Provided the partictpant remains an employee of the Group and the performance conditions are met,
awards will vest three years after the date of the grant at no cost to the employee The percentage of shares that will actually vest 1s
dependent upon the Group's earnings per share growth over a three year measurement peniod The Remuneration Committee also has the
discretion to adjust the number of shares vesting depending on the Tyman performance during the vesting penod Further infermation an
the LTIP and the performance conditions Is given In the remuneration report

The fair value of the awards granted under the LTIP and the assumptions used in the calculation of the share-based payment charge are as
follows

TP
Valuation model Probability model to predict EPS levels
Date of grant 14 November 2013
Number granted 925217
Share price at date of award 228 pence
Farr value (pence) 106 pence
Exercise price {(pence} Nil pence
Expected life of award Three years
Vesting conditions Continuous service and cumulative underlying EPS

over three years 2013 to 2015 in range of 45 0to 51 5 pence

Movements in the number of outstanding conditional awards of shares currently exercisable are as follows

2013 202

Number of Number of

shares shares

‘000 000

At 1 January 2,994 2022
Granted 925 1177
Lapsed {104) (205)
At 31 December 3,815 2994

Details of treasury shares purchased

2013 2012

000 000

Number of ordinary shares 1,279 728

Cost to company £2,921 £1,147
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24 Acquisition of subsidiarnies

On 3 July 2013 the Group completed the acquisition of Truth Hardware (“Truth”} for a net cash consideration of US$204 7 mihion from
Melrose Industnes plc-Truth Hardware 1s @ manufacturer of operating hardware for residential and light commerciat windows and doors in —
North Amenca and comprises the US-based Truth Corporation {located in Owatonna, Minnesota}, where the business is headquartered,

and the Canadian-based Atlas (located 1n Brampton, Ontario) This acquisition strategically enhances the Group’s position in the North
Amencan door and window components market where the Group sees sigmificant opportunity for continued growth

Recognised amounts of Identifiable assets acquired and habilities assurned

£ 000
Intangible assets 56,583
Property, plant and equipment 11016
Inventortes 15,539
Trade and other receivables 9,564
Cash and cash equivalents 3,289
Trade and other payables (8,708)
Current tax payable 209
Deferred tax habilities (20,074)
Provisians (1,863)
Total identifiable net assets 65,555
Goodwill ansing on acquisitton 68978
Total consideration 134,533
Sausfied by

£000
Cash 134,533
Net cash flow aristng en acquisition

£000
Cash consideration 134533
Less cash and cash equivalents acquired (3.289)

131,244

The fair value of financial assets includes trade recevables with a farr value of £8,790,000 and a gross contractual value of £8,932 000 The
best estimate at the acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not recoverable 1s £142,000

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of £4,340,000 for professional fees paid for due diligence, other general professional fees and
legal advice These costs have been included in exceptional costs in the Group’s consalidated income statement

Revenue included in the consolidated income statement since 3 July 2013 contributed by Truth was £42 9 milkon Truth also contributed
£2 2 milion to the profit before taxation from continuing operations over the same penod

Had the acquisition of Truth been completed on the first day of the inancial year, an additional £40 3 million of revenue and £6 9 million
of profit before taxation from continuing operations would have been contnbuted to the Group

Farr values remamn provisional in relation to this acquisition and the Group will complete this review in 2014 Any adjustment to the carrying
value i1s unlikely to be significant to the individual acquisition

Goadwill ansing on acquisition 1s attributable to the expected profitability of the acquired business and the synergies expected to arse
after the Group's acquisition of Truth Hardware

The estmated value of intangibles, including goodwill, deductible for tax purposes 1s £Nil
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25. Financial instruments
251 Financial instruments by category

- - - - - . - - - - — - — 2013 2012
Assets as per balance sheet £'000 £000
Loans and receivables
Trade and other recewvables! 29,873 23,692
Cash and cash equivalents 43,607 35857
Total 73,480 59,549
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Other Other
Derivatives financial Derivatives financial
used for liabifities at used for habiities at
hedging amortised cost Total hedging  amertised cost Total
Liabiiities as per balance sheet £'q00 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
Baorrowings? - (124,554) (124,554) - (72.839) (72.839)
Denvative financial instruments (767) - {767) (605) - (605)
Trade and other payables? - (52,915) (52,915) - (34,550)  (34,550)
Total (767) (177.469) (178,236) (605) (107,389) (107,994)

1 Excludes non finonclal assets
2 Excludes capitahsed borrowing costs of £2 256 000 (2012 £1 743 000)
3 Excludes non finoncial habiities

25 2 Financial instruments nisk profile

Capital nsk management

The Group manages its capital structure to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern The capital structure of the Group
consists of cash and cash equvalents (note 15), interest beanng loans and borrowings (note 17) and equity attnbutable to the shareholders
of the parent as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

Financial management

The Group’s principal finanaial instruments compnse bank leans and cash and short-term deposits The Group has various other financial
instruments such as trade receivables and trade payables that anse directly from its operations No trading in financial instruments 1
undertaken

The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each financial instrument isk and they are summarised below

Liquidity and credit nisk
The Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable secunties and the availlability of funding through an adequate amount of credit
facilities Management monitors rofling forecasts of the Group's lquidity on the basis of expected cash flow

The Group manages hquidity nsk by the pooling of cash resources and depositing funds available for iInvestment in approved financial
instruments with financial institutions Counterparty nisk with respect to cash and cash equivalents 1s managed by only investing in banks
and financial instruments with independently assessed credit ratings of at least A-2 as published by Standard and Poor's Individual risk
limits are assessed by management based on the external ratings Management does not expect any losses from the non-perfarmance of
these counterparties

Credit risk 1s also attributable to the Group’s exposure to trade receivables due from customers Management assesses the credit quality of
customers taking into account their finanaal position, past expenence and other factors In order to mitigate credit nsk the Group utilises
credit insurance n those areas of its operations where such insurance 1s available In areas where such insurance 1s not available,
management monitors the utilisation of credit imits by customers, identified either individually or by group, and incorporates this
information in credit sk controls There are no significant concentrations of credit nsk due to the diverse nature of the Group's client base

Trade recevables are presented in the balance sheet net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Group's management
based on prior expenence and therr assessment of the current economic environment;

The Group’s exposure to credit nisk is imited to the carrying amount of financial assets recogrised at the balance sheet date Management
considers all financial assets that are not impaired for each of the reporting dates under review are of good credit quality, ncluding those
that are past due

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2013 the Group operated within its borrowing facilities
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25 Financial instruments continued

The table below analyses the present value of the Group’s financial habilties into relevant maturity groupings based ont the femaining

period at the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty date - B

Later than Later than
one year but two years
Mot loter than not later than but no later Over
one year twoyears  than five years five years Tatal
£000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Borrowings' (8134) (68,777) (47,643} - (124,554)
Dervative inanaal instruments - - (402) (365) (767)
Trade and other payables? (51,348) {1,567) - - (52,915)
At 31 December 2013 (59,482) (70,344) (48,045) (365) (178,236)
Borrowings' (8.136) (8,136) {56,567} - (72839)
Derivative financial instruments - - (287} (318) (605)
Trade and other payables? (32,375) (2,175) - (34,550)
At 31 December 2012 (40,511)  (10,311)  (56,854) (318} (107,994)
1 Excludes capitalised borrowing costs of £2 256 Q00(2012 £1 743 000)
2 Excludes non financial iabilities
Interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2013 was as follows
Floating rate Fred rate
borrowings' borrowings Total
£ 000 £ 000 E 000
At 31 December 2013
British Pounds (23.503) - (23,503)
US Dallars (101,051) - (101,051)
(124,554) - (124,554)
At 31 December 2012
British Pounds (27.550) - (27,550)
US Dollars (45,289) - (45,289)
(72.839) - (72.839)

1 Excludes capitalised borrowing casts of £2 256 000(2012 £1 743 000)

The interest rate on the floating rate bank loans are linked to LIBOR The Group has used interest rate swaps to fix the cost of a proportion

of these floating rate borrowings

Floating rate Covered by Swap
borrowings! SWaps fixed rate
£ 000 £ 000 %
At 31 December 2013
British Pounds (23,503) (18,800} 11682%
US Dollars (101,051) (32,262} 10950%
(124,554) (51,062)
At 31 December 2012
British Pounds (27,5500 (21,2000 11670%
US Dollars (45,289) (37,065) 10540%
(72,839) (58,265}

1 Excludes copitahsed borrowing costs of £2 256 000 (2012 £1743000)
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The impact of a 50 bagis point movernent in floating interest rates on borrowings would have ac ESOO 000 (2012 £l¢00 000) lrnpact on

profits This impact would be reduced by the tax effect on such a change

Interest rate risk of financial assets

The Board pernodically reviews any exposure the Group may have to interest rate fluctuations The weighted average interest rate received

on deposited funds was 0 3 per cent duning the year (2012 1 24 per cent)

Faoreign currency nisk

The Group operates internationally and 1s exposed to foreign exchange risk ansing from vanous currency exposures, primarily with respect
to the US Dollar and the Euro Foreign exchange nsk arises from future commeraial and financing transactions, recogrised assets and
lhatalittes denominated i a currency that is not the Group's functional currency and net investments in overseas entities

The Group has a number of overseas subsidianes, whose net assets are subject to currency translation nsk The Group borrows inlocal
currencies as appropriate to minimise the impact of this risk on the balance sheet

Closing rates

2013 2012

Us Dollars
Euros

1.6490 16161
11978 12227

Average rates

US Dollars
Euros

15646 15848
11780 12329

Foreign currency exchange rate sensitivity

Foreign currency financial assets and habilities, translated into Brtish Pounds at the closing rate, are as follows

Briush
Pounds US Dollars Euros Other Tatal
£ 0OC £ Q0O £ 000 E 000 £ 000
At 31 December 2013
Financial assets
Trade and other recewables’ 11.097 14,632 2,739 1,405 29,873
Cash and cash equivalents 13,989 23,648 3026 2,944 43,607
25,086 38,280 5,765 4,349 73,480
Financial iabilities
Borrowings® (23,503) (101,051) - —  (124,554)
Denvatwe financial instruments 277) (490) - - (767)
Trade and other payables? (18,068) (28.488) (4,117} (2242) (52915)
{41,848) (130,029) {4,117} (2,242} (178,236)
Potential impact on profit or loss — (loss)/gain
10% increase in functional currency (911) 212 {(117) (816}
10% decrease in functional currency 1,114 (259) 143 598
Potential impact on other comprehensive income — {loss)/gain
10% increase in functional currency (537) (144) (214) (895)
10% decrease in functional currency 656 176 261 1.093
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25 Financial instruments continued

Briyish
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -= Pounds. - USDollars- -  Ewes — — Qther - — -Total
£ 000 £ 000 £000 £000 £ 000
At 31 December 2012
Financial assets
Trade and other recevables’ 10,513 8922 2423 1,834 23,692
Cash and cash equivalents 22,960 8.660 2,570 1,667 35.857

33473 17,582 4,953 3,501 59,549

Financial habihities

Borrowings? (26,441}  (46,398) - - (72,839}
Denvative inancial instruments (204) (401) - - (605)
Trade and other payables? (14,723 (13101) (4,511) (2,215) (34,550}

(41,368)  (59.900) (4,511) (2.215) (107,994)

Potential impact on profit or loss — (loss)/gain

10% ncrease In functional currency (897) 198 (107) (800)
10% decrease in functional currency 1096 (242) 124 978

Potential impact on other comprehensive iIncome — (loss)/gain

10% ncrease in functional currency (432) (11) 7N (614}
10% decrease in functional currency 528 14 207 749

1 Excludes non financial assets
2 Excludes capitalised borrewing costs of £2 256 000 (2032 £1743 000)
3 Excludes non financiat icbiliies

The movements in exchange rates are constdered to be indicative of the histonc average movements in exchange rates

Capital management
The Group's capital management objectves are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so as to provide returns to
shareholders and benefits to stakeholders The Group defines its capital as total equity plus net debt

In maintaining the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount patd as dividends to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or dispose of
assets to reduce debt

The Group monitors its inancial capaoity by reference to inancial covenant ratios, Including leverage and interest cover If the Group fails
to meet its key financial ratios required by 1ts lenders, this could impact the Group’s average interest rate of borrowings and the future
availability of credit to the Group

The Group 1s in comphance with 1ts inancial covenants within its committed bank credit facilities, and has been in comphance throughout
the financia! year

2013 2012
Note £'000 £ 000
Total borrowings' 124,554 72,839
tLess cash and cash equivalents 15  {43,607) (35857)
80,947 36,982
Total equity 302,940 247889
Total capital 383,887 2843871

1 Excludes capitalised borrowing costs of £2 256 000 (2012 £1 743 DC0)
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The Group's dervative financral strument used for hedging 1s measured at far value The Group uses the following hierarchy for

measurtng far value -~ -
» Level 1 Quoted pnices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

> Level 2 Inputs other than quoted pnices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly or indirectly

> Level 3 Inputs for the asset or habiity that are not based on observable market data

Derivatives shown at farr value in the balance sheet have been valued by reference to level 2 techniques described above

There were no transfers between levels during the year

Valuation techniques used to denive level 2 fair values

Level 2 hedging dernvatives comprise interest rate swaps fair valued using forward interest rates extracted from cbservable yield curves
The effects of discounting are generally msignificant for level 2 denvatives The fair value of the denvative Ainancial instrument at 31

December 2013 1s a hability of £767,000 (2012 hability of £605,000)
There were no changes in vafuation techniques dunng the year

Group’s valuation process

The Group has a team that performs the valuations of financial assets required for finanaial reporting purposes This team reports to the

Chief Financial Officer and the Audit Committee

Fair value of financaial assets and hiabilities measured at amortised cost
The fair value of borrowings are as follows

2013 2012
£'000 £000

Non current
Current

(116,421)  (64,703)
(7,300) (8,013)

(123,721) (72716)

The fair value of the following financial assets and iabilities approximate their carrying amounts

> Trade and other receivables
> Cash and cash equivalents
> Trade and other payables

26 Dividends
2013 2012
£000 £000
Amounts recognised as distributions to owners in the year
Final dvidend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of 3 50p per share (2011 3 50p) 4,511 4,535

Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 1 50p per share (2012 1 00p})

2,528 1,297

Total amounts recognised as distributions to owners in the year

7,039 5.832

Amounts not recognised in the financial statements

Final dividend proposed for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 4 50p per share (2012 3 50p) 7,546 4,538

The proposed final dwvidend 15 subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a

habality in these financial statements
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27 Adjustments to cash flows from operating activities
The folfowing non cash and finanang adjustments have been made to profit before tax for the year to amve at operating cash flow

2012

2013 E000

Note £000 (Restated)

Net finance costs — continuing operations 7 3,517 4,618
Net finance costs — discontinued operations - (33)
Depreciation 12 6,337 5,085
Amortisation and accelerated amortisation 11 16,605 23320
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 101 529 20,300
Disposal of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 11,12 42 72
Non-cash adjustments 1,091 (3328)
Share-based payments 23 681 482

28,802 50516

28 Contingent habilities
There are no contingent liabilities

29 Financial commitments
291 Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting year but not yet incurred 1s as follows

2013 012
£000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 3,551 904

Included within the capital commitments Is caprtal expenditure committed but not incurred relating to Truth Hardware of £1 9 millson
29 2 Operating lease commitments

The Group has entered into commercial leases en certain properties There are no restnctions placed upon the lessee by entenng into
these leases

The present value of future mimimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Land and builldings Other
2013 2012 2013 2012
E'000 £000 £000 £000
Ne later than one year 4,265 3,766 655 275
Later than one year but no later than five years 12,539 12,191 927 425
Later than five years 2,298 3,949 - -
19,102 19,906 1,582 700

30 Events after the reporting year

Acquisition

On 26 February 2014, the Group completed the acquisition of Vedasi! Brasil (“Vedasil™), the market leader in the manufacture and supply of
pile weatherseals in Brazil

Vedasil manufactures and supplies polypropylene extruded seals under the Eco-PDM brand and other seal and screen components to the
Brazilian door and window market In 2013, Vedasil reported revenues of approximately BR19 3 million (£5 7 million) In 2013, Schlegel
América do Sul{ Schlegel Brazil”), Tyman's existing Braziltan business, reported revenues of approximately BR6 6 million (£2 0 million)

Given the short time penod elapsed between acquisition and approval of the financia! statements, the acquisition accounting has not yet
been completed
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Lountry of incorporation

Nature of business

Corporate

Jasper Acquisition Holdings Limited
Octrol Group Limuted

Schlegel Acquisition Heldings Limited
Tyman Finance S arl

Tyman Management Limited

UK operations

Balance UK Limited’

ERA Products Limited'

EWS (Manufacturing) Limited
Grouphomesafe Limited’

Linear Limited’

Schlegel UK (2006) Limited'
Ventrolla Limited?

Window Fabrication and Fixing Supplies Limited
US operations

Armesbury Acguisition Holdings (No2) Inc’
Amesbury Canada Inc!

Amesbury Door Hardware Inc (SD)!
Amesbury Finance Holdings LLC
Amesbury Group In¢’

Amesbury Group Plastic Profiles Inc
Amesbury Holdings Limited’
Amesbury Industnes Inc

Atlas Holdings Company Limited?
Balance Systems Inc!

Bandlock Corporation Inc!

Fastek Products Inc’

Jasper Acquisition Limited'
Overland Preducts Company, Inc
Schlegel Systems Inc’

United Kingdom Holding company
United Kingdom Holding company
United Kingdom Holding company
Luxernbourg Holding company
United Kingdom Management services
United Kingdom Bullding products
United Kingdom Building products
United Kingdom Bullding products
United Kingdom Buillding products
United Kingdom Building products
United Kingdom Building products
United Kingdom Building products
United Kingdom Building products
United States Holding cormpany
Canada Holding company
United States Bullding preducts
United States Holding company

United States
United States

Holding company
Bullding products

United Kingdom Holding company
United States Holding company
Canada Butlding products
United States Building products
United States Bullding products
United States Building products
United Kingdem Holding company

United States
Unuted States

Bullding products
Building products

Truth Hardware Corporation! United States Bulding products
Tyman Investments' United Kingdom Holding company
Other international operations

Schlegel Aménica Do Sul Vedagdes Para Construgdo Civil Ltda’? Brazil Bullding products
Schlegel Australia Pty Limited! Australia Buillding products
Schlegel Belgium BYBA! Belgium Building products
Schlegel GmbH? Germany Building products
Schlegel SR Italy Building products
Schlegel Taliana SU! Spain Building products

1 Held bya subsidiary

2 Effectiveinterest of 96 55% (2012 96 55%) Fair value of mincrity holding Immatenal

32. Related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties of Tyman plc

Subsidiaries

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries which are related parties are elminated on consolidation There were no
transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, apart from intercompany loans

Key management compensation

Compensation for Directors who have the sole responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the Group 1s disclosed in note 5

Full details of tndividual Directors’ remuneration are given in the remuneration report on pages 48 to 65
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Our opinion

In our opinion the Parent Company financial statements defined below

- > give atrue and fair view of the state of the Parent Company's affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its cash flows for the year then =~
ended,

> have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and

> have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

This opimion 1s to be read in the context of what we say tn the remainder of this report

What we have audited

The Parent Company financial statements, which are prepared by Tyman plc, comprise

> the Parent Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2013

> the Parent Company statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and

> the notes to the Parent Company financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting paolicies and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation compnises applicable law and United Kingdem Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

In apptying the financial reporting framework, the Directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and ¢considered future events

Certan disclosures required by the financral ieporting framework have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report and Accounts (the
"Annual Report’), rather than in the notes to the financial statements These are cross referenced from the financial statements and are
wentified as audited

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”) An audit involves

obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial

statements are free from matenal misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

> whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Parent Company’s arcumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed,

> the reasenableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and

> the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the finanaial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify matenial inconsistencies with the
audtted Parent Company financial statements and te identify any information that 1s apparently maternially incorrect based on, or
matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Compamies Act 2006

In our opinion

> The information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Repaort for the financial year for which the Parent Company financial
statements are prepared 15 consistent with the Parent Company financtal staterments

> The part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanatrons received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion

> we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit or

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

> the Parent Company financal statemnents and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with
the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility
Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by
law have not been made We have no exceptions to report arsing from thus responsibiity
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Other information in the Annual Report

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland), we are required to report to youif, in our opinion, information in the Annual Report i1s

» materally inconsistent with the information in the audited Parent Company financial staterments, or - - -

» apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Parent Company acquured In the course
of performing our audrt or

> is otherwise misleading

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsitbilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 43, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the Parent Company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Qur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
ISAs (UK & Irefand) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, tncluding the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opimions, accept or assume responsibifity for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent In wrnting

Other Matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Tyman plc for the year ended 31 December 2013

Simon O'Brien (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

11 March 2014
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2013

2013 2012
Note £'000 £ 000
Fixed assets . B - - - s - - - - = 7 - - T 7=
Investments 4 284849 217447
284849 217447
Current assets
Debtors 5 21,607 20731
Cash at bank and in hand 17,284 28829
38,891 49 560
Creditors Amounts falling due within one year 6 (6,297) (7.846)
Net current assets 32,594 41,714
Total assets less current iabilities 317,443 259,161
Creditors Amounts falling due after more than one year 6 (7,876) (7.876)
Net assets 309,567 251,285
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 9 8,505 6,864
Share premium account 9 63,256 101
Other reserves 9 8,920 8,920
Treasury reserve 9 (4847)  (8167)
Profit and loss account 9 233,733 243561
Total shareholders’ funds 309,567 251,285

The notes on pages 115 to 117 are an integral part of these financial statements

Wént on page 114 was approved by the Board on 11 March 2014 and signed on its behalf by
Lours/Eperjest

Chief Executive Officer

&ames Brotherton

Chief Financial Officer
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Accounting policies

11 Basis of preparation

The separate financal statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 -As permitted by that Act, the
finanaial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK accounting standards (“UK GAAP")

The financial staterments are prepared on the going concern basis, under the histoncal cost convention The principal accounting policies
which have been applied consistently throughout the year, are set out below

1 2 Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit and loss on a stratght line basis over the lease term

1 3 Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidianes are stated at cost less any provisions for impairment

1 4 Finanoal instruments
Financial assets and habilittes are recognised on the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

Trade debtors are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropnate allowances for estimated recoverable amounts
Trade creditors are stated at their nominal amount

1 S Borrowings
Interest-bearing loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received All barrowing costs are expensed as incurred, on an accruals
basis, to the Company profit and loss account using the effective interest rate method

1 6 Share-based payments
The Company has applied the requirements of FRS 20 “Share based payments” The Company issues equity settled share based payments
to certain employees Equity-settled share based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of options 1s expensed an a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting penad is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the
impact of any non market vesting conditions Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest At each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest,
with any changes in estimate recognised in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment in equity The fair value of awards
granted under LTIP 1s measured using a probability model to predict EPS levels

The proceeds receved net of any directly attnibutable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group 1s treated as a
capital contribution The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value 1s recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to Investment 1n subsichary undertakings, with a corresponding crecht to equity in the parent entity accounts

The social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of the share options 1s considered an integral part of the grant itself,
and the charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction

2 Profit attnibutable to the shareholders of the Company

The Company 1s an investment holding company It receves dividend income from subsidianes and bank interest It pays loan interest to a
subsidiary The majonty of administrative expenses are pard by the Company's subsidiary, Tyman Management Limited, including the
whole amount of relevant auditors’ remuneration and operating lease costs

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for the
year The Company reported a loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 of £4,242,000 (2012 a profit of £52,870,000) Included
in the Company's reported profits for the year ended 31 December 2012 is a profit on disposal of subsichary of £55,700,000

3. Employees
Other than the Directors, there were no employees of the Company during the year (2012 MNil) Directors’ emoluments are set out in the
Cirectors’ remuneration repart in the Group's financial statements
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

4 Investments

£000
Cost )
At 31 December 2012 220968
Subscrniption of shares 68,796
Capital contribution relating to share-based payments 681
At 31 December 2013 290,445
Impairment
At 31 December 2012 (3,521}
Charge for the year (2075}
At 31 December 2013 (5,596}
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 217,447
At 31 December 2013 284,849
The 2013 subscription of shares relates to subscrnptions of shares i Jasper Acquisitton Holdings Limited of £55,648,000 (2012
£29,200,000) and in Schlegel Acquisition Holdings Limited of £13,148,000 (2012 £Nil)
Details of the principal subsidianes of the Company, all of which are wholly owned, are as follows
Principal subsidiary Country &f incorparation Nature of business
Jasper Acquisition Heldings Limited United Kingdom Holding company
Octror Group Limited United Kingdom Holding company
Schlegel Acquisition Holdings Limited United Kingdom Holding company
Tyman Management Limited United Kingdom Management services
The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by thew underlying net assets
5 Debtors
2013 2012

Note £'000 £000
Amounts receivable after one year:
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 20,514 20,513
Deferred tax asset 7 1,093 218
At 31 December 2013 21,607 20,731

The amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and recoverable on demand but are unlikely to be repard within

one year
6 Creditors
2013 2012
£'000 £ 000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed to Group undertakings (5,276) (7.190)
Other creditors (451) -
Corporation tax (570) {656)
{6,297) (7.846})
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Loan notes to Group undertakings (7,876) (7.876)
{7,876) (7,876)

The amounts owed to Group undertakings are repayable on demand and unsecured

The loan note 1s between the Company and Octror Group Limited, a subsidiary, and interest 1s charged at a fixed rate of two per cent

per annum
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2013 2012
£'000 £ 000
After five years (7,.876) (7,876}
7 Deferred tax asset
2013 2012
£°000 £ 000
At 1 January 218 -
Deferred tax credited to profit and loss account 103 218
Deferred tax credited to the statement of total recogrised gains and losses 772 -
At 31 December 1,093 218
Deferred tax comprises
Timing differences 1,093 218
8 Called up share capital
The share capital of the Company is as set out in note 22 of the Group financial statements
9 Reconcihiation of movements in shareholders’ funds “
ar
Calledup premlur: Crher Treasury Profit and
share capital account reserves reserve loss account Total
£000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000 £ 000
At 1 January 2012 6.864 101 8920 (7.014) 196,041 204912
Profit for the year - - - - 52,870 52,870
Purchase of treasury shares - - - (1.147) - (1,147}
Dwidends paid - -~ - - (5.832) (5832)
Share based payments - - - - 432 482
At 31 Decermnber 2012 6864 101 8920 (8,161) 243561 251,285
Profit for the year - - - - (4.242) {4,242)
Issue of shares 1.641 69,390 - - - 71,031
Purchase of treasury shares - - - (2,921) - (2921)
Sale of treasury shares - (6235) - 6,235 - -
Dwidends paid - - - - (7,039} (7.039)
Share based payments - - - - 1,453 1.453
At 31 December 2013 8,505 63,256 8,920 (4,847) 233,733 309,567

Details of share-based payments are provided in note 23 of the Group financial statements

10 Financial commitments

At 31 December 2013 the Company had future annuat lease commitments on land and buildings under non-cancellable operating leases
as stated below These commitments were met on the Company's behalf by Tyman Management Limited

2013 2012
£'000 £000

No later than one year 212 197
Later than one year but no later than five years - 197
212 394

11 Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in Financial Reporting Standard 8 ' Related party disclosures”, as a wholly owned
subsidiary, not to disclose details of related party transactions required by this standard
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Definitions

Where appropriate “Underlying” 1s defined as before amortisation and accelerated amortisation of intangible assets, deferred tax on
amortisation and accelerated amortisation of intangible assets, impairment of intangible assets and goodwill, exceptional items,
unwinding of discount on provistons, amorttsation of borrowing costs and the associated tax effect -

“Underlying administrative expenses” 1s defined as administrative expenses before property provision release, exceptional items,
amorbisation and accelerated amortisation of intangible assets, and impairment of intangible assets and goodwill

“Underlying net debt” 1s defined as interest-bearing loans and borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents, plus unamortised borrowing
costs added back

“Underlying operating profit” 1s defined as operating profit before property provision release, exceptional items, amortisation and
accelerated amortisation of intangible assets, and impairment of intangible assets and goodwill

“Continuing operations” 1s defined as the operations of the Tyman Group excluding Gall Thomson Environmental Limited and its
subsidiaries, and the Composite Doors business

“Operational cash flow" I1s defined as net cash inflow from operating activities before iIncome tax paid, penston contributions proceeds on
disposal of property, plant and equipment, and exceptional transaction costs associated with M&A activity, and after payments to acquire
property, plant and equipment and payments to acquire intangible assets

"Operating cash conversion” is defined as operational cash flow divided by underlying operating profit

“Return on acquisition investment”™ 1s defined as annualised underlying operating profit attnbutable to the acquired business divided by the
acquisition enterpnse value less the fair value of controllable capital employed as at the date of acquisition plus the value of controllable
capital employed at the date of measurement The denorminator 1s also adjusted for seasonality where appropniate

“Acquisition enterprse value” 1s defined as the gross consideration patd to the seller less any cash left in the acquired business plus any debt
acquired with the acquired business plus the expenses of the acquisition, excluding financing expenses, plus any integration expenses
booked as exceptional tems

“Return on average capital employed” 1s defined as underlying operating profit as a percentage of the 12 month average capitat employed

“Leverage” 1s defined as underlying net debt divided by adjusted EBITDA Underlying net debt is translated at the average rate for the year
Adjusted EBITDA 15 underlying operating profit with depreciation and share-based payments expenses added back plus the pre-acquisition
EBITDA of businesses acquired during the year covening the relevant pre-acquisition penod less the EBITDA of businesses disposed of
during the year

“Like for like" 1s defined as the comparison of revenues or operating profit, as appropnate, excluding the impact of any acquisitions made
during the current year and, for acquisitions made in the comparative year, excluding from the current year result the impact of the
equivalent cusrent year pre-acquisition period

Roundings

Percentage increase/decrease numbers have been calculated using figures rounded to the nearest thousand from the financial statements,
which may lead to small differences in some figures and percentages quoted
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Exchange rates

Closing rates

2013

2012

US Dollars 16490 16161
Euros 11978 12227
Australian Dollars 18583 15581
Average rates

US Dollars 15646 15848
Euros 11780 12329
Australian Dollars 16224 15307
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